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Financial and Operational Highlights B iR £ KR E

(Amounts expressed in HK$'million, unless specified)

(LB BETREN - BRFIZHI)

Turnover

Profit for the year attributable to

ordinary equity holders of the Company

Total equity

Total assets

Total liabilities to total equity ratio (times)

Total interest-bearing debts to
total equity ratio (times)

Current ratio (times)

Trade and bills receivables
to turnover (days)

Inventories to turnover (days)
Net assets per share (HK cents)
Return on total assets (%)
Return on turnover (%)
Interest cover (times)

EBITDA

EBITDA on turnover (%)

Basic earnings per share (HK cents)

Dividends per share (HK cents)
Dividend yield (%)
Number of issued shares (million)

Number of employees:
Hong Kong and Macau
Taiwan
Mainland China
Indonesia

Total
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Notes 2022
[E EE
8,043 7,352 7,630 8,210 8,531
191 274 169 325 304
5,436 5,400 4,930 5378 5,725
8,978 8,740 8,312 8,579 9,220
0.7 0.6 0.7 0.6 0.6
0.2 0.2 0.2 03 0.3
2.1 2.2 2.0 2.0 2.0
51 58 44 42 45
13 119 101 97 96
394 391 357 389 380
2.1 3.1 2.0 38 33
24 37 22 4.0 3.6
1 7 15 5 12 12
2 671 903 821 693 769
8.3 12.3 10.8 8.4 9.0
3 13.8 19.8 12.2 235 220
18.0 15.0 10.0 30.0 35.0
4 12.3 8.4 8.0 10.2 85
1,382 1,382 1,382 1,382 1,382
583 555 47 769 697
- - 7 9 10
11,844 11,981 11,11 11,879 12,638
62 - - - -
12,489 12,536 11,589 12,657 13,345




Notes:

Financial and Operational Highlights B iR £ KR E

Interest cover was calculated by dividing the profit before interest and tax
by the interest expenses.

EBITDA is the earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation
expenses.

Number of shares was on weighted average basis.

Dividend yield was calculated by dividing the dividends per share by the
closing market price per share as at the end of the respective reporting
period.

The financial results of the above refer to the results of the Group for each
financial year. And, the other figures used were the position of the Group as
at the end of the respective reporting period.
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Chairman’s Statement E[EiREE

For the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group’s profit attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the Company was HK$191 million, compared
with HK$274 million reported for 2021. Revenue increased by 9.4% and
gross profit margin was slightly lower at 29.0%. The Board has declared
a final dividend of HK10.0 cents per share.

In December 2021, a leased warehouse by the Group was on fire. Based
on the records of the Group, the loss of the inventories affected by the
accident was HK$162 million approximately. The loss amount was fully
provided in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as disclosed in
this final results. Based on the view of insurance policies of the Group,
the Group believes that such policies provide adequate insurance cover
for the above loss. The Group is still working closely with the insurance
company to ascertain the compensation payment.

The operating environment throughout the period continued to be
challenging. The COVID-19 pandemic has led to further tightening
on various social activities both in Mainland China and Hong Kong.
International logistics was hampered by border control measures,
incurring additional expenses for the Group. Prices of cotton raw
materials surged to a record high and energy cost also went up due
to supply shortage. The margins for the Group’s fabric business was
unavoidably eroded due to extra expenses incurred.

The pandemic of COVID-19 continued to affect the retail consumption
in Mainland China and Hong Kong. Travel restrictions and social-
distancing measures impaired the consumer sentiment. The Group’s
retail business was thus severely hurt in the period. The Group has
downsized the Mainland China operations until there are positive signs
of economic recovery.

During the year, the Group dedicated to maintain a healthy financial
status. The Group will continue to secure capital strength for future
business development.

Looking ahead, the business environment will remain volatile. Increased
rate of vaccination and easing of social distance policies will drive global
economic recovery in the near future. There are challenges ahead but
also market opportunities.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank our shareholders, business
partners and bankers for their continuous support. | would also like to
thank our colleagues for their devotedness and hard working.

Poon Bun Chak
Executive Chairman
Hong Kong, 17 June 2022
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Management'’s Discussion and Analysis g 2 i

REVIEW OF BUSINESS AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

For this fiscal year ended 31 March 2022, the Group's total revenue
increased by 9.4% to HK$8,043 million (2021: HK$7,352 million). Profit
for the year attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the Company
amounted to HK$191 million (2021: HK$274 million), a drop of 30.3%.
The Group’s gross profit margin was 29.0% (2021: 31.0%), a slight
decrease of 2.0 percentage points from last year.

The Board has recommended a final dividend of HK10.0 cents (2021:
HK10.0 cents). Including the interim dividend of HK8.0 cents (2021:
HK5.0 cents), total dividend per ordinary share for the year would be
HK18.0 cents (2021: HK15.0 cents), an increase of 20.0% from last year.

Textile business

Turnover of the textile business increased by 19.4% to HK$5,544 million
(2021: HK$4,644 million). The amount represented 68.9% (2021: 63.2%)
of the Group's total revenue. As the world’s major economies resumed
their economic activities and the economy of Mainland China recovered
steadily, global demand rebounded, resulting in an improvement in
the sale of the textile business during the period. However, due to the
fire accident causing the damage of cotton and yarn, the loss caused by
such accident was recorded in full for the current year. Besides, higher
prices for energy and raw materials were resulted due to high inflation.
The Group continued focusing on cost reduction to enhance operating
profitability. In the year, revenue increased by 19.4% and gross profit
margin decreased by 2.5 percentage points. The performance and the
key financial ratios of the business were as follows:

(Amounts expressed in HK$'million, unless specified)

L K2 0 A

XREEEARRER
BE-Z-_S=ZF=+—HULFXMBEFE » ~&EEH
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T—F  B¥IINEER) AAREBEERME
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BEE27AEE L)  WA303% c NEBCEFNERE
29.0% (ZF=—45 :31.0%) ' BEFEMTE2.0
EEHE -

EEREIRERERESRSBERBE10.010(=

— & 1 BH10.01L) - BERPHRESREBER
B8 ofl( == —F : 5%%%5 ofil) » FEZBBRBE
2 EHERBE18.0I(ZZ=—F : BE15.00L) -
BEAFLF20.0% °

IR
% ,,&%%z SRR NN19.4% 2B ¥5,544FH Bt (=
T BE4644EET) c HEBATEEAE
%%‘52689%(_7_ F:63.2%) - EEEHREE
TSRS > P ER AT EEE
& RIRERENRE » SHBER 2 WARBARR
= o R > RN EMERBYIER  ZBWE
REBEAREREEZEALR - i - SEREHEER
MEMBMER B D - REBBET FHRBAEH LUR
FHZERDE o FR 0 WAIEINI9.4% > MEFZET K
25HME c WERCRBERTEMNKLERIINT :

(LB BEETBEN  BRFZHI)

Net sales HEFH 5,544 4,644 4919 4,759 4,535
Gross profit margin (%) EFIE(%) 213 23.8 232 18.3 15.9
Operating profit (note 1) EERBEET) 564 567 540 354 241
EBITDA (note 1) 8B ERESERRE ) 790 771 770 526 410
Return on total assets (%) (note 2) BEEWRE(%)(H2) 7.5 6.1 6.9 42 1.9
Return on sales (%) (note 2) HERRE%) (H72) 10.1 9.2 8.9 5.9 2.9
Return on equity (%) (note 2) RWEE(%) (M72) 114 9.1 10.8 6.8 3.0
Capital expenditure ERMRH 251 126 76 160 162
Notes: (1) Exclude interest income, rental income, finance cost and loss of — Bfat : (1) T EEFHEWRA > HERA » HEEHRK

inventories due to a fire accident.
(2) Exclude rental income.

KEHEL BB -
(2) TEEFEHEERA -
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis B g 2 i

REVIEW OF BUSINESS AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT
(continued)

Retail and distribution business

Sales of the business amounted to HK$2,496 million (2021: HK$2,705
million). The amount was 31.0% (2021: 36.8%) of the Group'’s total
turnover. Although epidemic in Mainland China was generally stable
in the first half year, some large cities in China have carried out strict
measures to prevent and control the spread of epidemic due to new
cases in individual provinces in the second half year. The Group'’s retail
operation in Mainland China has not returned to the level before the
COVID-19 outbreak. Meanwhile, Hong Kong's retail business faced
the impact of local epidemic and preventive measures in the second
half year, the number of visitors remains low given the impact of the
preventive measures, and thus the Group'’s retail operations in Hong
Kong has not improved significantly. The gross profit margin was
45.3%, a slight increase from last year’s 44.1%. The performance and
the key financial ratios of the business were as follows:

Al K2 7 #

EROERARER#)

SERDHER
MER I EFEABE246FET(ZE=—F /8
#2,705HE ) - KB B AREEALEEIE231.0%

TET -5 :36.8%) c BRLEFHERMEREFKR
HEE > BRTHFEERNETINEEREHRTETS

KETHREBRBRENZEEL  FrEEZATE
:%Eg EJNEAMARGEEF ZRBAKT - B &
EERREEE T ¥ FA M RERGRERNSE
Eﬁ%%zﬁﬂ%ﬁfﬁ YAREBCEBTELER
ﬁﬁ’%a&z% ERZEHA53% > tbEFE244.1%EEH
o WEKZRERETEHELLRRIINT :

(@) the business performance and the key financial ratios were as (a) HEBRBERFTEIHLLZRBIGOT :
follows:
(Amounts expressed in HK$'million, unless specified)
(LBBEETAEN  BREFIFHI)
Net sales HEFH 2,496 2,705 2,709 3,448 3,989
Gross profit margin (%) EFE(%) 453 441 41.5 50.1 474
Sales growth of comparable shops A tt/ERSHER RECR (%) (H5E1)

(%) (note 1) (4.8) (8.4) (17.1) (12.8) (6.9)
Operating profit/(loss) (note 2) SERB/ (BB (HH22) (289) (199) (316) (110) 14
EBITDA (note 2) 8B EREBHEAREZ2) (26) 108 3 (24) 102
Return on total assets (%) (note 3)  BEEWHE(%)(M23) (10.4) (6.9) (11.9) 43) 0.4
Return on sales (%) (note 3) EEWEE(%) (H1i73) (10.9) (6.8) (10.6) (2.9) 0.2
Return on equity (%) (note 3) RUWEE(%) (M73) (73.4) (29.6) (53.4) (8.8) 0.7
Capital expenditure BT 49 57 146 76 9%

Notes: (1) Comparable shops include shops with full year operation HizE (1) FEEFHERZERAN—FHEZ
during the year and the preceding year. FEEBR G
(2) Exclude interest income, rental income and finance cost. 2) TEEFEKA  HEUWARYKE
ﬁ o
(3) Exclude rental income. (3) T EEFEHEZYA -
(b)  the analysis of turnover by major brand was as follows: (b) BRIEREEEINUT :
(HK$'million)
(B EET)
Baleno ek 2,380 2,525 2,484 3,073 3,274
Others Hity 116 180 225 375 715
Total CEH 2,496 2,705 2,709 3,448 3,989

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022



Management’s Discussion and Analysis B2 8 2 il K 247

REVIEW OF BUSINESS AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT ¥MEERARERE)

(continued)

Retail and distribution business (continued) BENOHEER(E)

()  the development in different markets was as follows: () HBHSREBRAOT :
Mainland China Fh B K B

Net sales (HK$'million)
Increase/(decrease) in net sales (%)
Retail floor area (sq. ft.)*

Number of sales associates
Number of outlets*

Hong Kong

Net sales (HK$'million)
Increase/(decrease) in net sales (%)
Retail floor area (sq. ft.)

Number of sales associates *#
Number of outlets *#

Others

WERE(EREET) 1,936 2,184 2,085 2,767 3,414

BEFELEM (D)%) (11) 5 (25) (19) @

DEEEmE(FLR) 1,554,031 1,867,355 1,690,117 1,626,047 1,781,314

EESEE (= 3,319 3,919 3,446 4,182 4,946

FImEAE 1,666 2,026 1,838 2,183 2,499
B8

HERREREET) 552
HEFE2BM (D)%) 6
ZEREER(FHR) 91,597
SXEHA 407
Fm#E 85

521 624 681 575
(17) (8) 18 1
96,516 90,281 87,752 79,822
377 288 571 484
88 83 78 73

Net sales (HK$'million)
Increase/(decrease) in net sales (%)
Retail floor area (sq. ft.)"

Number of sales associates™
Number of outlets*#

HEFHEYEET) 8
HEFEEM (D)%) N/A RiEf
ZEBEBEE(FLR) 11,679
EEBHA 62
PImE A 4

As at the end of the reporting period

# For self-managed stores

A Including self-managed stores, consignment stores and franchise
stores

+ Outlets gradually opened since May 2021 and increased to 4 outlets
in January 2022

REFEHA
HE &
CEEEE - BEERSEEE

JEAER 202145 F B16 FE B R & - 2022
F1HEZ24R
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis B2 8 2 i il & 547

REVIEW OF BUSINESS AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT
(continued)

Income tax expense

Income tax expenses decreased by HK$134 million to HK$12 million
(2021: HK$146 million) mainly due to the additional tax provided for the
tax affairs of certain subsidiaries of the Group last year. Details of the
tax affairs have been set out in note 32(b) to the financial statements.

Share of profit of an associate

Share of profit of an associate accounted for using equity method was
HK$28.8 million (2021: HK$8.8 million), which was mainly contributed
by the gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment.

FINANCIAL CONDITION

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group continued to maintain a sound financial position. The
current ratio, the total bank borrowings and the gearing ratio as at the
year end were 2.1, HK$1,308 million and -0.2 (2021: 2.2, HK$855 million
and -0.2) respectively. Bank borrowings increased during the period
mainly due to the increase in short term investments of the Group. The
gearing ratio refers to the ratio of the total interest-bearing debts, net
of cash and cash equivalents, to the total equity.

During the year, the interest cover, the trade and bills receivables to
turnover and the inventories to turnover were 7 times, 51 days and 113
days (2021: 15 times, 58 days and 119 days) respectively. The trade and
bills receivables to turnover days dropped during the period as sales of
the textile business in the Mainland China improved due to stabilised
epidemic situation. The Group mainly satisfied its funding requirements
with cash inflow from its operating activities and bank borrowings. At
the year end, the cash and cash equivalents, the equity attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the Company and the unutilized banking
facilities were HK$2,364 million, HK$5,437 million and HK$5,530 million
(2021: HK$1,700 million, HK$5,400 million and HK$5,910 million),
respectively.

Capital expenditure

The capital expenditure incurred by the Group during the year was
HK$300 million (2021: HK$183 million). The capital expenditure incurred
by the textile and garment business for the year was HK$251 million
(2021: HK$126 million), of which HK$115 million was for the addition of
plant and machinery for the dyeing, knitting and garment factories and
HK$136 million (2021: HK$29 million) was for “Coal to Gas” conversion
project. For the retail and distribution business, our capital expenditure
incurred for the year amounted to HK$49 million (2021: HK$57 million)
was mainly for the addition of leasehold improvements of the retail
outlets.

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis B2 8 2 il K 247

FINANCIAL CONDITION (continued)

Pledge of assets

No significant assets were pledged as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March
2021.

Contingent liabilities
Details of the contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March
2021 have been set out in note 32 to the financial statements.

Foreign exchange and interest rate risks

The Group continued to adopt a strict and prudent policy in managing
its interest rate and currency exchange risks. The major interest bearing
bank borrowings of the Group were HKD, USD and RMB fixed or
floating rate borrowings with maturity due within one year (2021:
within one year). At the year end, the cash and cash equivalents, debt
instruments at amortised cost and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss were mainly denominated in HKD, RMB and USD. The cash
and cash equivalents were placed as fixed deposits with well established
financial institutions at fixed interest rate with maturity due within one
year (2021: within one year). And, the debt instruments at amortised
cost and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss were mainly
fixed interest rate investments with maturity due within four years or
at perpetuity (2021: within four years or at perpetuity). Following the
containment of the widespread of COVID-19 pandemic, the economic
activities continue to accelerate. It is expected that the USD interest rate
will rise steadily in the coming year. As the global economy is facing
the risk of stagflation, the risk of upsurge of interest rate is expected
to be low. The Group will continue to monitor the interest rate risk and
arrange appropriate financial instruments to reduce its risk whenever
appropriate.

During the year, the major assets, liabilities, revenue, expenses and
procurements of the Group were denominated in HKD, USD, RMB and
YEN (2021: HKD, USD, RMB and YEN) and the Group had arranged
foreign exchange forward contracts to reduce its currency exchange
risk.

HUMAN RESOURCES

At the year end, the Group had 12,489 (2021: 12,536) employees in the
Greater China and Indonesia. The remuneration of the employees was
largely based on industry practice and the performance of individual
employee.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis B2 8 2 i il & 547

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to promoting the long term sustainability of
the environment and communities in which it operates. The Group
has established environmental management system and energy
management system in the textile manufacturing operations in
accordance with international standards ISO 14001:2015 and ISO
50001:2011 respectively. The environmental management system
is reviewed from time to time in order to reduce risks related to
environmental issues. While the energy management system will enable
the Group to achieve continually improvement of energy performance,
and therefore reduce energy cost and greenhouse gas emissions in long
term.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group was in compliance
with the applicable environmental protection laws and regulations in
connection with waste water, greenhouse gas emission, as well as solid
waste generated from its textile manufacturing operations.

Relevant details of the Group’s environmental policies and performance
will be reported in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report of
the Company to be published on the websites of the Company and The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

COMPLIANCE WITH THE APPLICABLE LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group has ensured and continues to ensure full compliance with
the applicable laws and regulations that have significant impact on its
operations, including but not limited to laws and regulations in relation
to environmental protection, product safety and liabilities, customer
rights protection, employment and occupational safety.

The management will monitor the impact for any changes in the

relevant laws and regulations from time to time and seek external
advice if considered necessary.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group has been active in
participating in charitable donation, caring for the needy people and
supporting and sponsoring educational and environmental protection
activities. In addition, we also encourage our employees, customers and
business partners to partake in the aforesaid activities with a view to
developing a better future for our community.

During the year, some of the activities/organisations the Group
participated in/donated or sponsored to were:

(1)

Educational Fund in Dongguan City of Guangdong Province;

(2) The Community Chest of Hong Kong “Love Teeth Day”;

(3) The Community Chest of Hong Kong “Green Low Carbon Day"”;
(4)  Evangelical Lutheran Church Social Service - Hong Kong;

(5) The Hong Kong Council of Social Service “Caring Company”; and
(6) Hong Kong Red Cross “Red Twinkle Star Campaign 2021".

The Group believes that the development of a better future for our
community relies on the participation of people, corporations and the
government. Therefore, we will continue to invest resources in all major
social, educational and environmental protection activities to strive for
a better future for our community.

OUTLOOK

The business environment remains challenging. The COVID-19
outbreak is still not under control in many places of the world and
the implementation of strict preventive measures affects our business,
especially retail and distribution business. Under this environment, the
Group has devoted more resources to e-commerce. During the year,
increasing sale in retail and distribution business is contributed by
online e-commerce sale with satisfactory profit.

In general, some major economies have resumed their economic
activities and the global economy recovered steadily. The Group will
keep maintaining a strong cash flow to meet future challenge and
continue to enhance business market share. During the year, the Group
has established new sale outlets in Indonesia to expand our market
share in Southeast Asia. In the foreseeable future, the Group will
continue to seek opportunities in Southeast Asia in order to diversify
business weight.
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The board of directors (the “Board”) has pleasure in presenting the
report and the audited financial statements of Texwinca Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group’s principal activities during the year consisted of the
production, dyeing and sale of knitted fabric, yarn and garments; the
retailing and distribution of casual apparel and accessories and the
provision of franchise services. There were no significant changes in the
nature of the Group's principal activities during the year.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Further discussion and review on the business activities of the Group as
required by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) of Hong
Kong, including a description of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group; material events that have occurred since the end
of the financial year; an indication of likely future development in
the Group’s business; an analysis of the Group’s performance during
the year using financial key performance indicators; a discussion on
compliance with relevant laws and regulations; and a description of the
Group's environmental policies and performance and corporate social
responsibility are contained in the preceding Chairman’s Statement and
Management’s Discussion and Analysis set out on page 6 and pages 7 to
13, respectively, of this Annual Report. Those discussions form part of
this Report of the Directors.

In addition, details of the Group’s financial risk management are
disclosed in note 37 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 March 2022 and the Group’s
financial position at that date are set out in the financial statements on
pages 48 to 51.

The Board has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”) in
order to allow shareholders of the Group to participate in the Group's
profits whilst retain adequate reserves for the Group’s future growth.
The Group intends to make semiannual distributions which will
depend upon the anticipated consolidated annual profits of the Group,
having taken into consideration certain criteria set out in the Dividend
Policy, including the Group’s financial performance, retained profits,
distributable reserves, expected working capital requirements, capital
expenditure requirements, future expansion plans and any other factors
which the Board deems relevant.

An interim dividend of HK8.0 cents per ordinary share was paid on 14
January 2022. The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend
of HK10.0 cents per ordinary share in respect of the year to shareholders
on the Register of Members on 7 September 2022.
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-

BB

TERAFEENBATARRFEAh2EARE
B BEEFRRERIHE  DRECEXRNBR
RREBERS] EHE o WHMBW THAEERS

controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years,
as extracted from the audited financial statements and restated/

reclassified as appropriate, is set out below. This summary does not &R ZZBD
form part of the audited financial statements.
Results E4

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=t-BHLEE

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

“E-CF ZEC-f ZEZEE ZE-NEF ZE-N\E

HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000

BYFLT  BEFT  E¥Tr  BMFn BETn

REVENUE WA 8,043,172 7,351,573 7,630,306 8,210,053 8,530,806

PROFIT BEFORE TAX BB ANRF 198,518 419,692 270,976 397,753 467,858

Income tax expense FiE (11,809) (145,733) (101,922) (77,336) (151,108)

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REERR 186,709 273,959 169,054 320,417 316,750
Attributable to: HE:

Ordinary equity holders of the Company ~ &A R & BERFEE 191,064 274,213 169,054 325,246 304,328

Non-controlling interests FERER (4,355) (254) - (4,829) 12,422

186,709 273,959 169,054 320,417 316,750

Assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests

gE  BEEFERES

Year ended 31 March
BE=B=T—-HILEE

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
- S ZE--F ZECEF ZE-hE ZE-N\F
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
BYFr  BEFT  E¥TT  BEFn BEFT
TOTAL ASSETS BEE 8,977,748 8740394 8312332 8578956 9,219,807
TOTAL LIABILITIES #aE (3,542,229) (3,340,641) (3,382,119) (3,201,402)  (3,494,818)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS FEERER 1,855 251 - - (475,671)
5437,374 5400004 4930213  5377,554 5,249,318
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES AND CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment, investment
properties and construction in progress of the Group during the
year are set out in notes 12, 13 and 15 to the financial statements,
respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL
There was no movement in the Company’s share capital during the
year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED SECURITIES
OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 38 to the financial statements and in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 March 2022, the Company's reserves available for distribution and/
or distribution in specie amounted to HK$1,176,450,000. In addition,
the Company’s share premium account and capital redemption reserve,
in the total amount of HK$705,060,000, may be distributed in the form
of fully paid bonus shares.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS
During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totaling
HK$521,000 (2021: HK$2,465,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for less than 30% of the total sales for the year. Purchases
from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for less than 30% of
the total purchases for the year.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial
interest in the Group's five largest customers and suppliers.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The bye-laws of the Company provides that each Director or other
officer of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the
assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities which he or she
may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his or
her office or otherwise in relation thereto. In addition, the Company
has maintained appropriate directors and officers liability insurance in
respect of relevant legal actions against the Directors.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive directors:

Poon Bun Chak (Executive Chairman)
Ting Kit Chung (Chief Executive Officer)
Poon Ho Tak

Independent non-executive directors:
Au Son Yiu

Cheng Shu Wing

Law Brian Chung Nin

Mr. Au Son Yiu has indicated that he will not stand for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on 25 August 2022
(2022 AGM") and will retire as an independent non-executive director
in accordance with Clause 87(1) of the Company’s bye-laws after the
conclusion of the 2022 AGM.

Except Mr. Au, all the existing directors will retire and, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting in accordance with Clause 87(1) of the Company’s bye-laws.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from
Mr. Au Son Yiu, Mr. Cheng Shu Wing and Mr. Law Brian Chung Nin, and
still considers them to be independent as at the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The service contracts entered into between the Company and each
of the executive directors as listed above may be terminated by
either party by giving not less than three months’ written notice or
compensation in lieu.

Save as disclosed above, no director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Company’s board
of directors with reference to directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the results of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 34 to the financial statements, no director
nor a connected entity of a director had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance to the business of the Group to which the Company, or any
of the Company’s subsidiaries was a party during the year.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Executive directors

Mr. Poon Bun Chak, aged 73, is the Executive Chairman of the Company.
He is responsible for overseeing the planning and development of the
Group. He founded the Group in 1975 and has more than 50 years’
experience in the textile field. He is the father of Mr. Poon Ho Tak, an
Executive Director of the Company, and the father-in-law of Mr. Wu Chi
Hang, a senior management of the Group.

Mr. Ting Kit Chung, aged 66, is the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. He is responsible for the general administration and financial
management of the Group. He joined the Group in 1991 and has more
than 10 years' banking experience. He holds a Bachelor of Arts degree
from The University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Poon Ho Tak, aged 45, is an Executive Director of the Company.
After his studies at The University of New South Wales, Australia,
he joined the Group as a management trainee in 2003. In October
2017, he was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company
and is responsible for overseeing the overall general management of
the textile business. He is a son of Mr. Poon Bun Chak, the Executive
Chairman of the Company and a brother-in-law of Mr. Wu Chi Hang, a
senior management of the Group.

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Au Son Yiu, aged 76, has extensive experience in the securities
industry. He is a director of The Association of Former Council Members
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He was an independent
non-executive director of CEC International Holdings Limited (1999-
2021), a company listed on the Stock Exchange. In addition, he was a
consultant to Dao Heng Securities Limited (1989-2008), a member of
the Election Committee for the financial services subsector election for
the 1998 Legislative Council, a former deputy chairman of The Hong
Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited (1992-1994) and a former
council member of the Stock Exchange (1988-1994). He was appointed as
an independent non-executive director of the Company in July 1995 and
will retire as an independent non-executive director of the Company
at the conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting on 25
August 2022.

Mr. Cheng Shu Wing, aged 72, is a director of Techluxe Investments
Limited. He holds a Bachelor of Business Administration degree from
The Chinese University of Hong Kong and has more than 30 years’
experience in the banking and securities industries in Hong Kong.
He was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company in July 1992.

Mr. Law Brian Chung Nin, aged 64, has worked for several major
international accounting and financial institutions. Besides, he possesses
extensive experience in auditing, corporate finance and private equity.
Mr. Law graduated from University of Toronto in 1980 with a degree
in Bachelor of Commerce. He has been a member of the Chartered
Professional Accountants of Ontario, Canada since 1983. He was
appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company in
April 2011.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT (continued)

Senior management

Mr. Chan Chi Hon, aged 59, joined the Group in 1997 and is the Group’s
Financial Controller and Company Secretary. Mr. Chan holds a Master’s
degree in commerce from The University of New South Wales, Australia,
and is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a certified practising accountant of the CPA Australia.
He has more than 35 years’ experience in auditing and accounting.

Mr. Ng Mo Ping, aged 56, is the director and General Manager of a
major subsidiary of the Group's textile business. He joined the Group in
1988 and has more than 34 years’' experience in the textile industry.

Mr. Wu Chi Hang, aged 38, joined the Group in 2013 and is a director
of the Group’s retail operations. Mr. Wu holds a Master of Science in
Engineering Business Management from University of Warwick in the
United Kingdom. He has more than 14 years’ experience in apparel
retailing and textile field. He is a son-in-law of Mr. Poon Bun Chak, the
Executive Chairman of the Company and a brother-in-law of Mr. Poon
Ho Tak, the Executive Director of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2022, the interests and short positions of the directors
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code"”) set out Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), were as
follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

Name of directors

Capacity

Executive directors:

HITES

Poon Bun Chak Founder of a family trust
EWE KIREE 2RI A

Ting Kit Chung Beneficial owner

THER BRES

BEENEREEAEBRE#®)

EREEAR

BRESELE - AT A AEEBRERLTW
& o BR—ANECFMAREE o REEFERMH
FREASEMMET S0 YABTESHMAS:
REERBENEHMLAEEE - HABA=THFW
FERTEETEER -

KREFRE - B+7AE  AEEZHAERIRNNE
NEZEBRAKE - WR—NWNANFENARER -
BEE=TNFHBMELR -

HEELE =+ \m - AEETEERES - TR
TE-ZEMARER - HELRFAREERAZT
EEEEEBETEN REFTETEFNROHZTER
ML - RAADAMTEEBWELE 2 LB
RAEDAHTESEERBLEZIRRK

EERROREBERD 2ESRKXR

RIBZZFZA=1—H  A0FARBE(EZRY
BIRGIE3S2ETRFNELM - SURBCHTE
Z EMRANT ERRA DM+ Ez( ERBETA
EFETREXZNRETR)(REFR DBAE
RNERBZT - FESEARAREBEEE(EE
R 5 R BERGDEXVED) IR0 KRR (0 2

HERAAMT :

Percentage of
the Company's
issued share
capital

(Note 2)
(RN
ERITRE
BAR

(Hta£2)

Number of
ordinary
BT E

1 698,446,104 50.55
6,100,000 0.44
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Notes:

1. Mr. Poon Bun Chak is a founder of a family trust and is deemed to be
interested in 698,446,104 Shares held under the family trust. For details,
please refer to the “Substantial shareholders’ and other person’s interests
in shares and underlying shares” under the Report of the Directors.

2. The issued share capital of the Company is 1,381,696,104 shares as at 31
March 2022.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2022, none of the directors had
registered an interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares
of the Company or any of its associated corporations that was required
to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in the Company granted to any directors
or their respective spouses or minor children, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangement to enable the directors to acquire such rights in any
other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSON’S
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2022, the following interests of 5% or more of the issued
share capital of the Company were recorded in the register of interests
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO:
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSON’'S FERRERKHMA THARMD RIEER M E
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (%)

(continued)

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company: RAAREBRZHR :

Percentage of
Number of  the Company’s

ordinary issued share
Capacity Notes shares held capital
(Note 3)
LER NG|
B8 BRITRAE
ZEREE Ba®
(Ha£3)
UBS Trustees (B.V.l.) Limited Trustee 1 698,446,104 (L) 50.55
FEA
Poon’s Holdings Limited Through controlled corporation 1 698,446,104 (L) 50.55
BRERERAR EIEGEE
Farrow Star Limited Directly owned 1 698,446,104 (L) 50.55
HiEES
Pandanus Associates Inc. Through controlled corporations 2 110,544,000 (L) 8.00
EIEGEE
Pandanus Partners L.P. Through controlled corporations 2 110,544,000 (L) 8.00
EZEFEE
FIL Limited Through controlled corporations 2 110,544,000 (L) 8.00
EIEHEE
Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. Approved lending agent 70,649,283 (L) 5.11
REEHREA 70,649,283 (P) 5.11
Fidelity Funds Beneficial owner 69,148,000 (L) 5.00
BREE
L - Long position L—1FE
P - Lending pool P— B &L HIIR 17
Notes: Vo2
1. UBS Trustees (B.V.1.) Limited, as a trustee of a family trust founded by Mr. 1. UBS Trustees (B.V.1.) Limited (1E 5 K k15 L B9 =
Poon Bun Chak, holds the entire issued share capital of Poon’s Holdings FEA 0 ZIEiERBENEE LR ) iEEELEAUBS
Limited through its nominee, UBS Nominees Limited. Poon’s Holdings Nominees Limited## BB 1ZRAIR X G256
Limited holds the entire issued share capital of Farrow Star Limited. Farrow B EITIRA o B ZRER A G5B Farrow Star
Star Limited in turn holds 698,446,104 shares of the Company. Therefore, Limited#9 2 585 Z/TIZ 7K o Farrow Star Limited#
each of Mr. Poon Bun Chak, UBS Trustees (B.V.l.) Limited, Poon’s Holdings MIEE L 698,446, 1048 /R (7 o F Ut - EHESL
Limited and Farrow Star Limited is deemed to be interested in 698,446,104 4~ UBS Trustees (B.V.1.) Limited » EFRIZRER L
Shares held by Farrow Star Limited. & R Farrow Star Limited?9# 8 3 # & Farrow Star
Limitedfr#5 B #7698,446, 1048 IZ 17 BY1E 7 °
2. Pandanus Associates Inc. has the entire control of Pandanus Partners 2. Pandanus Associates Inc. # /& Pandanus Partners
L.P. which in turn owns 37.01% in FIL Limited. FIL Limited is deemed to L.P. )2 Z812 %7 » Pandanus Partners L.P.E 1+
be interested in 110,544,000 shares of the Company through a series of BFIL Limited 37.01%B9f& 17 ° FIL Limitedi&E#8—%&
subsidiaries. Therefore, each of Pandanus Associates Inc., Pandanus Partners FIRTE 2 AR B HEF AR L Al 110,544,000 4% 1% 7 #9
L.P. and FIL Limited is deemed to be interested in 110,544,000 shares of the FEix o It - Pandanus Associates Inc. » Pandanus
Company. Partners L.P. B FIL Limited ¥ # 12 5 #E & & 2 &
110,544,000/ R 17 #9125 ©

3. The issued share capital of the Company is 1,381,696,104 shares as at 31 3 R-CFBZZF=ZF=+—H AR EZTREE
March 2022. 1,381,696, 104/ °

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2022, no person, other than  BRENFIIEEEN RZE-_—_F=A=+—0 " #
the directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in the section A+ (BRAATESHEZOFMN Lk EENIE
“Directors’ interests and short positions in shares and underlying shares” B RABBERMD ZEREEXE | —FHIIMNREATRMO D
above, had registered an interest and short position in the shares or  {HEERH T » HEEBER(GES R PEIEFI)E336(F
underlying shares of the Company that was required to be recorded  FLiR#E2ERZEAA o

pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed the continuing connected transactions set out below, disclosed
in compliance with the requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules, and have confirmed that these continuing connected transactions
were entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(ii)  on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the
Group than terms available to or from independent third parties;
and

(iii)  in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on

terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Ernst & Young, the Company’s independent auditor, were engaged to
report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information and with reference to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Ernst
& Young have issued their unqualified letter containing their findings
and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed below by the Group in accordance with relevant clauses of
Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

Details of non-exempt continuing connected transactions:

In accordance with Rule 14A.49 of the Listing Rules, the Group is
required to disclose certain details of its non-exempt continuing
connected transactions in compliance with Rules 14A.71 and 14A.72.

(1)  Lease of a property as a retail outlet from a connected person

On 17 January 2020, the Group entered into a lease agreement
with Mountain Rich Limited (“MRL"), a company controlled
and owned by Mr. Poon Bun Chak, an executive director and
controlling shareholder of the Company, to lease Tianjin Bin
Jiang Fu Shi Commercial Building at 282-286 Bin Jiang Road,
He Ping Qu, Tianjin, China from MRL as a retail outlet for the
retail and distribution business of the Group for a term of two
years commencing from 1 April 2020 at the monthly rents of
RMB1,329,900.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Details of non-exempt continuing connected transactions: (continued)

(2) Lease of a property as a director’s quarter from a connected
person
On 17 January 2020, the Group entered into a lease agreement
with Latex (Hong Kong) Limited (“Latex”), a company wholly
owned by Mr. Poon Bun Chak, an executive director and
controlling shareholder of the Company, to lease 22 Perkins Road,
Jardine’s Lookout, Hong Kong from Latex as a director’s quarter
of the Group for a term of two years commencing from 1 April
2020 at the monthly rent of HK$400,000.

(3) Lease of a property as a training center from a connected person
On 17 January 2020, the Group entered into a lease agreement
with Winson Link Enterprises Limited (“WLEL"), a company
wholly-owned by Mr. Poon Bun Chak, an executive director
and controlling shareholder of the Company, to lease Room
4207B, 42nd Floor, Metroplaza Tower Il, 223 Hing Fong Road,
Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong as a training centre
of the Group and a car parking space at Ground Floor, LMK
Development Estate, 10-16 Kwai Ting Road, Kwai Chung, New
Territories, Hong Kong from WLEL for a term of two years
commencing from 1 April 2020 at the monthly rent of HK$67,240.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Board, at least 25% of the Company’s total
issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their re-appointment as
auditor of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Poon Bun Chak
Executive Chairman

Hong Kong, 17 June 2022
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The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance and enhancing corporate value and accountability. The
principles as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code")
contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules have been adopted to
shape our corporate governance structure. This report describes how
the principles of the CG Code have been applied during the year ended
31 March 2022 under different aspects.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CG CODE

In the opinion of the directors, the Company has complied with all the
code provisions of the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules throughout the financial year, except for the following deviation:

Under code provision F.2.2 (Note) of the CG Code, the chairman of the
Board should attend the annual general meeting of the Company.

The chairman of the Board has delegated the duty of attending the
annual general meeting to one of the executive directors of the
Company. The chairman considers the executive director a suitable
person for taking up such duty as the executive director has good
knowledge in each operating segment of the Group.

Note: The code provision numbers in the CG Code have been re-arranged with
effect from 1 January 2022. This code provision was formerly E.1.2.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board composition

As of the date of this annual report, the Board is comprised of six
members including three executive directors and three independent
non-executive directors (“INEDs"”). The names of directors and their
positions are as follows:

Position

Bty

Name of Directors

EEpS

Executive directors:
HITES :

Poon Bun Chak
EWIE

Ting Kit Chung
THR

Poon Ho Tak

EERE

HATERE

THARE

Independent non-executive directors:
BN FHITES :

Au Son Yiu

B4R

Cheng Shu Wing

RS

Law Brian Chung Nin

EIEF

Mr. Poon Ho Tak is a son of Mr. Poon Bun Chak.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board composition (continued)

The biographical details of all the directors which include relationships
among members of the Board are set out on pages 18 to 19.

Mr. Au Son Yiu has indicated that he will not stand for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on 25 August 2022
(2022 AGM") and will retire as an independent non-executive director
in accordance with Clause 87(1) of the Company’s bye-laws after the
conclusion of the 2022 AGM.

Except for Mr. Au, all the existing INEDs of the Company have a term
of one year, and they are subject to retirement and re-election at the
Company'’s annual general meeting in accordance with Clause 87(1) of
the Company'’s bye-laws.

Executive chairman and chief executive officer

The Executive Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are Mr. Poon
Bun Chak and Mr. Ting Kit Chung respectively; therefore the roles of
the Executive Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are segregated.
The primary role of the Executive Chairman is to provide leadership
for the Board and to ensure that it works effectively in discharging its
responsibilities. The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the day-to-
day management of the Group's business.

Independence and qualification of independent non-executive directors
The Company has three INEDs representing more than one third of
its Board, which is in compliance with Rule 3.10(1) and Rule 3.10A of
the Listing Rules. All the INEDs possess a wide range of business and
financial experience. One of the INEDs, Mr. Law Brian Chung Nin,
possesses professional accounting qualification in full compliance with
Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. In accordance with Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules, all the INEDs have confirmed their independence for the
year ended 31 March 2022.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Role of the Board

The overall management of the Group is vested with the Board and the
day-to-day management of the business is delegated to the executive
management.

The principal roles of the Board are:

(1)  to lay down the Group's objectives, strategies, policies and
business plan;

(2)  to monitor the performance of each operating segment;

(3) to set appropriate policies to manage risks in pursuit of the
Group's strategic objectives;

(4)  to authorise material borrowings and expenditures;

(5) to prepare and approve financial statements, annual and interim
reports, and make judgments that are fair and reasonable in the
preparation of the Company’s disclosure statements;

(6) to perform corporate governance functions in accordance
with the CG Code, including the determination of the Group's
corporate governance policies, and the review and monitoring of
the corporate governance practices of the Group; and

(7)  to oversee and review the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group through review of the
reports from Audit Committee.

Directors’ insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover for the
directors in connection with the discharge of their responsibilities.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Induction and continuous professional development

Newly appointed directors will receive a comprehensive, formal and
tailored induction on the first occasion of their appointment so as to
ensure that they have appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Company as well as the obligation and responsibility
of being a director under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory
requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. Reading materials on the latest development of applicable
laws, rules and regulations will be provided to directors where
appropriate. All directors are also encouraged to attend relevant
training courses at the Company’s expense.

According to the records maintained by the Company, the directors
received the following training during the financial year:

Directors
=
Executive directors HITES
Poon Bun Chak EBWIE
Ting Kit Chung THR
Poon Ho Tak EEE
Independent non-executive directors BIYFHITES
Au Son Yiu ELE
Cheng Shu Wing I EES
Law Brian Chung Nin EE
A: Reading materials relating to the Group, general business or director’s

duties and responsibilities, etc.

Board process

The Company has in place clear board process. Regular board meetings
are scheduled at least four times per year. Agendas and accompanying
board papers are served to all directors at least five business days in
advance of each board meeting to facilitate informed discussion and
decision making. Directors may include any matters they wish to discuss
in the agendas. Minutes of the Board and committee meetings are
prepared and kept by the company secretary of the Company, and are
open for inspection by directors upon request. All directors have access
to the advice and services of the company secretary, and are allowed to
seek external professional advice if needed.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Annual general meeting and board meetings

The Company held an annual general meeting and four regular
board meetings during the year ended 31 March 2022. Attendance of
individual Board members at the meetings is set out below:

Directors

5=

Executive directors HITES

Poon Bun Chak EWE

Ting Kit Chung THER

Poon Ho Tak BEE
Independent non-executive directors BYFHITES
Au Son Yiu 23

Cheng Shu Wing LSS

Law Brian Chung Nin EME

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three board committees to oversee certain
aspects of the Company’s affairs. Each board committee has its own
terms of reference relating to its authority and duties, which have been
approved by the Board and are reviewed periodically. The terms of
reference of each board committee are available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

Audit committee

The Company has established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. The
Audit Committee consists of three INEDs, namely Mr. Law Brian Chung
Nin, Mr. Au Son Yiu, and Mr. Cheng Shu Wing. The Audit Committee
is chaired by Mr. Law Brian Chung Nin, a qualified accounting
professional.

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022

Ezg®m)

BRREAFAGRESER:
BE-_Z-__F=F=+—HLEFER  FTORET
—ABRRAFEASERTIAEESERSE - BUES
ERECERHELEHINT

Attended/Number of meetings held
during the tenure of office

RERRHE BITEBRY

Annual General
Meeting
RRBERS

Regular Board
Meeting
EEgERS

4/4
4/4
4/4

0/1
m”m
m”m

4/4
4/4
4/4

m”m
m”m
m”m

ExZETE
EEECOHY = EESEESUERAQAAER S E
21 - REZZEEHESERTATAERKE
B ZEZERUHETERTLERER - 8EF
ZEESEHRICETHBRAD T R

EREES

RATBRETRAEI22ME RL—BREES
(EREEE)) - EREESNRERE=NBYHE
HITES DRI BEMFELE - BRIBEERERR
K BNFELEABREESTR  UHEEEXS
B



Corporate Governance Report ¥ EQIR &

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Audit committee (continued)
The principal duties of the Audit Committee include:

(a)

monitoring the preparation of the financial statements;

(b)

monitoring and assessing the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group;

() monitoring the performance of the Group’s internal audit team;

(d)  considering the appointment and removal of the external auditor,
the audit fee and the terms of engagement; and
(e) reviewing and commenting on the connected transactions of the

Group.

The Audit Committee held six meetings during the year ended 31 March
2022 to review the followings:

(a)

the risk management and internal control of the Group;

(b)

the effectiveness of internal audit function;

() the financial reporting process and the financial statements of the
Group; and

(d)

the continuing connected transactions pursuant to the Listing
Rules.

The attendance of Audit Committee meetings during the year ended 31
March 2022 is set out below:

Members of the Audit Committee

ERZEERE

Law Brian Chung Nin R
Au Son Yiu B4R
Cheng Shu Wing WAL
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Remuneration committee

The Company has established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) in compliance with Rule 3.25 of the
Listing Rules. The Remuneration Committee consists of three INEDs and
one executive director, namely Mr. Au Son Yiu, Mr. Cheng Shu Wing,
Mr. Law Brian Chung Nin and Mr. Ting Kit Chung, respectively. The
Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. Au Son Yiu.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendation to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure
for the remuneration of directors and senior management as well
as the compensations payable to directors. The remuneration of the
directors and senior management is determined with reference to
the performance of each individual and the Company, the market
conditions and the industry practice. Besides, the Remuneration
Committee will ensure that no director or any of his associate will be
involved in the determination of his own remuneration.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Remuneration Committee
held three meetings to make recommendations to the Board on the
terms of executive director’s contract, directors’ fee as well as the
remuneration and performance bonus of executive directors and senior
management.

The attendance of Remuneration Committee meetings during the year
ended 31 March 2022 is set out below:

Members of the Remuneration Committee

EEZE® @A)

FMESE
AATCIREHRAIEISGE R -—FHESS
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Attended/Number of meetings held

during the tenure of office

RERRHREBITERRE

FMESERE

Au Son Yiu 23
Cheng Shu Wing LSS
Law Brian Chung Nin EME
Ting Kit Chung THER

Details of the remuneration of each director and the members of the
senior management by band for the year ended 31 March 2022 are
set out in note 7 to the financial statements contained in this Annual
Report.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Nomination committee

The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) consists of three INEDs and one executive director, namely
Mr. Cheng Shu Wing, Mr. Au Son Yiu, Mr. Law Brian Chung Nin and Mr.
Ting Kit Chung, respectively. The Nomination Committee is chaired by
Mr. Cheng Shu Wing.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for making recommendation
of candidates with appropriate experience and qualification to the
Board; reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board;
reviewing nomination policy for directors and Board diversity policy;
and assessing independence of INEDs.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Nomination Committee held
one meeting to review the structure, size and composition (including
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board ensuring that the Board
has a balance of expertise, skills and experience; to review nomination
policy for directors and Board diversity policy; to review and recommend
the re-appointment of directors standing for re-election at the
Company’s 2021 annual general meeting; and to assess independence
of the INEDs.

The attendance of Nomination Committee meeting during the year
ended 31 March 2022 is set out below:

Members of the Nomination Committee

REZEENE

Cheng Shu Wing WAL
Au Son Yiu B4R
Law Brian Chung Nin R
Ting Kit Chung TiEm

TEERERE

EEZEE@W)

REEE®

AARREEEG(REZEE NWRERE=(S
URHTEER—UHTES - HBABHRLE -
BEBEE  BIPFRERTRAKLE - BRI EE
BREZEEENEE -

REZESEENESTRSBELRREKRZIREA
RHER - %ﬁé%ﬁm g~ ABAAR - BHE
EREERRESERES TR UK LB
HITESWEILM -

RBE-ZZ--F=A=1+-HLFER BREEE

SRET-REE  UEHESTORS - ABNE
R (BERRE - AERER)  BRESSEEAN -

BEREHTE  SHESRABRRESEERES
TALHE  BEREBRENZARA DA T —F
RRBFAE LEREFTCEERTEBILIFNTE
BHBIUE -

REEZEENEE-_T-_F=/A=+—-HLFER
ZEREERERIMT

Attended/Number of meetings held

during the tenure of office
REHREE BITESBRE
17

171

17

11
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has undertaken the corporate governance function to
maintain effective corporate governance within the Group. The
corporate governance duties of the Board have been set out in the
terms of reference of the Board on corporate governance functions
which are available on the website of the Company.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Board reviewed and
monitored the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance, training and continuous professional development of
directors; approved the adoption of human rights policy; and reviewed
the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this
report.

DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the Company’s code of
conduct for dealings in securities of the Company by the directors. Based
on specific enquiry of the Company’s directors, they have all complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the
financial year.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, Mr. Chan Chi Hon, is responsible for facilitating
the board process, as well as communications among directors, with
shareholders and management. The Company Secretary’s biography
has been set out in the “Biographical details of Directors and Senior
Management” section of the Report of the Directors.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company Secretary

undertook over 15 hours of professional training to upgrade his skills
and knowledge.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 March 2022, fees paid/payable for audit and
non-audit services by the Company to its principal external auditor were
as follows:

Services

R

Audit services rendered SRR METT RS
Review of continuing connected transactions EHRBERER S

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board is responsible for preparing the financial statements of the
Company. The statement from the external auditor of the Company
about their responsibilities has been set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 39 to 47.

The directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern.

BREEME
RBE_Z-__F=A=+—-HLFER  £AFAE
/A HEEIBZBER N E B E R E
=

Fee paid/payable
e/ BNEA
HK$°000

BT T

2,820

2,829
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems. Such systems are designed to mitigating
risks inherent in our business faced by the Group to an acceptable
level, but not eliminating all risks. Hence, such systems can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement in
financial information or financial loss.

Through the Audit Committee, the Board reviews the effectiveness and
efficiency of risk management and internal control systems annually.
To achieve this, the Audit Committee, acting on behalf of the Board,
oversees the following process:

(1) regular reviews of the principal business risks and the control
measures to mitigate, reduce or transfer such risks;

(2)  risk-based audits on the major operating activities by the internal
audit team; and

(3) discussion with the external auditor matters on auditing, internal
control and financial report.

For the risk assessment and control activities, “top-down” approach
is complemented by the “bottom-up” aspects and the involvement of
operating units in identifying operation risks. Management conducts
an internal control self-assessment annually. Department heads have to
complete relevant control self-assessment questionnaires and confirm
to the management that appropriate internal control policies and
procedures have been established and properly complied with.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL (continued)

Risk Management and Internal Control Framework Diagram:

The Board
=g
. Top.-dow.n. . Sets the Group's
Oversight, identification,
assessment and mitigation

of risk at corporate level

Responsible for the
Group's risk management
and internal controls

Identification, assessment management and
and mitigation of risk at
operation level

Rt BT RERRRER
R ARG

Risk identification, assessment and
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system
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External Auditor
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risk management and
internal control systems
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During the year, the internal audit team, which reports directly to the
Audit Committee, has reviewed the risk management and internal
controls of each major operating segment of the Group and has
reported its findings to the Audit Committee. The Board and the Audit
Committee are satisfied with the effectiveness and efficiency of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group.

INSIDE INFORMATION POLICY

The Company has established policy for ensuring that inside information
is disseminated to the public in an equal and timely manner in
accordance with applicable laws and regulations. Senior management
of the corporate affairs and financial control functions of the Group
are delegated with responsibilities to control and monitor the proper
procedures to be observed on the disclosure of inside information.
Access to inside information is at all times confined to relevant senior
management and on “as needed” basis, until proper disclosure or
dissemination of inside information in accordance with applicable
laws and regulations. Relevant personnel and other professional
parties involved are reminded to preserve confidentiality of the inside
information until it is publicly disclosed.
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WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

The Group has adopted a whistleblowing policy to facilitate employees
and other stakeholders reporting on any suspected misconduct or
malpractice within the Group in confidence and without fear of reprisal
or victimisation. The policy is available on the website of the Company.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) setting out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board.
The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance. In designing
the Board’s composition, Board diversity has been considered from a
number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments will be based
on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

NOMINATION POLICY FOR DIRECTORS

The nomination policy sets out the nomination procedures and
the process and criteria to select and recommend candidates for
directorship. The policy is included in the term of reference of the
Nomination Committee.

According to the nomination policy, the Nomination Committee would
select the candidates based on the objective criteria, including without
limitation, age, skills, knowledge, experience, expertise, professional
and educational qualifications, background and the benefit of
diversity as set out under the Board Diversity Policy. The Nomination
Committee would also take into account whether the candidate can
devote sufficient time to the Company, and in case of INEDs, would
also consider the independence requirements under the Listing Rules.
The Nomination Committee monitors the implementation of the
nomination policy and will review and recommend any revisions to
the Board for consideration and approval, when necessary, to enhance
effectiveness.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 March 2022, there was no change in the
Company’s constitutional documents. A copy of bye-laws of the
Company is available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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SHAREHOLDERS'’ RIGHTS

Convening of special general meetings on requisition by shareholders
According to Clause 58 of Company’s bye-laws, shareholders holding,
at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one-tenth (10%)
of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by
written requisition to the Board or the secretary of the Company, to
require a special general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such
meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting, the requisitionists themselves may do so in
accordance with the provisions of Section 74(3) of the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda (as amended) (the “Companies Act"”).

Procedures for putting forward proposals at general meetings by
shareholders

Shareholder(s) is/are entitled to put forward a proposal (which may
properly be put to the meeting) for consideration at a general meeting
of the Company when (i) the shareholder(s) representing not less than
one-twentieth (5%) of the total voting rights of the Company on the
date of the requisition; or (ii) the requisition is made by not less than
100 members holding shares in the Company.

The requisition specifying the proposal, duly signed by the shareholders
concerned, together with a statement with respect to the matter
referred to in the proposal must be deposited at the registered office
of the Company. The Company would take appropriate actions and
make necessary arrangements, and the shareholders concerned would
be responsible for the expenses incurred in giving effect thereto in
accordance with the requirements under Sections 79 and 80 of the
Companies Act once valid documents are received.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

We strive to provide quality information to shareholders as well as
our many stakeholders regarding the latest developments whilst
ensuring that relevant information is equally and simultaneously
provided and accessible to all interested parties. The Company has
adopted a Shareholder Communication Policy which provides the
below communication channels to shareholders so as to enable them
to engage actively with the Company and exercise their right as
shareholders in an informed manner.

(1)  Meeting shareholders in annual general meetings (“AGM")
to explain results of the Company and answer questions of
shareholders;

(2) Disseminating corporate information to shareholders according
to the rules and regulations;
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

(3) Meeting fund managers to promote the business of the Company;
and

(4) Publishing the background, the latest development and the
results of the Group on the Company’s website.

The Company ensures that shareholders’ views are communicated to
the Board. The chairman of the AGM proposes separate resolutions
for each issue to be considered. Members of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee also attend the
AGM to answer questions from shareholders.

AGM proceedings are reviewed from time to time to ensure that the
Company follows the best corporate governance practices. The notice
of AGM is distributed to all shareholders at least 20 clear business days
prior to the AGM and the accompanying circular also sets out details of
each proposed resolution and other relevant information as required
under the Listing Rules. The chairman of the AGM exercises his power
under the Company’s bye-laws to put each proposed resolution to
the vote by way of a poll. The procedures for conducting a poll are
explained at the meeting prior to the polls being taken. Voting results
are posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange on
the day of the AGM.

Making enquiries to the Board

The Group values feedback from shareholders on its efforts to
promote transparency and foster investor relationships. Comments and
suggestions to the Board or to the Company are welcome to contact the
Company Secretary.

Designated contact information
Texwinca Holdings Limited

Address 16th Floor, Metroplaza Tower Il, 223 Hing Fong Road,
Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong

Telephone (852) 2610 7116/ (852) 2610 7257

Fax (852) 2233 1116/ (852) 2233 1257

Email IR@texwinca.com
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EY:x

To the shareholders of
Texwinca Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Texwinca
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set
out on pages 48 to 168, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 March 2022, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 March 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as
a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide
a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our
description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that
context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to
respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters
below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BMEROMAEERESETER

Provision for inventories

FERE

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had inventories, net of
provision, of HK$2,484,148,000, which comprised textile
and apparel products. The consumption of inventories
is subject to changing consumer demands and market
trends which increased the level of judgement involved
in estimating inventory provisions. Judgements were
required to assess the appropriate level of provision for
items which might be ultimately obsoleted or sold below
cost as a result of a reduction in customers’ demand. Such
judgements included management’s expectations for
future sales net of estimated selling expenses.

RZZZ—F=A=+—0 B5EENREEEAEERYE
2,484,148,0007T - EFEEHBRBLEER - TEMNHEES
FINEFEREMGBBENME  BERESHITFERER
BROHEBRIES - SHMEUERZEFERFD Mo BHRAB
RRUBEREAAEENFEEFESBEREZEHE - ZSHE
BEEEBHINMRHEEEHBNARREETED -

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022

We obtained an understanding of the inventory
provision policy adopted by management. We also
evaluated whether the inventory provision was
made in accordance with the policy. We examined
management’s estimation regarding the obsolescence
percentage applied based on past experience,
subsequent sales and usage status, and market-specific
considerations.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued) FARETEEHE)
Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
BREETER PSRN IEERRENER
Relevant disclosures about the significant accounting We tested the underlying data used by management
judgement and estimates, the provision for inventories to calculate the inventory obsolescence provisions by
and the balance of inventories are included in notes 3, 6 reviewing the inventory ageing analysis and checking,
and 20 to the consolidated financial statements. on a sample basis, the subsequent sales and usage.

FENERSTHABRME - FEBEREHRNERIKESH BEMERFERESITRMEHREERER - LUARE
RERSMEIRKMES ~ 65220 ERUGEFEHRERENEREE -

We tested the resultant calculation by assessing the
calculation criteria and recalculating the provision for
the inventories based on those criteria.

HMUAHEFER AN EER W U ZE LN ERTE LU
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We also assessed management’s calculation of net
realisable value by checking to the latest or subsequent
selling prices.

BT REsiPEREeE  UIMEEEN 2R EEN
& e
Recoverability of trade receivables
FEW AR HY AT BT 1
As at 31 March 2022, the carrying amount of trade We tested the controls over the Group’s collection
receivables before loss allowance for impairment of trade procedures and the Group's estimation of expected
receivables amounted to HK$935,897,000 and the loss credit losses. We evaluated the appropriateness of
allowance for impairment of trade receivables amounted the allowance of doubtful debts recognised by test
to HK$29,346,000. checking the historical cash collection trend, subsequent

settlements, ageing analysis of the trade receivables
and considered whether the historical loss rates
were appropriately adjusted based on the current
local economic environment and forward-looking
information by evaluating the correlation of market
information used. We also considered the adequacy of
the Group’s disclosure about the degree of estimation
involved in arriving at the allowance amount.

REBZZHF=ZRB=+—H  BURRFREURERRER AR BEMY SEEWRSERFNEZNER BSEEHEREES

AT BRTE {84 78 %5 935,897,000 7T + i FE UK BRFRRL (B 18 2K 58 BHEFHETIE - RMECERIRRBHENREMETT

% #78129,346,0007T ° il EREAEBREBERSWEBE - AREM - BUER
RV ERE 24T AR ARIE B AT 5 KB R IE R ATRE 1 SR E
LEBEUZERECHFHRENAER - RNTFEZER &
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Independent Auditor’'s Report & 37 #Z 2L Ef 3R &5

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued) BAREBTEEE)

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BRETEE EMFF R NAEEBERTSHE

During the year, management used a provision matrix

to calculate expected credit losses (“ECLs"”) for trade
receivables. The matrix was initially based on the
Group's historical default rates, and specific factors that
management considered in the estimation of the rates
including the type of customers, ageing of the balances
and recent historical payment patterns. Management
then calibrated the matrix to adjust the historical credit
loss experience with forward-looking information, such as
forecasted economic conditions. We focused on this area
because of a high level of management’s judgement and
the materiality of the amounts involved.

REE EEECABBEEUGERRERINEAREESD
B ZERYLSRE BEXEENERENREH  MEZRER
R ERZENFERZAERTEE - SRNRERIA
HHELARES - EEEEARENKER RSB EER
BRZEEUARELEEEE - ARSI REEBAFHEX
FPHHE R BEASHE - MEMNSTRALEEE -

Relevant disclosures about the significant accounting
judgement and estimates and the provision for
impairment of trade receivables are included in notes 3
and 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

FEUERR M E B R s BB ERENEREIRESIEHR®
REMEIRERMEEIR21 ©
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Independent Auditor’s Report & 7 & E A R &

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

BREETER

Impairment assessment of right-of-use assets (“ROU assets”)
RREEER B ETS

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had right-of-use assets
of HK$524,651,000. The Group’s management performed
impairment assessment of right-of-use assets for identified

retail outlets that continued to underperform by
estimating the recoverable amount of their right-of-use
assets based on value in use calculation. An impairment
of approximately HK$40,769,000 has been recorded for
the year ended 31 March 2022 to reduce the carrying
amounts of certain right-of-use assets to their estimated
recoverable amounts. Management considers each retail
shop as an individual cash-generating unit as each shop
generates independent cash flows, which are largely
independent of the cash flows generated by other assets.
The Group determines impairment provision based on
the cash flow forecasts of loss-making retail shops. The
evaluation process is inherently subjective and dependent
on a number of estimates.

RIB-Z—F=ZA=1+-—0 FEENEAEEEABYE
524,651,000t - ZEBMNEEEBBREEAEETE GG
HEAREENTHRESHE  BRERRTENCRESERE
WY ERREEETRETG BE-T-—F=A=+—H
IEEE - B ABELQEE40,769,0007T @ MG HE L (S ARES
ENREERLZHMATATKRESHE - EEESSETEERH
BE—EBUNBRESELEN  RASEREEEBINRS
FE MREABEEABRELBIRHEMEEELENRESR
B AEERBEBEFENRSAEFARTRERE o T
BREAE FEXEK 0 WHEURRE S5 -

Relevant disclosures about the significant accounting
judgement and estimates and the details about the
impairment assessment of right-of-use assets are included
in notes 3 and 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

BREEESHHENGNERREAREEEAEEENE
AHMENE B ESERSMBIRRNMEIM 145 -

BRRETEE®)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMFARNAEEFERFFSE

Our audit procedures in relation to management'’s
impairment assessment included, among others,
evaluating the Group’s policies and procedures in
identifying impairment indicators and assessing
management’s significant assumptions adopted, in
particular those relating to the cash flow forecasts
of loss-making retail shops, by reviewing the Group’s
business plan, comparing with the market discount rate
and evaluating the growth rate by comparing to market
data. Our procedures also included a comparison of the
cash flow forecasts with historical data of the Group.
Also, we checked, on a sample basis, the accuracy and
relevance of the input data used.

EMEREEENRENENEARFEE(EPEE) BB
FHELLT A ERHME A EEEREREREEMTAEEER
RANEZBER(BHREFESEERNASRERNER
R A HENBENER : SEMNEKE - EHSHR
FETHE  WERBETSEIBETLBRFEERE - &
MHWEFEEEERERETAELEBE L BBETL
B oo tboh - RPVBHRBRE T FT AR A BB ER L REE
o

EAELEBRART —ZT-_F§



Independent Auditor’'s Report & 37 #Z 2L Ef 3R &5

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the
Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in

discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022
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Independent Auditor’s Report & 7 & E A R &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

BB ET AR E M BHRABENEE

BFMERE  RHGREHERREBEERSTFEAR
B RMER N ERERRMESSERE I
HESERMERNZEMMBE - RANBEMRES
RIENTE1981FE 0K EH T ERRFER - Rkl
O RREWBEMAE - RIEATSHMZEEIHRE N
AR EMEMEMA L8 FRRETAEE -

BERBRZEXTHRE  ETERBRREBE
EAPETHE  ER - ERERRAFIERFREE
B o SRERBRAL T A ERFF ARSI - RS TR
EHEBNERERATELERSPWBRREAEMK
HESMBRRAMELHNEERE - BIEEHERR
MATPAREE R ©

EREFBENERETENNBRED  RMEAT
HEE - RIS T EXRIEREE - BRAT

o EBIMIEENRFFRERMERR S WK
REEERBRRANER - ReTRIITET
RFUELHELRRE  URERTEMEER
ETRE  EREMNERNER - ARMFFY
e R EBE - Bl ERER  ERFL -
RERAMESZ L HIREEHRERTFM
EHNERERRAN AR SRR R EE
RME I E R EFERRAAEE -

o HBBEBRFEREAIES  MRFTEENE
2 BEMXFY SRERBEHNE
BMBRER -

o FHMEESEFERASHEENREERFHER
fRET AR BN SR -

EAELEBRART —ZT-_F§



Independent Auditor’'s Report & 37 #Z 2L Ef 3R &5

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022
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Independent Auditor’s Report & 7 & E A R &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Ip Hing Lam.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

17 June 2022
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REVENUE
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income and gains

Selling and distribution expenses
Administrative expenses

Other operating expenses, net
Finance costs

Share of profit of an associate

PROFIT BEFORE TAX AND LOSS OF
INVENTORIES DUE TO A FIRE ACCIDENT
Loss of inventories due to a fire accident

PROFIT BEFORE TAX
Income tax expense

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Ordinary equity holders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

Basic and diluted (HK cents)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss £ 51 &

Year ended 31 March 2022 B Z —E - —#F=HF=+—HIF FZF

2022 2021
—Eq-— T —F
HK$’000 HK$000
BETT BT T
8,043,172 7,351,573
(5,714,222) (5,071,441)
2,328,950 2,280,132
154,085 165,516
(1,254,294) (1,228,761)
(808,651) (723,896)
(53,744) (51,745)
(34,345) (30,392)
28,795 8,838
360,796 419,692
(162,278) -
198,518 419,692
(11,809) (145,733)
186,709 273,959
191,064 274,213
(4,355) (254)
186,709 273,959
13.8 19.8




Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income ZREZHWA X

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Other comprehensive income that may be
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods:
Exchange differences on translation of foreign
operations

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR
THE YEAR, NET OF TAX

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Ordinary equity holders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Year ended 31 March 2022 i Z —E - —#F=HF=+—HIF FZF

2022 2021
g —E-—F
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
REERHR 186,709 273,959
Htt 2wl A
REZHBETERSEE
BREMEEmKA
BEBIMEEERESE
ZERERE 95,096 264,666
AEEHMEEBA
BrFiEFEE 95,096 264,666
AEERXHERALE
281,805 538,625
®E
AAREBEREE 286,076 538,876
RS (4,271) (251)
281,805 538,625
EXkEREAFRAT —ZT-—F#



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 4= & Bt & AR R 3R

31 March 2022 —E=-—#=H=4+—H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment

Right-of-use assets

Investment properties

Construction in progress

Trademarks

Investment in an associate

Prepayments

Long-term rental deposits

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Long-term debt instruments at
amortised cost

Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Trade receivables

Bills receivable

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Debt instruments at amortised cost

Derivative financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade payables

Bills payable

Other payables and accrued liabilities
Lease liabilities

Derivative financial liabilities
Interest-bearing bank borrowings
Tax payable

Total current liabilities

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES
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14
13
15
16
17
22
22

18

19
28

20
21
21

22

18

23
24

25

26
14
23
27

2022 2021
—Eq-— T —F
HK$'000 HK$°000
B FT BT T
1,139,878 1,146,482
524,651 530,753
532,077 517,995
128,657 28,358
33,293 33,293

- 7,126

14,530 23,752
69,518 93,029
50,786 70,683
30,102 45,241
73,293 39,261
2,596,785 2,535,973
2,484,148 2,388,533
906,551 894,881
219,877 262,320
316,793 893,593
2,346 2,346
79,009 60,653
8,251 1,802
2,363,988 1,700,293
6,380,963 6,204,421
908,449 858,693
10,108 2,388
580,686 654,320
176,824 194,809
5,395 2,527
1,308,278 855,330
42,875 304,338
3,032,615 2,872,405
3,348,348 3,332,016
5,945,133 5,867,989




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 4= & Bt #& AR R 3R

31 March 2022 —E-—#=H=+—H

2022 2021
=2 T —F
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
g BT T BT T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBESF
Other payables and accrued liabilities Hit e IR R BT B S 26 9,160 14,853
Lease liabilities HESE 14 400,412 346,178
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIEEE 28 100,042 107,205
Total non-current liabilities BIERBEE 509,614 468,236
Net assets EEFE 5,435,519 5,399,753
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to ordinary equity FEAATESE
holders of the Company ERfAEER
Issued capital BERITIRA 29 69,085 69,085
Reserves R 30 5,230,119 5,192,749
Proposed final dividend BRAREIRE 10 138,170 138,170
5,437,374 5,400,004
Non-controlling interests IR AER (1,855) (251)
Total equity Fab e 5,435,519 5,399,753
Poon Bun Chak Ting Kit Chung 1 o
Director Director EBWE THEE

RAEKEARRLTE —T--F8 @
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 4 8 & HhEFE

Year ended 31 March 2022 BiZ —E - _—F=F=+—HIFFZF

2022 2021
—Eq-— —E_—=F

—

HK$°000
BT

HK$°000
BETFT

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES K& FEBRERE

Profit before tax BREL B A 198,518 419,692
Adjustments for: R
Finance costs k&R 8 34,345 30,392
Share of profit of an associate FEALEEE A TR F] 17 (28,795) (8,838)
Interest income FEWA 5 (28,839) (27,776)
Net fair value gains on foreign exchange 9I\5E?§T$$EQIE
derivative financial instruments AREkRE 5 (7,353) (489)
Net fair value loss/(gain) on financial assets &Qﬁﬁﬁ‘f)\?ﬁﬁﬁﬂ’\]ﬁ%ﬂﬁé
at fair value through profit or loss B8 (W) 388 6 4,594 (7,976)
Loss/(gain) on revision of lease terms arising [E T a[#{$EHEHAREH
from changes in the non-cancellable mEENEEES
period of leases BB, (W) 14 63 (1,013)
COVID-19-related rent concessions HEARMZ20195E T
from lessors EEHEENESRR 14 (4,493) (25,698)
Net fair value gain on investment REWMERIR
properties W= EEE 6 (14,082) (1,258)
Depreciation of property, plant and L//E3IN T%& LIBITE
equipment 6 225,798 236,302
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEEIE 6 239,114 227,325
Net loss on disposal of items of property, ﬁ‘E#@% BENREBER
plant and equipment =gi=hes 6 6,121 2,555
Impairment of right-of-use assets Eﬁﬁﬁiﬁ%iﬁiﬁ 6 40,769 15,004
Write-down/(reversal of write-down) FEMR, (s B E)
of inventories 6 75,064 (2,145)
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of FEW R SRRE, CRIERE)
trade receivables 6 (22,126) 18,084
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of REBERANEETA
debt instruments at amortised cost ﬁ{ﬁ/ REREE) 6 (2,820) 13,211
Customs and value-added tax related NEBHIERCIER
to loss of inventories due to a 7{-32 s 2R R ER
fire accident 6 52,274 -
768,152 887,372
Increase in inventories FEEmn (168,574) (112,274)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and iR R ZERL (Em)
bills receivables 79,778 (224,079)
Increase in prepayments, FEMFIE ~ ST R EmER
deposits and other receivables 0 (11,205) (80,985)
Increase in trade and bills payables FEASBRFR R =45 42 0 28,384 133,853
Increase/(decrease) in other payables HiEABRR R
and accrued liabilities FESTREE M, () (100,098) 131,145
Cash generated from operations i‘«“‘ﬁfr S5EE 596,437 735,032
Tax refund/(paid) RB(BMBE 306,148 (32,655)
Net cash flows from operating activities REMBRESRANFE 902,585 702,377
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 48 HhEFE

Year ended 31 March 2022 i Z —E - —#F=HF=+—HIF FZF

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest received

Net proceeds from settlement of
derivative financial instruments

Acquisition of derivative financial
instruments

Purchases of items of property, plant
and equipment

Additions to construction in progress

Addition of debt instruments
at amortised cost

Net redemption of debt instruments
at amortised cost

Net redemption of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss

Proceeds from disposal of items of
property, plant and equipment

Decrease/(increase) in time and structured
deposits with original maturity of over
three months when acquired

Dividend received from an associate

Contribution from a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary

Cash outflow from acquisition of
interests in an associate

Net cash flows from/(used in) investing
activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Principal portion of lease payments

New interest-bearing bank borrowings

Repayment of interest-bearing bank
borrowings

Interest paid

Dividends paid

Net cash flows used in financing activities

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
year

Foreign exchange adjustments

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR

REFDRERE
ZWFIR
FETESRT AREFHE

BETEESMTA
BEWE  BERREEE

NEERIR
BERCHBENANEB LA

LEACIE qRE: i o N )
ERTAFE

BEZEAAEFABEN
TREEFHR

HEWE - BER
REEBEBA

REJX A=EA N LRz
EH R B
A, (150)

CUEE A BRE

M QB ERRRTE

W iE R N RSN IR SR

RETHRSTA(RH)
R

MEFHRERE

HERETEEHH

M ERITER

BEMSIRITER

2AFR
2RE

RETEEBRERLFHE
RERBREEEY

2, (R #E
FHAZRERREEEY
SNETHEE

FRZRERREEEY

2022 2021

—E_— T —F

HK$’000 HK$°000

BETFT BEFT

28,839 27,776

3,667 2,155
- (1,298)
(156,041) (159,402)
15 (135,700) (28,756)
(61,540) (14,583)

61,142 33,866

15,303 66,668

19,401 2,377

(1,316,992) 596,428

17 34,421 50,000
2,667 -

(1,323) -

(1,506,156) 575,231
31(b) (237,591) (221,184)
31(b) 3,830,193 1,875,157
31(b) (3,377,438) (2,248,637)
(34,345) (30,392)
(248,706) (69,085)
(67,887) (694,141)

(671,458) 583,467

1,648,537 1,088,828
18,161 (23,758)

995,240 1,648,537

EXkEREAFRAT —ZT-—F#



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 4 8 & HhEFE

Year ended 31 March 2022 B Z —E - —#F=HF=+—HIF FZF

2021
—Eq-— T —F
HK$'000 HK$°000
B FT BT T
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND RERRSEEBWERDIN
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances BERBITER 24 631,782 538,295
Non-pledged time deposits with original RETZLB=EAREF=
maturity within three months IR EHFR
when acquired 24 363,458 1,110,242
Non-pledged time deposits with original RETYB=@ER LR
maturity over three months IR EHFR
when acquired 24 1,368,748 51,756
Cash and cash equivalents as stated RERBESZEEY
in the consolidated statement of MERERE AR T
financial position 2,363,988 1,700,293
Less: Non-pledged time deposits with B RETMA=@EA L
original maturity over three FIHf 2 I 30 E BRI R
months when acquired (1,368,748) (51,756)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated RERREEEY
in the consolidated statement MEFRFERERER
of cash flows 995,240 1,648,537

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022



Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R &E

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

Texwinca Holdings Limited is a limited liability company
incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office of the Company
is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda. The principal place of business of Texwinca Holdings
Limited is located at 16th Floor, Metroplaza Tower Il, 223 Hing
Fong Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following
principal activities:

° Production, dyeing and sale of knitted fabric, yarn and
garments;

° Retailing and distribution of casual apparel and accessories;
and

° Provision of franchise services.

Information of subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

31 March 2022 —E-—#=H=+—H

ARREEER
EXEEEERARABFETMRILZER
BEERAR  ADRZFEMHIEE A Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda ° X EEERR AR T EE
WABEBHRAEAETR22IVNHNBESESSE
—E16%E o

RAFE » AEBTREEUT R

o HEH  MURMRZIEHRER;

o  EREHMZTERIHE R

o IRHUESTHEER o

M A R E
RABZEEMBLRZFHBENOT

Trustland Inc

Nice Dyeing Factory Limited

KERBERAT

Place of incorporation/
registration

and business

MR BER
BEM

British Virgin Islands
KBRLEE

Hong Kong

Issued ordinary/
registered
share capital
BRTLE/
BRERA

US$18,000
18,000% 7

Ordinary
HK$1,000
Non-voting
deferred
HK$3,125,000

EERA
1,000t R
BRERELRA
j8#:3,125,0007T

Dongguan Texwinca Textile & PRC/Mainland China HK$2,857,950,000
Garment Limited’
REBKEHERNERAR HEl/HEIARE 78#2,857,950,0007T
Texwinca Enterprises (China) Limited  British Virgin Islands/ US$1
Hong Kong
BKE(RE)BREERLT REBRLHE/BB 127

Percentage of equity
attributable to
the Company
KT B ER
ZARE
2022
“ECCF

2021
—E--F

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

RAEXRERRLR

Principal activities

TERH

Investment holding

RERR

Sale of finished knitted
fabric and dyed yarn

HEHBHREY

Production, dyeing
and sale of knitted
fabric and yarn

HEARRRY < EHRER
Investment holding

and trading of machines

REZRNEERES

CERCCER



Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R =E

31 March 2022 —E=-—#=H=4+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) 1. ARREEER @)

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited

Information of subsidiaries (continued)

Place of incorporation/
registration
and business

KL R
sk

Issued ordinary/
registered
share capital
BRTEE/
ERERE

B 2 R E L (4F)

Percentage of equity
attributable to
the Company
AR AL ER

ZERE
2022

—F——

—

Principal activities

TEXK

Texwinca Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100  Provision of management
services
BAEEXERAA BB BT REEERE
Creative Textile Technology PRC/Mainland China HK$150,000,000 100 100 Production and sale of
Company (Guangdong) Limited’ garments
ARS8 (ER)BRAR HE/HEIRE 75 #150,000,0007T MK EH
Bambini Innovative Production PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 85 85  Sale of garments
Limited?
EREREENRERAT HE/HERE AR#20,000,0007 MK ZSHE
Creative Textile Technology PRC/Mainland China HK$60,000,000 100 100 Production and sale of
Company (Guangxi) Limited’ garments
AIRE (ER)BRAT HE/HERE 760,000,000 MK EH
Creative Textile Technology PRC/Mainland China HK$80,000,000 100 - Production and sale of
Company (Henan) Limited? garments
ARG SR CTR) BRAT) HE/HERE 780,000,000 MK EH
Creative Textile Technology British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 100 100  Sale of garments
Company Limited Hong Kong
ARGBERAR RBRL#EE/BB 1%7 MK ZSHE
Win Ready Industrial Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10 100 100  Property holding
and Non-voting
deferred HK$2
KEEXERAT BB EBRABEI0TR EXEIES
ERFEELERE
BT
Winson Knitting Factory Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10 100 100  Property holding
Company Limited and Non-voting
deferred
HK$1,000,000
BB EBRRABEI0TR EXEIES
ERFEELERE

Annual Report 2022

#1#1,000,0007T



1.

Winlife Trading Limited
KETERAE

Knight Force Inc.
(formerly known as

Creative Garment Technology

Company Limited)
BBt
(AIBARREERAR)

Megawell Industrial Limited

BESABRARA

Baleno Holdings Limited

HeREEERAT

Baleno Kingdom Limited

HeRARAT

Baleno Hong Kong Limited

HeREEERAT

Guangzhou Friendship
Baleno Co. Ltd.’

BMEER R REGARAR

Beijing Xing Yu Baleno

Garment & Decoration Co. Ltd’

EREFHRERERHERAFT

Place of incorporation/
registration
and business

MY, BER
S

Hong Kong
BB

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong

REBRLHE/ BB

Hong Kong
BB

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong

RBRLHE/EB

Hong Kong

BB

Hong Kong
BB

PRC/Mainland China

hE hEKE

PRC/Mainland China

hE hEKE

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued)

Information of subsidiaries (continued)

Issued ordinary/
registered
share capital
BRTEE,/
ERERA

HK$15,903,100
7#1#15,903,1007T

US$1

HK$3,000,000
##3,000,0007T

US$20,000

20,000% 7T

HK$10,000

7#1#10,0007T

HK$2

BT

HK$103,800,000

7#1#103,800,0007T

US$500,000

500,000% T

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R &E

31 March 2022 —E-—#=H=+—H

RAREEER @)
M D &R ()
Percentage of equity
attributable to
the Company Principal activities
AR R LR
ZADE FTEER
2022 2021
ot St - 1 —E-—F
100 100  Property holding
BENE
100 100  Sales of garments
K ZSHE
100 50  Investment holding
REZR
100 100  Investment holding
and retailing of casual
apparel and accessories
REERRERR
2 BE
100 100  Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessories
ERREGNZEER D
100 100  Investment holding
REZR
100 100  Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessories
ERREGNZEER D
100 100  Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessories
ERRGNZEER D
EAELEBRART —ZT-_F§



Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R =E

31 March 2022 —E=-—#=H=4+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) 1. ARREEER @)

Information of subsidiaries (continued) M A =ER (F)
Place of incorporation/  Issued ordinary/ Percentage of equity
registration registered attributable to
and business share capital the Company Principal activities
MR BER BERTEE/ AT B ER
EEWY 2RERA ZADE TEEH
2022
—E-C
LSS AIRSERAR PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 100 100  Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessories
HE/ HEAE AK1,000,0007 ERREN 2 TERDH
Tianjin Baleno Co. Ltd.! PRC/Mainland China RMB700,000 100 100  Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessories
REDHREHREBERA A HE/HEIRE AR#700,0007T ERREN 2 TERDH
Huge Growth Corporation British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 100 100  Property holding
Mainland China
BSERAR REBRZHE/HEKE 1EX BENE
Bigpoint Limited British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 100 100  Holding of trademarks
Hong Kong and provision of
franchise services
RIBRAR RBRL#EE/ 1257 FAEBERRMGT
B RE R
Successful Channel Corporation British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 100 100  Property holding
Mainland China
MIREEE RBRZHE/HEKE 1ExT BENE
1 These entities are registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises ! ZENE R ARIEFEEE MBI EEE
under the laws of the PRC. b7
All subsidiaries other than Trustland Inc are indirectly held by the FRTrustland Incsh » A EFREHMIE D RIFHA
Company. NRIEESE -
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in ERAIIEARATZHMBAR » ESRAHEE
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for HAKEAFE 2 EEBREEFERAMET
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the SEEEFH2ETELND - EERBFIIHEAM
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion MEBARELEREARIE °

of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

@ TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022



2.1

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R &E

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (which
include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for investment properties, certain buildings
included in property, plant and equipment, financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss and derivative financial assets
and liabilities which have been measured at fair value. These
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$")
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2022. A
subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has
power over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b)

rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
()  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

2.1

31 March2022 —E—-——#=H=+—H

FMBRERDBETESHMASEMZES
PR EER(REMEEBMBEREER
BEREFEARRER) EE-RAREFHR
AR BB A BRG 2 IHBEERERTA © BRI
EWE% - BOBREENE  BERRENNE
FRAOABFAEBENENEERITESH
EEREBERAAENEIN - RAPBIHRRIIMK
REREASTEGIFTRHE - FREFEHN
RUBHRIILGEE (B D2 FERE
HNBEEAZETFLE -

mEE%E
FEMBBREREELALDAREWBE LG (EHE
[AEEDBE-_Z-__F=A=+—HLHF
EZBHE - MMBARAKRAREERREE
BHNER (BREERMEER) - EAEEYHS
HREHRERNZBHERAIERBZEE
FIARAEEBEIREHRMNE D (MARE@E
BFREREIUTEREHRIBETHNGTE
R FEZZEEMET - BEUSEHIRE o

A AR EERBEEEERASBNREY
SRER\OUER - AREERTEEEEHE
FHREHSWEIRSZE—HEBESER
B - B -

(a) EEREURHMBEZTEANEGHNR
B

(b) EHEMENZHAEENER &

(0 FEENREEREEIREE-

M B A Bz B SRR IR ERA N B AR 2 R
HEEA-—HETRRER - MBAR 2%
EEAEENGENRERBFEAR IS
BESSNREZZEFBKLERRL -

EAELEBRART —ZT-_F§



Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R =E

31 March 2022 —E-—#=H=+—H

2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to ordinary equity holders of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating
to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in
full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control described above. A change
in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control,
is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and
(iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(ii) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive income
is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate,
on the same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the first
time for the current year’s financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,

HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendment to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30

June 2021

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022

2.1

2.2

IRBLEXE 5)

BEEE(E)
BERHEB2ERANSEE SRAKRL T
BB S RIFRRER  AE B
2R LIRS IR c TEAEEME AT
MRS ERNEERERE &5 A - B
Y RELFBYINGAIRE RSB

HEEERBERET L XHE D RSB
MEHEN=ERZEF - BALSHEHREE
b AEBKEMTEEARTHWIRESER
ZHE - RINBA RN AAEERHENZS
(ERBAREEZHEBR TSR —BREERX
PPN

e AN EE Bk A M B A B AR GBIRE - RIS IERE
ROZMBLRANEE (BEBB)REE ;S (i)
FEAR 3F 122 IR A 2 A9 BRTED (B I (i) T APBEZR Y R
FFERER ) YHRANEWRENQAARE S (i)
EMERENREN D ABER(I)FTTABRER
NEHIEE - AEBELAREMEERAS

ROEGEHD - DREBRAEECEEL
ENREEREERRNERBEMER D E

ZRERREER o

B BERKE 22

FEBERFEMBRRERRAT TIHEE
RIMEBR I IREZER

BENBWEENEN BB AEEENE-

SiPERIE39%  FRHK EoRE
EEBIEIS  BRUE
EEBESERERUE
HEBIE16SRNBTA
ERMBREENE165%M R-ZE-—%ErA
BIK ZFHZ#2019
HEEREERE
HEHsE%



Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R &E

22 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)
The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs are described

below:

(a)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and
HKFRS 16 address issues not dealt with in the previous
amendments which affect financial reporting when an
existing interest rate benchmark is replaced with an
alternative risk-free rate (“RFR"). The amendments provide
a practical expedient to allow the effective interest rate
to be updated without adjusting the carrying amount of
financial assets and liabilities when accounting for changes
in the basis for determining the contractual cash flows
of financial assets and liabilities, if the change is a direct
consequence of the interest rate benchmark reform and
the new basis for determining the contractual cash flows is
economically equivalent to the previous basis immediately
preceding the change. In addition, the amendments permit
changes required by the interest rate benchmark reform to
be made to hedge designations and hedge documentation
without the hedging relationship being discontinued. Any
gains or losses that could arise on transition are dealt with
through the normal requirements of HKFRS 9 to measure
and recognise hedge ineffectiveness. The amendments
also provide a temporary relief to entities from having to
meet the separately identifiable requirement when an
RFR is designated as a risk component. The relief allows
an entity, upon designation of the hedge, to assume that
the separately identifiable requirement is met, provided
the entity reasonably expects the RFR risk component
to become separately identifiable within the next 24
months. Furthermore, the amendments require an entity to
disclose additional information to enable users of financial
statements to understand the effect of interest rate
benchmark reform on an entity’s financial instruments and
risk management strategy.

The Group had certain interest-bearing bank borrowings
denominated in Hong Kong dollars based on the Hong
Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR") as at 31 March
2022. The Group expects that HIBOR will continue to exist
and the interest rate benchmark reform has not had an
impact on the Group’s HIBOR-based borrowings. If the
interest rates of these borrowings and interest rate swap
are replaced by RFRs in a future period, the Group will
apply the above-mentioned practical expedient upon
the modification of these instruments provided that the
“economically equivalent” criterion is met.

31 March2022 —E—-——#=H=+—H

2.2 EHEERERNEECEE@H)

(a)

RIS BB RS ER N E RSN
T

BRI RELDEIN - BBETTE
BIZE395% ~ BB BMELRETS
BBV BREENFEARREBYBR
SEAF1RNBIABERTERA
2R ELE i AR L R 2R ([ B A
ZBRREAET P REEESHE
BB ENRRE - ZFBITAREH—E
ATEERE  LWEEEEREERE
BENRERBEE T FEETE
BRERERERFEZMEZTAREHME
EREEREE W ARAZEDHAER
BENECHERREBEANRER
ENHEENEE LERNEEZEA
BOSERTEEE o BLob » BB AEFY
R ERE R ETRREERE
FrREMEE - MRS P ETEIEE
BENBUREEENTAERYEBE
B BRMEENEIRNERREET
BRIE - L E R RN EMRM o (68
BB EEIEERRBARESD - ZE
BT REERBER  SERBARR
AEBHBZHAE - MERSEENE
[ B R 2= L B AR AR BB 0 AR SR24MEL A A
R EUEGR - AZERAFER
REEEHHPEBRES M EBREZ
BE o Ihoh - REBRT TR EERER
BENER LRI BERENERERE
HTHRANREENEHERNERTA
REBEERENTE -

N-ZB-ZZE=ZA=1+—0  ~EEHF
BERBBRTREZERZ(THIBOR])
BTIHENE THERTES - ~N&EH
TEHAHIBORM #E 71 - BRIREENR
B ARYUAREBENRHBORWIEEELE
& - WIAEALIBORMMER - ANE
W% % T B MR SR K B & E SR =
£ FZEET I EEREEN T
MRRREAEEAMATE - MZEEE
B ) 22 1A 7 3% A 7S 4 R e L SR ERA
AEEBEBITZEIARRALNE
BEELE HEZIKBERSE EZ

EAELEBRART —ZT-_F§



Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R =E

31 March 2022 —E-—#=H=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b)

Amendment to HKFRS 16 issued in April 2021 extends the
availability of the practical expedient for lessees to elect not
to apply lease modification accounting for rent concessions
arising as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic
by 12 months. Accordingly, the practical expedient applies
to rent concessions for which any reduction in lease
payments affects only payments originally due on or before
30 June 2022, provided the other conditions for applying
the practical expedient are met. The amendment is effective
retrospectively for annual periods beginning on or after 1
April 2021 with any cumulative effect of initially applying
the amendment recognised as an adjustment to the
opening balance of retained profits at the beginning of the
current accounting period. Earlier application is permitted.

The Group has adopted the amendment on 1 April 2021
and applied the practical expedient during the year ended
31 March 2022 to all rent concessions granted by the lessors
that affected only payments originally due on or before
30 June 2022 as a direct consequence of the COVID-19
pandemic. A reduction in the lease payments arising from
the rent concessions of HK$4,493,000 has been accounted
for as a variable lease payment by derecognising part of the
lease liabilities and crediting to profit or loss for the year
ended 31 March 2022. There was no impact on the opening
balance of equity as at 1 April 2021.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.
Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 17
Amendment to HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 16
Amendments to HKAS 37

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

Reference to the Conceptual Framework’

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture?

Insurance Contracts?
Insurance Contracts?*

Initial Application of HKFRS 17 and HKFRS 9 -
Comparative Information?

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current? 4
Disclosure of Accounting Policies?

Definition of Accounting Estimates?

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction?

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before
Intended Use’

Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract!

Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative
Examples accompanying HKFRS 16, and
HKAS 411

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

3 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

4 As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong Kong

Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification
by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment
on Demand Clause was revised in October 2020 to align the
corresponding wording with no change in conclusion

5 As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in October
2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption
that permits insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather than HKFRS 9 for
annual periods beginning before 1 January 2023
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 are intended to replace a reference to
the previous Framework for the Preparation and Presentation
of Financial Statements with a reference to the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting issued in June 2018 without
significantly changing its requirements. The amendments also
add to HKFRS 3 an exception to its recognition principle for an
entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework to determine what
constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception specifies that, for
liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be within the scope
of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they were incurred separately
rather than assumed in a business combination, an entity
applying HKFRS 3 should refer to HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21
respectively instead of the Conceptual Framework. Furthermore,
the amendments clarify that contingent assets do not qualify
for recognition at the acquisition date. The Group expects to
adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 April 2022. Since
the amendments apply prospectively to business combinations
for which the acquisition date is on or after the date of first
application, the Group will not be affected by these amendments
on the date of transition.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in
HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture. The
amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss resulting
from a downstream transaction when the sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture
constitutes a business. For a transaction involving assets that
do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the
transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to the
extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that associate or joint
venture. The amendments are to be applied prospectively. The
previous mandatory effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by the HKICPA in January 2016
and a new mandatory effective date will be determined after
the completion of a broader review of accounting for associates
and joint ventures. However, the amendments are available for
adoption now.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities as
current or non-current. The amendments specify that if an entity’s
right to defer settlement of a liability is subject to the entity
complying with specified conditions, the entity has a right to
defer settlement of the liability at the end of the reporting period
if it complies with those conditions at that date. Classification of a
liability is unaffected by the likelihood that the entity will exercise
its right to defer settlement of the liability. The amendments also
clarify the situations that are considered a settlement of a liability.
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2023 and shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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2.3

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R &E

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies require
entities to disclose their material accounting policy information
rather than their significant accounting policies. Accounting
policy information is material if, when considered together with
other information included in an entity’s financial statements,
it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the
primary users of general purpose financial statements make on
the basis of those financial statements. Amendments to HKFRS
Practice Statement 2 provide non-mandatory guidance on how to
apply the concept of materiality to accounting policy disclosures.
Amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and earlier application
is permitted. Since the guidance provided in the amendments
to HKFRS Practice Statement 2 is non-mandatory, an effective
date for these amendments is not necessary. The Group is
currently assessing the impact of the amendments on the Group's
accounting policy disclosures.

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes
in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies.
Accounting estimates are defined as monetary amounts in
financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty.
The amendments also clarify how entities use measurement
techniques and inputs to develop accounting estimates. The
amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2023 and apply to changes in accounting
policies and changes in accounting estimates that occur on or
after the start of that period. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on
the Group's financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial
recognition exception so that it no longer applies to transactions
that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences, such as leases and decommissioning obligations.
Therefore, entities are required to recognise a deferred tax asset
and a deferred tax liability for temporary differences arising from
these transactions. The amendments are effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and shall
be applied to transactions related to leases and decommissioning
obligations at the beginning of the earliest comparative
period presented, with any cumulative effect recognised as an
adjustment to the opening balance of retained profits or other
component of equity as appropriate at that date. In addition, the
amendments shall be applied prospectively to transactions other
than leases and decommissioning obligations. Earlier application is
permitted.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Upon initial application of these amendments, the Group
will recognise a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability
for deductible and taxable temporary differences associated
with right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, and recognise the
cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments as an
adjustment to the opening balance of retained profits at the
beginning of the earliest comparative period presented.

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting
from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any
proceeds from selling items produced while bringing that asset
to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management. Instead, an
entity recognises the proceeds from selling any such items, and
the cost of those items, in profit or loss. The amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022
and shall be applied retrospectively only to items of property,
plant and equipment made available for use on or after the
beginning of the earliest period presented in the financial
statements in which the entity first applies the amendments.
Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of assessing
whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37, the cost of
fulfilling the contract comprises the costs that relate directly
to the contract. Costs that relate directly to a contract include
both the incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (e.g., direct
labour and materials) and an allocation of other costs that relate
directly to fulfilling that contract (e.g., an allocation of the
depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment
used in fulfilling the contract as well as contract management
and supervision costs). General and administrative costs do not
relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless they are
explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under the contract. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied to contracts for which
an entity has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning
of the annual reporting period in which it first applies the
amendments. Earlier application is permitted. Any cumulative
effect of initially applying the amendments shall be recognised
as an adjustment to the opening equity at the date of initial
application without restating the comparative information. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on
the Group's financial statements.
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2.3

2.4

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R &E

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out amendments
to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples accompanying HKFRS
16, and HKAS 41. Details of the amendments that are expected to
be applicable to the Group are as follows:

. HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an
entity includes when assessing whether the terms of a new
or modified financial liability are substantially different
from the terms of the original financial liability. These fees
include only those paid or received between the borrower
and the lender, including fees paid or received by either
the borrower or lender on the other’s behalf. An entity
applies the amendment to financial liabilities that are
modified or exchanged on or after the beginning of the
annual reporting period in which the entity first applies the
amendment. The amendment is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2022. Earlier application
is permitted. The amendment is not expected to have a
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

° HKFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments from
the lessor relating to leasehold improvements in lllustrative
Example 13 accompanying HKFRS 16. This removes potential
confusion regarding the treatment of lease incentives when
applying HKFRS 16.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights
and over which it is in a position to exercise significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control
or joint control over those policies.

31 March2022 —E—-——#=H=+—H

23 EBEMEEMRERZEBVBREE

Al #%)

- \FRE B REEBUYBREERF
EHEBTEBUBREENE 1R - BB
BMEEREIW 2B - BBIBREER
F 16BN 2 EH R BB R EREA -
FEEHEANAEBMOZS B AEENT

o EBBUBRESEHNFIREZHIA  F
ARERFGEESHITREERERE
ENFERRERTREENKRIEEER
ZEREENER ZSEREER
FEERABRERA ZBEE XS HBEH
B BREERARERAREKREME
XAREBMNER - BEREERETAE
FEAREREREREREITANEE
BREMRBR2REUIRBRNERE
& ZEBITAE-E--F5—-F—H
H2 BRI FERBER - LFRE
R - RHIZE B AT EHAREENW
MERREEEMERTE -

o ERUBREENE165HE - BRE
B E RIS 165RREM 2 885113
BRAEMEREWHBEATKESA -
LLEHR R A E BRI EERZE 16
SAREME B E RS EEER
Bl o

24 FESHBERHBE

REBE AR ZHRE
BENRANAEERMSEEEZRFEE-—R
TOR0%EEUHETEEALEHZE
B EAXENIESHEPRESTVHREER
KD BRI S RBIZEBR -

EAELEBRART —ZT-_F§



2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investment in an associate (continued)

The Group’s investment in an associate is stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s share
of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less any
impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring into line any
dissimilar accounting policies that may exist. The Group’s share of
the post-acquisition results and other comprehensive income of
an associate is included in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and consolidated other comprehensive income, respectively.
In addition, when there has been a change recognised directly
in the equity of the associate, the Group recognises its share of
any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associate are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s investment in the associate, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the
assets transferred.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties, financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss and derivative financial assets
and liabilities at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the
principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must
be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R &E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly

Level 3 -  based on valuation techniques for which the lowest

level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end
of each reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets, financial assets and investment
properties) the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’'s value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent
of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. In testing a cash-generating unit for
impairment, a portion of the carrying amount of a corporate
asset (e.g., a headquarters building) is allocated to an individual
cash-generating unit if it can be allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis or, otherwise, to the smallest group of cash-
generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is accounted
for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that
revalued asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which
it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for in
accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued
asset.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R &E

31 March2022 —E—-——#=H=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s

family and that person

0]

(ii)

(iii)

or

(b)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions

applies:

0]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary
of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity; and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost or valuation less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. When an item of
property, plant and equipment is classified as held for sale, it is
not depreciated and is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives
and depreciates them accordingly.

Change in values of property, plant and equipment are dealt
with as movement in the asset revaluation reserve. If the total
of this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on an individual
asset basis, the excess of the deficit is charged to profit or loss.
Any subsequent revaluation surplus is credited to profit or loss
to the extent of the deficit previously charged. On disposal of
a revalued asset, the relevant portion of the asset revaluation
reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is transferred to
retained profits as a movement in reserves.

For a transfer from owner-occupied properties to investment
properties, the related revaluation surplus is retained in the
asset revaluation reserve and remains there until the subsequent
disposal or retirement of the property, when it is transferred from
the revaluation surplus to retained profits.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R &E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off

the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its

residual value over its estimated useful life. The estimated useful
lives used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 25 years or over the remaining
lease terms of related land,
whichever is shorter

Leasehold improvements Over the remaining lease terms

Plant and machinery 10 to 20 years

Furniture, fixtures and office 5 years
equipment
Motor vehicles and yacht 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year the asset
is derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents plant and machinery under
construction, which are stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and are not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs
of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings held
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather
than for use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business. Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market
conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the statement of profit or
loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
year of the retirement or disposal.

If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied
property becomes an investment property, the Group accounts
for such property in accordance with the policy stated under
“Property, plant and equipment and depreciation” up to the date
of change in use, and any difference at that date between the
carrying amount and the fair value of the property is accounted
for as a revaluation in accordance with the policy stated under
“Property, plant and equipment and depreciation” above.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R &E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Trademarks

The useful lives of trademarks are assessed to be indefinite.
Trademarks with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment
annually either individually or at the cash-generating unit level
and are not amortised. The useful life of a trademark with
an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether
indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the
change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. For fabric, yarn and garments, cost is determined on a
weighted average basis and, for work in progress and finished
goods, cost comprises direct materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of overheads. For casual apparel and
accessories, cost is determined on a weighted average basis
and includes all costs of purchases and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.
Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal or to
make the sale.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make
lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to
use the underlying assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R =E

31 March 2022 —E=-—#=H=4+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(a)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset
is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful
lives of the assets as follows:

Leasehold land Over the remaining lease terms
Premises Over the remaining lease terms

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R &E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(b) Lease liabilities
Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include
fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less
any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected
to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease
payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group
and payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option
to terminate the lease. The variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as an
expense in the period in which the event or condition that
triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit
in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in lease
payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments resulting
from a change in an index or rate) or a change in assessment
of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

(0) Short-term leases
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of premises (that is those
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option). Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised
as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. When a contract contains lease and
non-lease components, the Group allocates the consideration
in the contract to each component on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for on a straight-
line basis over the lease terms and is included in other income in
the statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset
and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental
income. Contingent rents are recognised as other income in the
period in which they are earned.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R &E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or
loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics
and the Group’s business model for managing them. With the
exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component
or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient are
measured at the transaction price determined under HKFRS 15 in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition”
below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income,
it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount
outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI
are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss,
irrespective of the business model.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers
to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate
cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows
will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the
financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured
at amortised cost are held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows, while financial assets classified and measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income are held within a
business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are not
held within the aforementioned business models are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest method and are subject to impairment.
Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with net changes
in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments, equity investments,
debt investments and financial products issued by financial
institutions. Dividends on equity investments classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are also recognised as
other income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of
payment has been established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and
the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R &E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected
cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held
or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual
terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the
default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk
on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition
and considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical and
forward-looking information.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach (continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the
Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that the Group is
unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the
Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under
the general approach and they are classified within the following
stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables
which apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 -  Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R &E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component,
the Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
Under the simplified approach, the Group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on
lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has established
a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

For trade receivables that contain a significant financing
component, the Group chooses as its accounting policy to adopt
the simplified approach in calculating ECLs with policies as
described above.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
or
° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows

from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a

"

third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and

rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a “pass-through” arrangement,
it evaluates, if and to what extent, it has retained the risk
and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues
to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Group's
continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R &E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or loans and
borrowings and payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables, bills
payable, financial liabilities included in other payables and
accrued liabilities, lease liabilities, derivative financial liabilities
and interest-bearing bank borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit
or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This
category also includes derivative financial instruments entered
into by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments
in hedge relationships as defined by HKFRS 9. Separated
embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss
recognised in the statement of profit or loss does not include any
interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the initial date of
recognition, and only if the criteria in HKFRS 9 are satisfied. Gains
or losses on liabilities designated at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised in the statement of profit or loss, except for
the gains or losses arising from the Group’s own credit risk which
are presented in other comprehensive income with no subsequent
reclassification to the statement of profit or loss. The net fair
value gain or loss recognised in the statement of profit or loss
does not include any interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and
losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in the statement of profit
or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R &E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Derivative financial instruments

The Group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its
foreign currency risk. Such derivative financial instruments are
initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at
fair value. Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is
positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
derivatives are taken directly to the statement of profit or loss.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is included
in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods
are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations
and practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R &E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
Income tax (continued)
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and an associate, when the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and an associate, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Government subsidies

Government subsidies are recognised at their fair values where
there is reasonable assurance that the subsidy will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
subsidy relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the costs, for which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed. Where the grant relates
to an asset, the fair value is credited to a deferred income account
and is released to profit or loss over the expected useful life of
the relevant asset by equal annual instalments or deducted from
the carrying amount of the asset and released to profit or loss by
way of a reduced depreciation charge.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and bank balances and
time deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity
of generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial

position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
cash at banks, which are not restricted as to use.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R &E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Customer loyalty programme

The Group operates a loyalty programme in its retailing operation
which allows customers to accumulate award credits when they
purchase products from the Group.

The consideration received is allocated between the products sold
and the award credits issued. The consideration allocated to the
award credits is measured by reference to their fair value, i.e. the
value of the future redemption obligations by applying statistical
techniques.

The fair value of the award credits issued is deferred and
recognised as revenue when the award credits are redeemed.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R =E

31 March 2022 —E=-—#=H=4+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(a)

(b)

(0

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point
in time when control of the asset is transferred to the
customer, generally on delivery of the goods.

Rights of return

For contracts which provide a customer with a right to
return the goods within a specified period, the expected
value method is used to estimate the goods that will not be
returned because this method best predicts the amount of
variable consideration to which the Group will be entitled.
The requirements in HKFRS 15 on constraining estimates of
variable consideration are applied in order to determine
the amount of variable consideration that can be included
in the transaction price. For goods that are expected
to be returned, instead of revenue, a refund liability is
recognised.

Rendering of services
Revenue from the provision of services is recognised upon
the completion of the relevant services.

Provision of franchise and royalty services

Revenue from the provision of franchise and royalty services
is recognised over the scheduled period on a straight-line
basis because the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the

effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly

discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life

of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate,

to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the

lease terms.

Income from the sale of scrap materials is recognised at the point

in time when control of the asset is transferred to the customer,

generally on delivery of the goods.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R &E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to
the customer).

Dividends

Final and special dividends proposed by the directors are classified
as a separate allocation of retained profits within the equity
section of the statement of financial position, until they have
been approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. When
these dividends have been approved by the shareholders and
declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company'’s bye-laws grant the directors the authority
to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are
recognised immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.

31 March2022 —E—-——#=H=+—H

24 FESHBERBE®)

BRAE
REBEREREE 2 ERIRIB A - SUE
BEFREARFFIBAXTREAUREERE)
REEERERIAREGNEE - EXEERE
TERN(ESEEE AR 2 RS
B BENABEEAR/KA -

KRS
EEERRBE 2 RPREBHRED BEHRUH
RRRZEREANREBEN 2B YLSE - BHE
BRRABRRASHAEREZERE - HZER
BERRALE - LTFUER - AIRABEEBEA
BE o

THREERKEZERER  BEAQATHQF
MAUAREESASRTHREZED Ut -
THIREREREREREEINERRAE -

EAELEBRART —ZT-_F§



2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of
its employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made based on
a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate overseas
are required to participate in central pension schemes operated
by the local municipal governments. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs
to the central pension schemes. The contributions are charged
to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension schemes.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R =E

31 March 2022 —E-—#=H=+—H

24 FESFHBEROBE®)

EEEF

BRIEFIETE
REBRBEEMEAEET BRG] - BAAEHE
BREERY —HERMHFRF M ABEERIAK
BRFE(MaEEEE]) - RGBS E 2
FA - HRDREESEAHTH—EE HRE
- WRERZRE ST SR ERARRERER
MEk - A ANEERB I EECESRF
B UEAEEZEEDR o  AEBFHZE
EHFBAGERNZHHES -

FEBRNENEEZHNBLRNREEHEASMN
Bt 5 T TR L2 P RRARIERT S - 25
MBAREZETIEZETENREOZTRER
RRIEETBIE K » RIBRZ T RB A REEET
BIWRE - HRRESBEBERANE

BERAE

Wig - BEREEREREE(MEEARER
BEFGUERERRRHENERE) BIENE
BREERASERBRAENERZSEENID
BRA - HEEABTEEERRIHE
AZSRERTEEFLRAESR - BERFE
REBESEREEN HA AFERERER
WEIREWA » SRBRERNEERAHH
B o FRIE HAEEMAINEERRHE o &
ERABEMNEREEREAEEMELNA
RS



Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R &E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items included
in the financial statements of each entity are measured using
that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded
by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency rates
of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences
arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was measured.
The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item
measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition
of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e.,
translation difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is
also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries and an
associate are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at
the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these
entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their
statements of profit or loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates that approximate to those prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive income
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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31 March 2022 —E-—#=H=+—H

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Significant judgement in determining the lease term of contracts
with renewal options

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension
options. The Group applies judgement in evaluating whether or
not to exercise the option to renew the lease. That is, it considers
all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to
exercise the renewal. After the commencement date, the Group
reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change
in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability
to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew the lease (e.g.,
construction of significant leasehold improvements or significant
customisation to the leased asset).
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R &E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets

The Group has to exercise judgement in determining whether
an asset is impaired or the event previously causing the asset
impairment no longer exists, particularly in assessing: (1) whether
an event has occurred that may affect the asset value or such
event affecting the asset value has not been in existence; (2)
whether the carrying value of an asset can be supported by the
net present value of future cash flows which are estimated based
upon the continued use of the asset or derecognition; and (3) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow
projections including whether these cash flow projections are
discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions
selected by management to determine the level of impairment,
including the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in
the cash flow projections, could materially affect the net present
value used in the impairment test. The carrying amounts of
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets and the
information about impairment of right-of-use assets are disclosed
in note 12 and note 14 to the financial statements, respectively.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and
level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. The carrying value of deferred tax assets relating to
recognised tax losses at 31 March 2022 was HK$35,952,000 (2021:
HK$27,399,000). Further details are contained in note 28 to the
financial statements.

Impairment of trademarks

The Group determines whether trademarks with indefinite useful
lives are impaired at least on an annual basis. This requires an
estimation of the value in use of the trademarks. Estimating
the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future sales from the cash-generating units which use
the trademarks and also to choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. Further
details are contained in note 16 to the financial statements.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

The Group considers information from a variety of sources,
including (i) current prices in an active market for properties of a
different nature, condition and location (or subject to different
leases or other contracts), adjusted to reflect those differences;
(ii) recent prices of similar properties on less active markets, with
adjustments to reflect any changes in economic conditions since
the date of the transactions that occurred at those prices; and (iii)
independent valuations.

The carrying amount of investment properties at 31 March 2022
was HK$532,077,000 (2021: HK$517,995,000). Further details,
including the key assumptions used for fair value measurement
and a sensitivity analysis, are given in note 13 to the financial
statements.

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value is made
based on the estimated net realisable value of inventories.
The assessment of the required write-down amount involves
management'’s judgement and estimates, based on management’s
expectations for future sales net of estimated selling expenses.
Where the actual outcome or expectation in future is different
from the original estimate, such differences will have an impact
on the carrying amounts of the inventories and the write-down
charge/write-back amount in the period in which such estimate
has been changed. The carrying amount of inventories at 31
March 2022 was HK$2,484,148,000 (2021: HK$2,388,533,000).
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R &E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss
patterns. The provision matrix is initially based on the Group'’s
historical observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the
matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-
looking information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions
are expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to
an increased number of defaults in the manufacturing sector, the
historical default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the
forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes
in circumstances and forecast economic conditions. The Group's
historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic
conditions may also not be representative of a customer’s actual
default in the future. The carrying amount of trade receivables at
31 March 2022 was HK$906,551,000 (2021: HK$894,881,000). The
information about the ECLs on the Group's trade receivables is
disclosed in note 21 to the financial statements.

Impairment of debt instruments at amortised cost

The Group reviews portfolios of debt instruments measured at
amortised cost to assess whether any impairment losses exist and
the amount of impairment losses if there is significant increase in
credit risk. The impairment loss for debt instruments measured
at amortised cost using the expected credit loss model is subject
to a number of key parameters and assumptions, including
the identification of loss stages, estimates of probability of
default, loss given default, exposures at default and discount
rate, adjustments for forward-looking information and other
adjustment factors. The carrying amount of debt instruments at
amortised cost was HK$109,111,000 (2021: HK$105,894,000) as at
31 March 2022 (note 19).
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit
in a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate
("IBR") to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest
that the Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar term,
and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Group “would
have to pay”, which requires estimation when no observable
rates are available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter
into financing transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to
reflect the terms and conditions of the lease (for example, when
leases are not in the subsidiary’s functional currency). The Group
estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest
rates) when available and is required to make certain entity-
specific estimates (such as the subsidiary’s stand-alone credit
rating).
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on their products and services and has three
reportable operating segments as follows:

(a) the production, dyeing and sale of knitted fabric, yarn and
garments segment;

(b) the retailing and distribution of casual apparel and
accessories segment; and

() the "others” segment comprises, principally, the provision
of franchise services and property investment.

Management monitors the results of the Group's operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/
(loss) which is a measure of adjusted profit/(loss) before tax.
The adjusted profit/(loss) before tax is measured consistently
with the Group’s profit before tax except interest income, loss
of inventories due to a fire accident, non-lease related finance
costs and share of profit of an associate, are excluded from such
measurement.

Segment assets exclude time deposits, an investment in an
associate and deferred tax assets as these assets are managed on
a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank borrowings,
tax payable and deferred tax liabilities as these liabilities are
managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference
to the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the
prevailing market prices.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4., EBEEER @)
The following tables present revenue, profit and certain assets, T%%$§Eﬁ§—§::fﬁ_ﬂ =+—-HK
liabilities and expenditures information of the Group for the =B —FZA=T-HLEFEZWA - afl
years ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021: REHARE - BERZLES -

Production,
dyeing and sale of Retailing and
knitted fabric,yamand  distribution of casual
garments apparel and accessories Others Eliminations Consolidated

ithh  RORRKZ ERRHNZ

EHRER FERAH A HE

w o m w o m w wm o m 2022 01
Z§-cfF CEC-F CPocE ZEC-F C§ICE TC-F CPoCF TRC-F C§IF CRC-F
HKS'000 HK$’000 HKS 000 HK$000 HKS 000 HK$000 HKS'000 HK$’000 HKS000  HKS000
BETT  EEFr BT BETr BETn BEfn BEFn BETn BEFr BETa

Segment revenue: PERA:

Sales to external customers EFPREE 5543575 4,643,647 2495864 2,704,904 3733 3,022 - - 80431712 7351573

Intersegment sales e HE 154,532 138,766 9,561 - 8,334 8361  (172421) (147,127 - -

Other revenue R A 46,277 71,821 35,461 33942 46,234 34,703 (2,726) 726) 125246 137,740

5744384 4854234 2,540,886 2,738,846 58,301 46,086  (175,153)  (149,853) 8,168,418 7,489,313

Segment results PERE 563,944 566,653 (288,795)  (199,127) 22,383 42,918 12,887 (196300 310419 390,814
Reconciliation: Eh
Interest income FIEWA 28,839 27,776
Loss of inventories due to SR EREX

afire accident (162,278) -
Finance costs (excluding interest ~ BIRER (TEERE

on lease liabilities) =) (,257) (7.736)
Share of profit of an associate FlBE N D57 28,795 8,838
Profit before tax BB AR 198,518 419,692
Income tax expense #a (11,809 (145,733)
Profit for the year RERHA 186,709 273,959
Segment assets ﬁﬁﬁé 5721516 5731479 2541870 2,694,430 574,296 541,330 (1,671,433) (1,435230) 7,172,249 7,532,009
Reconciliation: il
Investment in an associate Wﬁ“‘“ ARE - 7,126
Unallocated assets O EEE 1,805,499 1,201,259
Total assets HEE 8,977,748 8,740,394
Segment liabilities AEEE 1159284 1,082,163 2,226,301 2,040,587 39,529 48,894 (1,334,080) (1,097,876) 2,091,034 2,073,768
Reconciliation: EiN
Unallocated liabilities I EER 1,451,195 1,266,873
Total liabilities =t 3562229 3,340,641
Other segment information: HthAEER
Depreciation and amortisation ~ HTER#8 194978 180554 26993 283073 - - - - 464912 463,627
Capital expenditure* BRERH* 251,417 125,850 48,699 57,386 - - - - 300,116 183,236
Write-down/(reversal of write- HEHE,/ (HFRE)

down) of inventories 107,128 (52451)  (32,064) 50,306 - - - - 75,064 (2,145)
Impairmenti{reversal of BUEHRE/ (HERE)

impairment) of trade receivables (4.397) 4397 (17,729) 13,687 - - - - (22126 18,084
Impairment of right-of-use assets ~ FREEERE - - M6 15,004 - - - - 40769 15,004
Impairment/(reversal of ROEBRAN

impairment) of debt instruments  ERTEHE/(HESE)

at amortised cost - - (2,820) 13211 - - - - (2,820) 13211
Net fair value gain on investment ~ REMER L

properties WETFE - - - - (14082 (1,258) - - (14,082) (1,258)

* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and * BEARMLHEEFTEYE  BERRE  #
equipment, construction in progress and the land portion classified BETERSIEE R ESEN ;LG o

under right-of-use assets.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Geographical information

The following table presents geographical revenue and non-
current assets information of the Group for the years ended 31
March 2022 and 31 March 2021:

31 March 2022 —E-—#=H=+—H

DHEER (#)
mﬁﬁﬂ

—7_—$ A=+-— Etiﬁzﬂﬁwxg
FRBEEER :

USA Mainland China Japan Hong Kong Others Eliminations Consolidated
| ME AR B ik it 43 Be
00 20 022 201 0 201 22 0 022 201 00 20 022 201
C8-CE CEC-E OCECCE CEC-E OCECCE OCEC-F OCECCE OCEC-F OCBCCE CEC-FE OCBCCE CEC-FE OCECCE OCEC-E
HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00
BFr B B j BEFT Vi I Vi Vi 59 T BEFT T
Revenve fromexternal ~ SPREEUA
customers 269077 2551595 3829672 3407964 692169 370,066 717612 8I51 109542 199797 - - 8031 13515m3
Non-current assets FrEEE - - 1,660,509 1,606,087 - - 83768 85387 1289 - (144083) (143715 2373086 2,287,759

The Group’s geographical revenue and non-current assets
information, excluding long-term rental deposits, long-term
debt instruments at amortised cost, financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and deferred tax assets, are based on the
locations of the markets and assets, respectively.

Information about major customers
No sales to a single external customer (2021: Nil) contributed to
more than 10% of the Group’s revenue during the year.

REEMBEBRARERBEEER(TRER
HEERE  REOZCHERAHEETA

“Aﬁﬁkﬁmméﬂé?&LLmﬁﬁ
DRRBETEREE AT

FEEFZEH
KER > BEE-IRAEF(ZT=—
FIU AL R EEAIURA10% 2L L ©

F 8
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R =E

31 March 2022 —E=-—#=H=4+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. WA~ B AR S
Revenue from contracts with customers REEZFITLNESLNERA
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WA DHMT
2022 2021
— 22— —E_—F
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT BT T
Sale of goods HEEMm 8,022,048 7,334,433
Rendering of yarn dyeing services RMRD IR 17,391 14,118
Franchise and royalty income SR RE RERWA 3,733 3,022
8,043,172 7,351,573
(i)  Disaggregated revenue information (i)  DHFRAEH
For the year ended 31 March 2022 BE-_Z-__F=H=+—HLEFE
Rendering of Franchise
Sale of yarndyeing and royalty
Types of goods or services goods services income Total
RHRY  BHKER
EmkREER HEEm PR VL ON =
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$°000
BETT BT T EBETF T EBETFT
Segments |
Production, dyeing and  §t&# ~ BO R KK Z
sale of knitted fabric, E R
yarn and garments 5,526,184 17,391 - 5,543,575
Retailing and distribution {ERRRZ &Y
of casual apparel and BER D
accessories 2,495,864 - - 2,495,864
Others Hith - - 3,733 3,733
Total revenue from ZEIRNASE
customers 8,022,048 17,391 3,733 8,043,172

Geographical markets 35 T 35

Hong Kong 58 717,612 - - 717,612
Mainland China AR KB 3,808,548 17,391 3,733 3,829,672
United States of America %[ 2,694,177 - - 2,694,177
Japan =N 692,169 - - 692,169
Others Hith 109,542 - - 109,542
Total revenue from ZEIRASE

customers 8,022,048 17,391 3,733 8,043,172
Timing of revenue A TERR IS

recognition

At a point in time AR —p5E, 8,022,048 17,391 - 8,039,439

Over time RE—IFER - - 3,733 3,733
Total revenue from ZEIRASE

customers 8,022,048 17,391 3,733 8,043,172
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5.

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R &E

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2021

Types of goods or services

EmRRBES

5.

Sale of
goods

HEER
HK$°000
BT T

31 March 2022 —E-—#=H=+—H

WA~ B A R )

REEEFTIHELINBA (F)

()  PIRRAEH(E)
BE-E--F=A=1+-—BLEE

Franchise
and royalty
income
FRER
HRWA
HK$000
BT

Rendering of
yarn dyeing
services
RERYD
BR#%
HK$000
BT T

Total
A
=N
HK$°000
BEFT

Segments E
Production, dyeing and  #t4i7 « O RKKZ

sale of knitted fabric, EHERER

yarn and garments 4,629,529 14,118 - 4,643,647
Retailing and distribution {EfRR &4~

of casual apparel and ZERDH

accessories 2,704,904 - - 2,704,904
Others Hi - - 3,022 3,022
Total revenue from el PN

customers 7,334,433 14,118 3,022 7,351,573
Geographical markets 35 T 5
Hong Kong B8 822,151 - - 822,151
Mainland China 1= NS 3,390,824 14,118 3,022 3,407,964
United States of America %[ 2,551,595 - - 2,551,595
Japan SPiN 370,066 - - 370,066
Others Hith 199,797 - - 199,797
Total revenue from EFWAGE

customers 7,334,433 14,118 3,022 7,351,573
Timing of revenue PN 130!

recognition

At a point in time RE R 7,334,433 14,118 -~ 7,348,551

Over time RE KR - - 3,022 3,022
Total revenue from EFEWRAE

customers 7,334,433 14,118 3,022 7,351,573

EAERETFRAT —T--FRH



Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R =E

31 March 2022 —E=-—#=H=4+—H

©

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued) 5 WA > HtRA R WK #)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued) RERFFITLNEHNHRA (E)
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (continued) (i) DM ER](7E)
The following table shows the amounts of revenue TRARNEREHRNERDL AR E
recognised in the current reporting period that were et AEHEaBEZWASEE
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the
reporting period:
2022 2021
— 22— —E_—F
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT BT T
Revenue recognised that was included in  REF] - THEHEZUWA
the contract liabilities at the beginning BEREH
of the year: aEd:
Sale of goods HEER 14,534 26,639
Customer loyalty programmes EFEHE 4,294 5,542
18,828 32,181
(i) Performance obligations (i)  BHEF
Information about the Group’s performance obligations is FEFBENEFEZNT ¢
summarised below:
Sale of goods #HEHin
The performance obligation is satisfied upon acceptance of BREFEEFEZEMFEIET -
the products by the customers. The Group's trading terms FEEHREFNEZRREZURER
with its customers are mainly on credit and by cash. The RE o REI—RBIOKRA °
credit period is generally within 90 days.
Rendering of services 1EHIRTS

The performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time
when services are rendered and payment is generally due
upon completion of services and customer acceptance,
except for some customers, where payment in advance is
normally required.

Franchise and royalty income

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services
are rendered and advances are normally required before
rendering the services. Franchise contracts are for periods
of one to two years.

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R &E

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(iii)

Unsatisfied performance obligations

For the sale of goods and rendering of yarn dyeing services,
the Group does not expect to have any contracts where
the period between the transfer of the promised goods
or services to the customer and payment by the customer
exceeds one year, and therefore the transaction price
allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed as
permitted by HKFRS 15.

For franchise and royalty income, the amounts of
transaction prices allocated to the remaining performance
obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at 31
March 2022 and 31 March 2021 are as follows:

Within one year —FR
More than one year ZR—4E

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the
remaining performance obligations expected to be
recognised as revenue after one year relate to franchise
services, of which the performance obligations are to
be satisfied within two years. All the other amounts of
transaction prices allocated to the remaining performance
obligations are expected to be recognised as revenue within
one year. The amounts disclosed above do not include
variable consideration which is constrained.

31 March 2022 —E-—#=H=+—H

5. WA~ Eb AR WS )
RERESITINEHNHRA (H)

(iii)

FERERIE T
PMEEERREHRORYE - AEEL
BRAEAENZEFPITREERE
HANERRRBORGBB—F - 7
LUZRE B BIREEAEISRTE
EREEXSERETHERERZE
o

PRTFEERENERA > R=F==
=R=t+—-BAR-E=--F¥=A=1+-—
A BRXZEREENTHENER
CREITSEM RET)IT

2022 2021
—ZF—— —FE——F
HK$'000 HK$°000
EBETFT BT T
1,574 414

- 1,139

1,574 1,553

FHENBRE - FRERBKRAZRT
BHEESRERMFRSE TETZE
FRERE - MAERMBRTEINEER
HER-—FAERBBA - EXHEZ
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R =E

31 March 2022 —E=-—#=H=4+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued) 5. WA~ HfbWA RS #)

2022

—E=-=

HK$’000
BT

2021
—E_—F
HK$000
BHF T

Other income and gains HAu A R iz
Interest income FIEWA 28,839 27,776
Net fair value gains on foreign exchange MESTEERMITAEAAERS

derivative financial instruments (note 23) REA(ME23) 7,353 489
Gross rental income from investment REYELLEHSHES

property operating leases ON- L 13,887 27,574
Compensation from suppliers for MR EESHERREE

defective goods 13,204 20,553
Government subsidies* BB 8,948 48,803
Net fair value gains on investment properties REYERQ AEWEZ

(note 13) RRR (M 13) 14,082 1,258
Sales of scrap materials SHERER 22,117 11,298
Rental income from suppliers and others ftrEr R E AU A 7,932 3,721
Sales of steam HEER 1,699 10,042
Net fair value gain on financial assets at fair RA R EFABEZENEREE

value through profit or loss Wi iFEE - 7,976
Reversal of impairment of trade receivables  FEURBR =R E R E] (f13£21)

(note 21) 22,126 -
Reversal of impairment of debt instruments 12T #i 85 A W ER T ERERE

at amortised cost (note 19) (K1aE19) 2,820 -
Sundry income HIEUWA 11,078 6,026

154,085 165,516
# Various government grants have been received from local # 1t T BT 2 & BT Bk © = EIEIR

IEIABTE E 1 A (Z fHF A EAE WA BB 2
Bm HEREEEEN WA 288
BREKBBI20195 B & 2 B
e REF-Z—F=F=+—H FEFW
KB RSB ELB AT B 5 HE BT B K B 1T 1R
HREMBEELE -

governments. They mainly represented financial assistance for
the acquisition of the Group’s new machinery items, which are
transferred from deferred income to profit or loss over the useful
lives of the relevant assets. In the prior year, balance also included
COVID-19 relief subsidies received. As at 31 March 2022, there were
no unfulfilled conditions and other contingencies attaching to the
government grants that had been recognised by the Group.
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6.

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R &E

31 March 2022 —E-—#=H=+—H

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

(crediting):

Cost of inventories sold*
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment?
Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Employee benefit expenses, including directors’
and senior management's remuneration:
Wages, salaries and other allowances
Retirement benefit scheme contributions***

Lease payments not included in the
measurement of lease liabilities

Contingent rents under operating leases

COVID-19-related rent concessions from lessors

Auditor’s remuneration
Foreign exchange differences, net
Net fair value gain on investment properties*

Gross rental income from investment property
operating leases*

Less: direct operating expenses (including
repair and maintenance) arising from rental
earning investment properties

Net rental income

Write-down/(reversal of write-down) of
inventories (note)*

Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of trade
receivables*

Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of debt
instruments at amortised cost*

Impairment of right-of-use assets*

Net fair value loss/(gain) on financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss*

Net loss on disposal of items of property, plant
and equipment*

Loss of inventories due to a fire accident (note)

CEEIZRA
nE - BERRERE
ERERERE

EEBEFRX  BEESN
BREBABME
1% HFERHEMEZE
RAIBRIET B R+

AER(FRENERAR
Zit8):
BERATIAAES
AR 20195 BT
AENES

BB E
EREE FH
REMEN A EREFE

REMFLLHERSWARE

o EREERX (BERER
EEER)REWERENSE

HEWAFR
FERA, (MREE) (#/5)
FEBERSL (RUERR)*

REBERANESTE
(RifERE)*
EREEERNE"
BAAESANRENERERE
BE/ () F e
HEME - BERREEE
BREE
RKEHCEREFRK (M)

BRBE A A A
AEE 2 RBATRRB IR () :

12
14(a)

14(c)
14(c)

14(c)

21

19
14(a)

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$°000
BT BEFT
5,714,222 5,071,441
225,798 236,302
239,114 227,325
1,294,912 1,198,189
7,387 5,471
1,302,299 1,203,660
104,763 78,854
209,160 208,185
(4,493) (25,698)
2,820 2,730
1,232 (6,044)
(14,082) (1,258)
(13,887) (27,574)
3,272 3,177
(10,615) (24,397)
75,064 (2,145)
(22,126) 18,084
(2,820) 13,211
40,769 15,004
4,594 (7,976)
6,121 2,555
162,278 -
BAEREBRAT —T-—FR%



Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R =E

31 March2022 —E-——#=H=+—H

6.

PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued)

Note: During the year, certain inventories located in Mainland China

were damaged in a fire accident which occurred at a third party
warehouse. The carrying amount of the damaged inventories
of HK$110,004,000 and related customs and value-added tax
of HK$52,274,000, totalling HK$162,278,000 was written off.
The carrying amount of the damaged inventories written off of
HK$110,004,000 was included in both “loss of inventories due
to a fire accident” and “write-down/(reversal of write-down
of inventories”. The Group is in the process of liaising with the
insurance company for compensation. Based on the directors’
assessment, since there are uncertainties involved in the insurance
claim and it is still at the early stage of negotiation, it is not
practicable to estimate the potential compensation at this stage.

Cost of inventories sold includes write-down/(reversal of write-
down) of inventories, staff costs, depreciation and lease payments
totalling HK$709,858,000 (2021: HK$585,643,000) which are also
included in the respective total amounts disclosed above for each of
these types of expenses.

These items are included in the “other operating expenses,
net”/”other income and gains” on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

There are no forfeited contributions that may be used by the Group
as the employer to reduce the existing level of contributions.

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R &E

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S 7.

REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES

Directors’ remuneration

Directors’ remuneration paid during the year, disclosed pursuant
to the Listing Rules, Sections 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation,

is as follows:

31 March 2022 —E-—#=H=+—H

ESNSREEAEHERAMUES
FMES

EEME

BLEMBA - BB DQEEAGE383(1))
(b) » (ORMERLBREESHNEER) R
PIE=F > AEEXNESME 2 WEWT ¢

2022 2021
—=F—— —FE——F
HK$'000 HK$’000
BT BHEFT
Fees: wWE
Executive directors HITES 30 30
Independent non-executive directors BYFHITES 1,590 1,530
1,620 1,560
Other emoluments: Hi 4 :
Executive directors: HITES
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EMRIIERSER 24,876 17,822
Performance related bonuses* RIBAMRFEAT* 20,961 10,715
Retirement benefit scheme contributions ERIER T EIH R 18 26
45,855 28,563
47,475 30,123
* The executive directors of the Company are entitled to discretionary * RRAHTEFZETHEBE LA EEEZ

performance payments not exceeding a certain percentage of the
profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company. The
performance related bonuses paid to each director were determined
with reference to the performance of the directors and the results
of the Group.

HrEEEEFIRE T EOEEBBIEZN
RBEHHTEAL - BN GLEEZREHHTE
ARRELFEZEFZREREBRE
EE -

EAELEBRART —ZT-_F§



Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R =E

31 March 2022 —E=-—#=H=4+—H

7. DIRECTORS" AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES (continued)

Directors’ remuneration (continued)
(a) Independent non-executive directors
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors

during the year were as follows:

Au Son Yiu BEAE
Cheng Shu Wing LS
Law Brian Chung Nin EfEF

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year (2021:
Nil).

(b)  Executive directors

7. EENEREBAESMARENES
FiNES ()

BE=MEE)
(a) WBUHFHTEFE
REREXNFBEIFATES2HS

wr
2022 2021
—=F—— —E——F
HK$'000 HK$000
BT T BEFT
530 510
530 510
530 510
1,590 1,530
RER > YE(ZZEZ—F  E)@BX

FHMTESNHMME -

(b) HITEE

Salaries, Retirement
allowances  Performance benefit
and benefits related scheme Total
in kind bonuses  contributions remuneration
e RER E3) RIKEF
ik FREEA HITA STEIfR WemE
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
BETFT BETFT BT BT BT
2022 ot St - 3
Poon Bun Chak BIE 10 15,514 10,596 - 26,120
Poon Ho Tak Bk 10 2,430 5,490 18 7,948
Ting Kit Chung THE 10 6,932 4,875 - 11,817
30 24,876 20,9610 18 45,885
2021 ZEZ-F
Poon Bun Chak EE 10 9,555 6,110 - 15,675
Poon Ho Tak BEE 10 2,229 1,990 18 4,247
Ting Kit Chung THRE 10 6,038 2,615 8 8,671
30 17,822 10,7150 26 28,593

" The performance related bonuses paid in current year and
last year were mainly determined with reference to the
profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company
for the year ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020
respectively, based on the service contracts of the directors.

@ TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R &E

31 March 2022 —E-—#=H=+—H

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S 7. EEMNSRESEAEMERENES

REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID FNES (@)

EMPLOYEES (continued)

Directors’ remuneration (continued) EEWE(E)

(b)  Executive directors (continued) (b) HITEE(E)
In the prior year, as the Group was affected by the outbreak RLEFE  HRAAREEZ 20195 E B
of COVID-19, Mr. Poon Bun Chak, Mr. Poon Ho Tak and Mr. TASRENEE  BWELE BHE
Ting Kit Chung voluntarily agreed to waive their salaries of FERTHIAEERER-ZE=-—F=
HK$5,151,600, HK$180,000 and HK$920,000 during the year B=+—HIFEEEEREEHFES5
ended 31 March 2021, respectively. A 7B%55,151,6007T ~ B%180,0007T K

75#920,0007T °

Save as disclosed above, there was no arrangement MREXFIIEEEN  WEESHNERNSR
under which a director waived or agreed to waive any FHENESIRBENERNHENZ
remuneration during the year or after the year end. HE o

Senior management’'s remuneration SREBRAEME

Senior management’s remuneration for the year was within the AEEEIXNEHREBEAEHMESBR TSI

following bands: :

Number of individuals

AE
2022
—E-—
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 7#2,500,001 7T £ B #3,000,0007T 1 1
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 ##£3,500,001 7T £ %E#4,000,0007T 1 1
HK$11,500,001 to HK$12,000,000 7#11,500,00170 2 78#512,000,0007T 1 1
3 3
Five highest paid employees AfuBEHHMES
The five highest paid employees during the year included three rERNENBESHFHEERRE =N (=F=—
directors (2021: three), details of whose remuneration are set out FZWES HFMFBCRAULNIE
in “Directors’ remuneration” above. Details of the remuneration EME IR - HBTRU(ZE=—F M) &
for the year of the remaining two (2021: two) highest paid SEHEMES (HWIERQTES) WARFEEEH
employees who are not directors of the Company are as follows: HEBWT -

2022 2021

S —E-—F

HK$°000 HK$’000

BT T JBEET T

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EMRIRESER 15,693 15,580
Retirement benefit scheme contributions EIRERIFTEIHR 36 36
15,729 15,616

RAEKEARRLTE —T--F8
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31 March 2022 —E=-—#=H=4+—H

7. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’'S 7. EENESHEEASHMERENES

REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID FMES (@)

EMPLOYEES (continued)

Five highest paid employees (continued) AfuERESHHMES (&)

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose REECXNHESESTFMNEEMESEBRT
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows: DIEE :

Number of employees

EEAH
2022
—=—=
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 713,500,001 £ & %54,000,0007C 1 1
HK$11,500,001 to HK$12,000,000 7B%511,500,0017T £ 7%8%512,000,0007T 1 1
2 2
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. HKEA

2022 2021
—E2_— T —F
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T JBHF T
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts RITERRBEZFE 7,257 7,736
Interest on lease liabilities (note 14(b)) HEEBERE (KE14(b)) 27,088 22,656
34,345 30,392
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R &E

INCOME TAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2021: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong during the year, except for one subsidiary of the Group
which is a qualifying entity under the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime. The first HK$2,000,000 (2021: HK$2,000,000) of assessable
profits of this subsidiary are taxed at 8.25% (2021: 8.25%) and the
remaining assessable profits are taxed at 16.5% (2021: 16.5%).
Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at
the rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group
operates.

Current - Hong Kong and Mainland China:
Charge for the year
Underprovision/(overprovision) in prior

years*

Deferred (note 28) IERAE (f12£28)
Total tax charge for the year REEREBEES
* Included in the balance of underprovision in prior years for the

year ended 31 March 2021 was an additional tax provision of
HK$94,250,000 made in relation to tax affairs as detailed in note
32(b).

RE-FBRPEAKRE
REEEE
FEERBTR (B

31 March 2022 —E-—#=H=+—H

HE

EBFESHERFRANEBRM 2 AT ER
BURRIUBIZE16.5% (ZF=—F : 16.5%)1R
BEE BAEE-RMEATRN  ZQ
AAEERERAFSHMAFINERR - ZM
BT EBE2,000000T (==~ : 8
#£2,000,0007T ) FY FER T A B 1£8.25% (=&
T—F 1 8.25%) T EAB 0 BT WERR
FEBIZ16.5% (ZFE=—%F : 16.5%) =X
BE o EHMMEBERERANEHIE  DREE
EEERCENER B ZRITHENE -

2022 2021
—=F—— —E-—F
HK$000 HK$°000
EBETFT BT T
76,711 58,227
(24,826) 95,316
(40,076) (7,810)
11,809 145,733

* REE-F-—F=F=1—HIFEHHF
FREBETERGT - AR EBFIREY
B IR MIE32(0) 9B 75 FIRATER N BRI
JB#94,250,0007T °

EAELEBRART —ZT-_F§
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31 March 2022 —E=-—#=H=4+—H

9.

INCOME TAX (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before
tax using the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the

Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the

tax expense at the effective tax rates is as follows:

Profit before tax

Tax at the statutory tax rates
Adjustments in respect of current tax of
previous years

Profits and losses attributable to an associate

Income not subject to tax

Expenses not deductible for tax

Effect of withholding tax on the
distributable profits of the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries

Unrecognised tax losses

Tax losses utilised from previous periods

Recognition of deferred tax assets on tax
losses previously not recognised

Recognition of deferred tax assets on
inventory losses

Others

Total tax charge for the year

R AT R

BEERERNBIE
RAFENEBHIRREE

PGB N R
BAZH WA
FAMEBIR R 2 B

BiEm)

BIRAAD TR E A S BB A TP R
B2 BB AT SR LU A ER R E 2 Em
XA FERERHERERGNT

ot 2 S B R L 6 2 ) T AR 0k

ERETRNBIEN R

REEABIRE R

CE BTNz BIREE

EERERVIREEN
IR IR

TR R AR AE B IR FERD

HA

FEEBIEST

In the prior year, the share of tax credit attributable to an associate
amounting to HK$8,260,000 was included in “Share of profit of
an associate” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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2022 2021
—=E2_— T —F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BYTFT BHF T
198,518 419,692
6,974 41,938
(24,826) 95,316
(4,751) (1,458)
(27,421) (53,850)
27,244 33,182
(6,361) (3,175)
72,835 51,548
(1,333) (1,384)
- (19,830)
(24,342) -
(6,210) 3,446
11,809 145,733

REGEE BEBEARAMEEREEE
8,260,000 L E st ABRERIB R 2 BEBE D
ERF I o



Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R &E

10. DIVIDENDS

1.

Interim dividend — HK8.0 cents
(2021: HK5.0 cents) per ordinary share
Proposed final dividend - HK10.0 cents
(2021: HK10.0 cents) per ordinary share

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval
of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the Company, and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 1,381,696,104 (2021: 1,381,696,104) in issue during the
year.

The Company had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue
during the years ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021.

10.

THIRE - BREBRBES.0ML
(Z2Z—F 1 B¥5.00L)
BRARHRE - SREERBE10.01L
(ZZ2=—%F : JB¥10.01L)

1.

31 March 2022 —E-—#=H=+—H

BE
2022 2021
— B —E_—F
HK$'000 HK$°000
BYTFT BHEFT
110,536 69,085
138,170 138,170
248,706 207,255

A ERR S AR B ARG A DRI
BENRFBFAY LB -

BEALAFAEERENEESRAERN

EXSRBANSEDRAAIEBESEMA
ERLEZEEENENZFRNERITEER
1,381,696, 1041 (=2 = —4 : 1,381,696,104
) Z IR BB &

AATREBEZZE__F=A=+—HKZ=Z
——HF=A=1+—HLEFERUEDETNE
EA S| BN E B -

EAELEBRART —ZT-_F§
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31 March 2022 —E=-—#=H=4+—H

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12. Y% BEREE

©

Leasehold
Buildings improvements

By HERTRE

HK$'000
Vi

HK$'000
BEFT

Plant and
machinery

BEREH,
HK$'000
BEFT

Furniture,
fixtures

and office
equipment
i REBR
WAZRR
HK$'000
AEFI

Motor
vehicles
and yacht

RERER
HK$'000
V-t

Total

Ak
=1

HK$'000
E¥Tn

31 March 2022 “E_CFZR=t-H
At 1 April 2021: RZE=-%MA-R:
Cost or valuation BAHGE 1,240,003 960,268 3,289,775 286,027 110,941 5,887,014
Accumulated depreciation and ZHTERAE
impairment (836,499) (922,416)  (2,666,367) (219,160) (96,090) (4,740,532)
Net carrying amount REEE 403,504 37,852 623,408 66,867 14,851 1,146,482
At 1 April 2021, net of RZE=-%MA-R-
accumulated depreciation ENREHTERAE
and impairment 403,504 37,852 623,408 66,867 14,851 1,146,482
Additions RE 301 39,985 81,738 28,114 8,278 164,416
Disposals RE (208) (456) (16,168) (7,890) (800) (25,522)
Depreciation provided during the ~ ERTERE (Hi26)
year (note 6) (42,891) (34,199 (123,319) (18,663) (6,726) (225,798)
Transfer from construction in EORRIR(W5)
progress (note 15) - - 38,479 - - 38,479
Foreign exchange adjustments INERE 13,872 44 24,048 3,355 502 41,821
At 31 March 2022, net of RIEZZE=fA=1-B>
accumulated depreciation and ENRESHTERAE
impairment 374,578 43,226 634,186 71,783 16,105 1,139,878
At 31 March 2022: RZBZZEZA=+-R:
Cost or valuation RAFLE 1,284,634 997,891 3,252,460 252,674 110,754 5,898,413
Accumulated depreciation and ZERAE
impairment (910,056) (954,665)  (2,618,274) (180,891) (94,649) (4,758,535)
Net carrying amount REFE 374,578 43,226 634,186 71,783 16,105 1,139,878
Analysis of cost or valuation: B EE -
At cost A 1,271,032 997,891 3,252,460 252,674 110,754 5,884,811
At 31 March 1992 valuation R-ANZF=A=1-H
1&E 13,602 - - - - 13,602
1,284,634 997,891 3,252,460 252,674 110,754 5,898,413

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022
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31 March 2022 —E-—#=H=+—H

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 12. V¥ BERRKRE®)
Furniture,
fixtures Motor
Leasehold Plant and and office vehicles
Buildings improvements machinery  equipment and yacht Total
i £BR
BT HEETEE BEREN BAERGE  REREE ait
HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETFT BETT BETT BEFT BEFT BEFT
31 March 2021 “E--FZfA=t+-H
At 1 April 2020: RZZ-ZEMA-H:
Cost or valuation BASRHE 1,151,977 884,868 3,063,289 259,814 102,232 5,462,180
Accumulated depreciation ZEHTERAE
and impairment (736,571) (842,477) (2,438,560) (215,726) (84,505) (4,317,839)
Net carrying amount REFE 415,406 42,391 624,729 44,088 17,727 1,144,341
At 1 April 2020, net of R=Z2=ZFMA-A-
accumulated depreciation ENREHRERAE
and impairment 415,406 42,391 624,729 44,088 17,7127 1,144,341
Additions RE - 48,003 64,099 38,421 3,957 154,480
Disposals EE (47) (16) (3,383) (1,356) (130) (4,932)
Depreciation provided during the FRITEERE(HiLs)
year (note 6) (41,59) (56,098) (111,857) (18,998) (7,753) (236,302)
Transfer from construction in BRERIR(MHI5)
progress (note 15) - - - m - 771
Foreign exchange adjustments MERE 29,74 3,572 49,820 3,941 1,050 88,124
At 31 March 2021, net of RZE--F=f=1+-H"
accumulated depreciation BHNRESHTERAE
and impairment 403,504 37,852 623,408 66,867 14,851 1,146,482
At 31 March 2021: RZBZ-£=ZF=+-R:
Cost or valuation BAHER 1,240,003 960,268 3,289,775 286,027 110,941 5,887,014
Accumulated depreciation ZERAE
and impairment (836,499) (922,416) (2,666,367) (219,160) (96,090) (4,740,532)
Net carrying amount REFE 403,504 37,852 623,408 66,867 14,851 1,146,482
Analysis of cost or valuation: RSB -
At cost B 1,226,401 960,268 3,289,775 286,027 110,941 5,873,412
At 31 March 1992 valuation R-AAZ$=A=1-H
fbE 13,602 - - - - 13,602

1,240,003 960,268 3,289,775 286,027 110,941 5,887,014

BAESEERLT —S-—F% @
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31 March 2022 —E=-—#=H=4+—H

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 12. V¥ BERRKRE®)
Certain medium term leasehold land and buildings were revalued PP EHEEL HWREFENR NN -FLES
in 1992 by independent professionally qualified valuers. Since VEEMGEMETER - AEEE—N A=
1993, no further revaluation of the Group’s leasehold land and Fi WEHHBESET W REFHEE-—SE
buildings had been carried out as the Group has relied upon the HEE EBAEERESSTENE16TEY
exemption granted under the transitional provisions in paragraph #* BERZEESOARBEMIRT - %5
80A of HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment, from the HELERBGEARNYE BERREEN
requirement to carry out future revaluations of its property, plant RERBIEEM - WZEHEL W RIEFIRE
and equipment which were stated at valuation at that time. Had SRR BRFTITEER - HIRMEEN BB
such leasehold land and buildings been carried at historical cost 971,000t (= =—* : /8%51,407,0007T) °

less accumulated depreciation, their carrying amounts would have
been approximately HK$971,000 (2021: HK$1,407,000).

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 13. BEWHE

2022 2021
—g:- —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
EBETT BT T
Carrying amount at beginning of year RELREE 517,995 516,737

Net fair value gain on investment properties 1REY% N B EEE
(note 6) (Brate6) 14,082 1,258
Carrying amount at end of year RERREE 532,077 517,995

@ TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R &E

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The investment properties with a carrying value of
HK$532,077,000 (2021: HK$517,995,000) are situated in Hong
Kong. The Group’s investment properties consist of 12 (2021: 12)
industrial properties in Hong Kong. The directors of the Company
have determined that the investment properties consist of one
class of asset, i.e., industrial, based on the nature, characteristics
and risks of each property.

The investment properties in Hong Kong were revalued on 31
March 2022 based on valuations performed by Chung, Chan &
Associates, independent professionally qualified valuer. Each
year, the Company’s board of directors decides to appoint which
external valuer to be responsible for the external valuations
of the Group’s properties. Selection criteria include market
knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional
standards are maintained. The Group’s financial controller has
discussions with the valuer on the valuation assumptions and
valuation results once a year when the valuation is performed for
annual financial reporting.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under
operating leases, further summary details of which are included
in note 14 to the financial statements.

31 March2022 —E—-——#=H=+—H

13. BEWXE#®)

BRTE{E 58 #5532,077,000t (=B =—F : 8
#5517,995,0007T) (VIR EMENREE - INE
EREYMESENNREBZNREIEEF (=
T—F D 12M8) c RESREYEZME -
BERER  AEESRLIRENER &
EEERIAR - B THEETF -

REIBZZHE=ZA=+—H  RBBHRE
VEBBEREXRER 2B BMERITET
Eff - BEARRZESEREEAIDME
R EHAEB 2 REMEETINIEE - B
REMZBEENETSAH B8 - By
REEDHERBRRE - AEE 2 BRI
BERREREEEREF - ARNERFEVHR
REFER(LBREITEIR ©

REMEDUEEHOBETE=E - FHER
BRI B R4 -

EAELEBRART —ZT-_F§
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31 March 2022 —E=-—#=H=4+—H

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 13. REWXE#®)
Fair value hierarchy AREZER
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement TRHAEPREEREVEN DI AETESR

hierarchy of the Group’s investment properties:

Fair value measurement as at 31 March 2022
R-B-_—_F=A=+—HWAARETERH
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs

BX BARARA

RE R ATEEMN BEN

TG HNHRE BWABE AR
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(%E5—#%) (E=#%) (=) wmEm
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$000
EBYFT BYFT BETFT BT

Recurring fair value BT ERE N
measurement for: ARMEFE

Industrial properties TEETF - - 532,077 532,077

Fair value measurement as at 31 March 2021
R-B-_—F=A=+—HWAREFERA
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs

BX BAARA

AR ATEREEHY BEN

TiZHRE [P (¢4 [P ¢4
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(55—%) (=4 (B=4) wazg
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
BT T BEFT BT T BT T

Recurring fair value PMUTEREMERN
measurement for: AREGTE

Industrial properties TH#EETF - - 517,995 517,995
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R &E

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurement between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into
or out of Level 3 (2021: Nil).

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within

Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:

31 March 2022 —E-—#=H=+—H

13. REWHE @)
DREERAF)
ER S-RAE-RHLEFMALE
HEMNEER FTEAESREAREL (=T

Industrial

properties

T¥EF

HK$’000

BEFT

Carrying amount at 1 April 2020 R-Z-ZFMNA—BRAE 516,737

Net gain from fair value adjustments A REFAERRFRE 1,258
Carrying amount at 31 March 2021 and NZE-_—F=A=+—-HK

1 April 2021 —E-_-FMA-BEREE 517,995

Net gain from fair value adjustments A REFAEWRFEE 14,082

Carrying amount at 31 March 2022 R-E-_—F=A=+—AKHE 532,077

Set out below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and
the key inputs to the valuation of investment properties:

Valuation techniques Significant unobservable inputs

fhETR % EXTUBRENGAZE

UT ABIREVEGEMBNGEER R EEH
AEBHME

Industrial properties Income approach Estimated rental value
located in Hong Kong: W& % (per sq.ft. and per month)
UREBNIRET it EEEEFIRRES)
Market yield
mi5REE
Direct comparison Unit market price
approach (per sq.ft.)
BB BEUDSEEFIR)

HK$6.3 to HK$22.1 HK$6.3 to HK$22.0
BE63TEBE2.1T 63T EE#22.07
2.8% t03.3% 3.0% t03.8%
HK$3,930 HK$2,600

3,930 72,6007

EAELEBRART —ZT-_F§
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31 March 2022 —E-—#=H=+—H

13.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Income approach

Under the income approach, fair value is estimated on the basis
of capitalisation of existing rental income.

The market rentals of the investment properties are assessed
and capitalised at the market yield expected by investors for this
type of properties. The market rents are assessed by reference
to the rentals achieved in the investment properties as well as
other lettings of similar properties in the neighbourhood. The
market yield, which is the capitalisation rate adopted, is made
by reference to the yields derived from analysing the sales
transactions of similar properties and adjusted to take account of
the valuers’ knowledge of the market expectation from property
investors to reflect factors specific to the Group's investment
properties.

The key inputs were the market rent, the market yield and
the estimated cost to completion, which a significant increase/
decrease in the market rent in isolation would result in a
significant increase/decrease in the fair value of the investment
properties and a significant increase/decrease in the market yield
and the estimated cost to completion in isolation would result in
a significant decrease/increase in the fair value of the investment
properties.

Direct comparison approach

Under the market approach, fair value is estimated by the direct
comparison method on the assumption of the sale of the property
interest with the benefit of vacant possession and by making
reference to comparable sales transactions as available in the
market.

The valuation takes into account the characteristics of the
investment properties, which include the location, size, layout,
view, floor level, year of completion and other factors collectively,
to arrive at the market price per unit.

The key input was the market price per unit, where a significant

increase/decrease in the market price would result in a significant
increase/decrease in the fair value of the investment properties.

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022
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YIEMFEHOE S R EAKST SRR HBE
SETEE - MEWERB T ANERF
R JREBOMBLMFEEERHEERS G
WS RE - W EEMHYEREEL TS
FEHAEEL AR  URRAEBEREE
HBSEE -
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TIRA - MREHESEFRBEM HD
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WS RSERERRFIEM FHL  BERRE
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R &E
31 March2022 —E—-——#=H=+—H

LEASES

The Group as a lessee

14. #HE

AEBEREBA
AEERELL IR EANSERS LR
BEOHESE  EAEET R UR
BEERtHHEENERESHEHERR20E
SOEMMBE Lt - I BEBRHHER o BT
E-MEB2ZEBFENHES - 5 —LaET
SHERNWHEAR  TERE—FH5H -

The Group has lease contracts for various items of leasehold land
and premises used in its operations. Lump sum payments were
made upfront to acquire the leased land from the owners with
lease periods of 20 to 50 years, and no ongoing payments will be
made under the terms of these land leases. Leases of premises
generally have lease terms between 2 and 25 years. There are
several lease contracts that include variable lease payments, which
are further discussed below.

(a) Right-of-use assets (a) ZFAREE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and EENFERAEEERDARERESHN
the movements during the year are as follows: T

Leasehold Land Premises Total
Tt BF ast
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$°000
BT T BT T BT T
As at 1 April 2020 R-ZE-ZEFWA—H 117,959 499,459 617,418
Additions Hrig - 127,894 127,894
Depreciation (note 6) e (mate) (4,699) (222,626) (227,325)
Revision of a lease term arising ETRA[#ENHEE
from a change in the non- HIREEMAEEN
cancellable period of a lease HEE: - (5,201) (5,201)
Impairment loss recognised EERZRERE
(note 6) (Kiite) - (15,004) (15,004)
Exchange realignment & H AR 193 32,778 32,971
As at 31 March 2021 and R-B=-—F=H
1 April 2021 =+-BF
—E--Ff0NA—H 113,453 417,300 530,753
Additions g - 273,934 273,934
Depreciation (note 6) E (f1:76) (4,695) (234,419) (239,114)
Revision of a lease term arising R A[#sENHEEHIR
from a change in the non- BEmMEENHEHER
cancellable period of a lease Hi - (11,869) (11,869)
Impairment loss recognised ERERZRERE
(note 6) (Hft6) - (40,769) (40,769)
Exchange realignment R (63) 11,779 11,716
As at 31 March 2022 N-EBE-—_&F=8
=+—H 108,695 415,956 524,651

EAELEBRART —ZT-_F§
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31 March 2022 —E=-—#=H=4+—H

14. LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(a)

(b)

Right-of-use assets (continued)

As at 31 March 2022, the Group’s management identified
certain retail shops of its retailing and distribution of
casual apparel and accessories business which continued
to underperform; and estimated the recoverable amounts
of the corresponding right-of-use assets. Based on these
estimates, an impairment loss of HK$40,769,000 (2021:
HK$15,004,000) was recognised during the year to write-
down the carrying amount of these items of right-of-
use assets to their recoverable amount of approximately
HK$74,015,000 (2021: HK$33,817,000) as at 31 March 2022.
The recoverable amount of the items of right-of-use assets
is determined based on a value in use calculation using cash
flow projections based on financial budgets covering the
remaining lease terms. The pre-tax discount rate applied to
the cash flow projection ranged from 12.6% to 18.0%.

Lease liabilities
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements

during the year are as follows:

Carrying amount at 1 April RUA—AREE
New leases HEE
Accretion of interest WERE

COVID-19-related rent concessions
from lessors

Payments

Revision of leases term arising from

HEANE SRR
S

14. #BE @)

AEBEEREBAE)

(a) (EFAREEZEE)
RZBZZF=ZA=+—0  XEEE
BEEEHERRGYZSERDHE

(b)

HIEAREZ20195EBMRES

AEBR B AT HEE

changes in the non-cancellable HEHREEHmMEEN
period of leases HEBF
Exchange realignment (& 5 R

Carrying amount at 31 March

Analysed into: A
Current portion SR ER 4D
Non-current portion REAER (D
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R=A=+—BRHEE

BHER T ETRREBETENTER
o WA EEFERAEEENTRE
S8  REZEMT  REAFRAER
R EE 1B 578%40,769,000 T (=&
——% : #%15,004,0007T) © LLigE
LFAEEEBEENREERRZE =S
TCE=ZA=+-HNAUKRE£EY
B #874,015000C (Z - —F : B
33,817,0007t) - FAEEEEEMNA
B¢ ERRIEFEAEETEREN
DEABENTERERRERENE
B ZRESREBIENRERGES
HRRMVEITETEE - EARRESRETEA
IR REE512.6%%E18.0% °

HEERE
HESEREEREZHNT :

2022 2021
—=E2_— T —F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BYTFT BHF T
540,987 629,532
273,934 127,894
27,088 22,656
(4,493) (25,698)
(264,679) (243,840)
(11,806) (6,214)
16,205 36,657
577,236 540,987
176,824 194,809
400,412 346,178
577,236 540,987
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14. LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Lease liabilities (continued)
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note
37 to the financial statements.

As disclosed in note 2.2 to the financial statements,
the Group has adopted the amendment to HKFRS 16
and applied the practical expedient to all eligible rent
concessions granted by the lessors for leases of certain
premises during the year.

The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases

are as follows:

31 March 2022 —E-—#=H=+—H

14. #BE @)

FEBAERRIBN (4F)
b) EEEEE)
AR B EEIE A S AT RN 37
IR o

(c)

Interest on lease liabilities HESERNE
Depreciation for right-of-use assets FREEERE
Expense relating to short-term leases EEHESERENER
Impairment of right-of-use assets FREEERE
Variable lease payments not included in AT SR TEIE
the measurement of lease liabilities EHEaENStESP

Revision of leases term arising from
changes in the non-cancellable period EENHEERS
of leases

COVID-19-related rent concessions

Total amount recognised in profit or loss

Variable lease payments

The Group leased a number of retail stores and units in
shopping malls which contain variable lease payment
terms that are based on the Group'’s turnover generated
from the retail stores and the units in the shopping malls.
There are also minimum annual base rental arrangements
for these leases. The amounts of the fixed and variable
lease payments for the current year for these leases
were HK$264,679,000 (2021: HK$243,840,000) and
HK$209,160,000 (2021: HK$208,185,000), respectively.

The Group has various lease contracts that have not yet
commenced as at 31 March 2022. The future undiscounted
lease payments for these non-cancellable lease contracts
are HK$5,899,000 within one year (2021: HK$2,616,000) and
HK$8,912,000 after one year but within five years (2021:
HK$5,748,000).

B TS0 SRR B

20195 L E R RS ERENAE R R

RESTERESEST

(d)

R BRRMT 22T - AEEE
RERATBMBHELERFE 165 (Z
AR RRAFERNEAEBRATHRE
BHHERE D HE R H B A PR3t
BEREERNEBESES -

RiEw PiER B E BB ERUT -

2022 2021

— g —E_—F
HK$000 HK$°000
B TFT BHEFT
27,088 22,656
239,114 227,325
104,763 78,854
40,769 15,004
209,160 208,185
63 (1,013)
(4,493) (25,698)
616,464 525,313

AEBEBYHONEBTHZEER
BAEERTEEHNBY T OHEL
EEEERG LN TEBEETIRIRT
HEEERHMNEN - ELEEOARE
NWEEENEERE - ELEHEEELF
EHRE TN 2BEETIED B R
#264,679,000 T (ZF=—F : B
243,840,000 ) K i % 209,160,000 7T
(Z2=—% : jB#5208,185,0007T)

AEBR-ZE-_—_F=A=+—-HAH4
AEARWESERESR - BLFAH
HYAESRMNARRATBERERE—
FRBBE5,899,000 T (ZFE=—F :
#%2,616,0007T) ' —FRERAFRE
B8 912,000 L (ZFE=—F : B
5,748,0007T) °
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31 March 2022 —E=-—#=H=4+—H

14. LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(e) The Group has several lease contracts that include extension
options. These options are negotiated by management to
provide flexibility in managing the leased-asset portfolio
and they are aligned with the Group’s business needs. These
leases generally have lease terms of two to four years with
an additional extension period of two to three years. These
options were not included in the measurement of the lease
liabilities as of 31 March 2022 because it is not reasonably
certain that the leases will be renewed.

(f) The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 31(c) to
the financial statements.

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 13) consisting of
12 (2021: 12) industrial properties in Hong Kong under operating
lease arrangements. The terms of the leases generally require
the tenants to pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent
adjustments according to the then prevailing market conditions.
Rental income recognised by the Group during the year was
HK$13,887,000 (2021: HK$27,574,000), details of which are
included in note 6 to the financial statements.

At 31 March 2022, the undiscounted lease payments receivable
by the Group in future periods under non-cancellable operating
leases with its tenants are as follows:

14. #BE @)

AEBEEREBAE)

(e) FEEBB4LMHBRELHEEENEES
E - BUERERATEERRURME
BHEEEASNETN - XAEFR
HEAEEWEBER - ZEHOWA
EFEH-REMEME » WA LUEEINE
EME=F - HRMAEECERERAE
RESER  RUELBRERTREE
R-BE-—F=A=1+—-HEMNHEASE
FTEEH -

() HEBSHRHAECHERMBEREHM
F31(c) °

AEBERLEA
AEEREBELCEHETHALHETURES
WI2(ZE=—F 1) EAIERFZREY
= (MEE13) - MOKKRII —RERBFP EH
HRFEERREARFERMHREMELE
LHAE  c AEERFREIZHSRARBE
13,887,000t (ZZF = — % : B#27,574,000
7)o FHIEHR IR RMIEEG o

R=ZZZZ=F=ZRA=1—-RB  AEEREHEH
PRI 2 T A A E 2 ARG R REE
RABZEMERMT

2022 2021
—=E2_— T —F
HK$°000
BT

HK$’000
BT

Within one year R—FR 17,255 16,004
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_EELF (BREERWE) 2,963 12,419
20,218 28,423
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15. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

REFD
Additions wE

At beginning of year

Transfer to property, plant and

equipment (note 12) (KrzE12)
Foreign exchange adjustments INERE
At end of year RER

16. TRADEMARKS

AR IREE

Cost and carrying amount

Trademarks are regarded as having indefinite useful lives because
the products with the trademarks are expected to generate net
cash flows indefinitely.

Impairment testing of trademarks with indefinite useful lives
Trademarks are allocated to a group of retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and accessories cash-generating units for
impairment testing.

The value of trademarks with indefinite useful lives is assessed
annually by using the relief-from royalty method calculated
based on a five-year cash flow projection approved by senior
management. The recoverable amount of the trademarks was
equal to the future royalty savings resulting from ownership of
the assets.

BEYWE  BERE

31 March 2022 —E-—#=H=+—H

15. EEIRE

2022 2021

— B —E_—F

HK$'000 HK$°000

BT T BHEFT

28,358 373

135,700 28,756
(38,479) (771)

3,078 -

128,657 28,358

L

2022 2021
=2 T —F
HK$000

BT T
33,293

HK$000
BRTT

33,293

BEERAERES ERFHEERNZE
BNERTERHELERESFRA -

BREAFHBRRNBENR
BARRIEEERRGN 2 TERTER—A
REeEEBEMERERR -

ERCRAFHBENEESFUSENEGEE
RESHEBAEBHENTFRESRBME o
BRZAKNESEAEREEZEEMGEN
RREFE o

EAELEBRART —ZT-_F§
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31 March 2022 —E=-—#=H=4+—H

16.

17.

TRADEMARKS (continued)

Impairment testing of trademarks with indefinite useful lives
(continued)

The key assumptions, including the royalty savings rate, sales
annual growth rate and pre-tax discount rate, used in the annual
impairment testing of trademarks with indefinite useful lives are
as follows:

16.

)
E|RE A FHEENRERE)

ARERERFREEF AN EER
RWERROEE « HEFEEERH AR
EMT :

Royalty savings rate HIEBEGER
Sales annual growth rate HEFMER
Pre-tax discount rates AR =R

The sales annual growth rate is the average annual growth rate
over the forecast period. It is based on past performance and
management’s expectations of market development.

The royalty savings rate used is with reference to comparable
intangible assets and the related royalty rates that the buyers
typically pay for the use of such assets.

The discount rates used are before tax and reflect specific risks
relating to the relevant units.

The values assigned to key assumptions are consistent with
external information sources.

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

RIEEEFE

Share of net assets

Particulars of the associate are as follows:

Place of
Particulars of
issued shares held

AL R

RANCRTRHER EEB

Megawell Industrial Limited Ordinary shares Hong Kong
("Megawell"”)
BESHAERATTEED EBER ]

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022

incorporation
and business

17.

1.5%
2.0%
11.5% - 14.5%

11.5% - 14.5%

FRANEEFERRATRUSBBNTIFER
R DERUERAREEEHTSHREN
a8 -
FFANENEHE R ZRER-—REAZE
BEMXNNALELEERBBEENER -
FrAEBRIR R T BLAT I R RABBE U VA5 E A

PEEFRHERNVEEEIMEARFE -2 -

RBEQTZRE

2022

—E=-=

2021
—E_—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BYFT BT

- 7,126

BE AT ZERINT ;

Percentage

of ownership
interest
attributable

to the Group
FEEEEES
Elrig:s

Principal activity

FTEXK

100 (2021: 50) Investment
holding
100(=F=—%F :50) KELZER
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31 March 2022 —E-—#=H=+—H

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

In the prior year, the Group’s shareholding in Megawell
comprised equity shares held through a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company. Megawell was an investment holding company
and was accounted for using the equity method. On 31 March
2022, the Group acquired an additional 50% equity interest in
Megawell from the other shareholders, which were independent
third parties of the Group and Megawell became a wholly-owned
subsidiary since then.

The following table illustrates the financial information of the

Group's associate that is not material:

Share of the associate’s profit and total REEREHE QT
comprehensive income for the year mﬂ&%@ﬂik

Carrying amount of the Group’s AEBREZ N
investment in the associate RERMEE

Dividend received 2R E

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss:
Unlisted investments, at fair value

FETRE  BARE

Less: non-current portion

Current portion

W SERENER

TREERED

17.

REEZE QT z2RE @)

REFE  FAEEREBENRESEEBAL
—2EREMBARSAERAER - BES

—REEZER

ARLRAHENR - KB

FZA=+t—R AEERHMBEIE=FR

RIS RERRINI50% AR FE -

BEHEENBELR -

SERERBARE

TRENEAEBMSETEANBEE AT 2
B ER
2022 2021
— g —E_—F
HK$'000 HK$°000
B TFT MEF T
28,795 8,838
- 7,126
34,421 50,000

18.

2022
===

—_——

HK$000
B TFr

BAREFABBENESHEE

BAREFABENEREE

2021
—E_—F
HK$’000
BT

53,132 73,029
(50,786) (70,683)
2,346 2,346

The above unlisted investments as at 31 March 2022 and 2021
were investment products issued by financial institutions. They
were mandatorily classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss as their contractual cash flows are not solely
payments of principal and interest.

R-BCZER-Z--F=ZA=+—-A" ' t
MIFLTRERESEMEBRITZREER ° B
RZEERNENRSRTBEEELAERFE
XY BUZERLSEIEARAAETFAE
TNEMEE -

EAELEBRART —ZT-_F§
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19. DEBT INSTRUMENTS AT AMORTISED COST

19. REBERETPELKTAE

2022 2021
B F T —F
HK$000 HK$000
BYTFT BHF T

Debt instruments at amortised cost BREBHENANER TR
- Hong Kong —-B8 79,097 93,722
- Elsewhere —Hihih = 94,102 79,080
173,199 172,802
Less: accumulated impairment B BEHEE (64,088) (66,908)
109,111 105,894
Less: non-current portion B IERENE D (30,102) (45,241)
Current portion mENERLD 79,009 60,653

The debt investments at amortised cost represent investments in
listed debt instruments, with fixed interest return.

The investments had an aggregate nominal value of
HK$173,513,000 (2021: HK$175,198,000), and bore interest at
rates ranging from 3.43% to 8.75% per annum (2021: 4.50% to
8.75% per annum). The amortised cost of the debt instruments at
amortised cost was computed as the amount initially recognised
minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative
amortisation using the effective interest rate method of any
difference between the initially recognised amount and the
maturity amount.

The movements in provision for impairment of debt instruments
at amortised cost are as follows:

At beginning of year
Impairment losses/(reversal of impairment)
recognised (note 6)

REA
(hyete)

At end of year RER
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ZRCHERANEB TASRENEGEEF
BEHz EHEBIA -

ZERENETTHEMESR B 173,513,000 T
(ZZ=—4% : 8%175,198,0007T) * F F
RE3IA3%E8T5%(ZE=—F : 450% %
8.75%) - MEHMENANBE TR 2T #K
RAKFE D RDEERNSERATEEN
A& BILSEEERABRREEE DGR
REeFEHINPASBE o EZHNRTHEET
’;_é“ °

BECHERANER TARERENEZBM

FEE S, ORERE) R

T
2022 2021
—=E2—— T —F
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BHF T
66,908 53,697
(2,820) 13,211
64,088 66,908
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20.

21.

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R &E

DEBT INSTRUMENTS AT AMORTISED COST (continued)
Included in the above provision for impairment of debt
instruments at amortised cost is a provision for certain individually
impaired investments of HK$64,088,000 (2021: HK$66,908,000)
with a carrying amount before provision of HK$73,886,000 (2021:
HK$73,052,000). These impaired investments relate to debtors
that were in financial difficulties and were in default in interest
and principal payments and most of the balance is expected to be
irrecoverable.

The impaired debt investments were considered to have high
credit risk, and the loss allowance recognised during the year
was therefore measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected
losses. The decrease in the loss allowance was due to decrease in
credit risk of default in interest and principal payments

INVENTORIES

Raw materials R
Work in progress E8m
Finished goods B
Consumables AR

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables FEUR BRFR
Impairment E
Bills receivable FEUN ZE S

The carrying amount of bills receivable approximated to their
fair value as at 31 March 2022 and 2021. Their recoverability was
assessed with reference to the credit status of the debtors, and
the expected credit losses as at 31 March 2022 and 2021 were
considered to be minimal.

19.

20.

21.

31 March 2022 —E-—#=H=+—H

REEERANER T Ew)

£ EZEBERANEE T ARERETE
JEE T EE BB E VIR & B %5 64,088,000 7T
(=== —%F : 8%66,908,0007T) * HEEA
ERE{E A8173,886,000 T (ZE=—4 : 8
#573,052,0007T) - ZECHENRERER
BEEAREVBERERZEEITEENERAE
SWE B ASHHEELINE -

HEEBRENRAEASEMARR - BItR
FRABIANWERBERENREFHRBERE
KNEREE o BRBERD RARFEMAR
ENENZNIREBEE -

78
2022 2021
—=F—— —E-—F
HK$°000 HK$°000
B TFT BHEFT
776,540 881,550
325,835 175,937
1,224,033 1,196,204
157,740 134,842
2,484,148 2,388,533
YRR R Ei
2022 2021
=2 T —F
HK$'000 HK$’000
BETT BEFT
935,897 946,353
(29,346) (51,472)
906,551 894,881
219,877 262,320

EWEENEEAEREAR_-_TS-__FR=-F
——F=ZA=+-HWAAREREE - HTlkE
MRSEBHANEAMRRTEN  R=F
CCERZEBE-FZA=+-BNEHEE
EIERFERAMTRE -

EAELEBRART —ZT-_F§
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21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

Payment terms for the Group’s customers mainly range from
“cash before delivery” to “90 days from the date of invoice”. A
significant portion of the customers trade with the Group under
documentary credit terms. The Group seeks to maintain strict
credit control on its outstanding receivables and has a policy to
manage its credit risk. Since the Group's trade receivables relate to
a large number of customers, there is no significant concentration
of credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss
allowance of HK$29,346,000 (2021: HK$51,472,000), is as follows:

90H
90H K k£

Within 90 days
Over 90 days

Movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

21.

At beginning of year REHD

Impairment losses/(reversal of impairment) HERE,CRERE)
(note 6) (Hiate)

At end of year RER

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The
provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of
various customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., by
geographical region, product type and coverage by other forms
of credit insurance). The calculation reflects the probability-
weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting date
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions. Generally, trade receivables are written
off if past due for more than one year and are not subject to
enforcement activity.
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VR R EE(#)
AEEERFEIEENAI ERAE IBIRER
ABHI90K | Hrh A E A 2 LS AREA
EEETRS - AEEYRERTEBE—ER
BESHENEREERK - ARAEEER
EREERSES  ALLESANEEESD
R o AEB LI E R ER LRI EM
IR RS E AR THE A 2 AR o EREER R 3
e o

REBERR - RBERABRIORERBEBE
29,346,000 (== = — % : ##51,472,000
TU) B Z BB IRAR R A ATUT

2022 2021
—=E2_— T —F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BHF T
831,462 846,068
75,089 48,813
906,551 894,881

2022 2021
—E2_— T —F
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT BT
51,472 33,388
(22,126) 18,084
29,346 51,472

RERE B HRBBEE R ETRED T AT
BRHEEEE - BERDREAEBELUSE
B2 ZE%F DA 2 BH B H(ENRH
BEE - ERENURAMEXEARRZE
HHEBD)FE - LR ERRIFARINE
HR ERECEBEERNBEEHNFBES
H -~ BAIARR RARREERAT TR RS 2 &
ERARBPER - —RME - B2 BRI
BHBB-FRBAZIRNBEBTEDAT
LA
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TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure
on the Group's trade receivables using a provision matrix:

Retail and distribution of casual apparel and accessories:

As at 31 March 2022

Current

=38

Expected credit loss rate EEEEREIEER 0.19%
Gross carrying amount IREZE

(HK$°000) (B¥TFor) 145,171
Expected credit losses FEHEEEE

(HK$°000) (BHTFT) (277)

21.

31 March 2022 —E-—#=H=+—H

EWERR R B ()
T X #E B 5 R R S B A M FE U R X
BRAEEERBZER

BREEHN 2 TERDH

R-E-_—f=HB=+—H

Past due
=g 0t
Less than Over
90 days 90 days
DHR0K HEEI0K
0.05% 69.18% 13.26%
34,190 41,995 221,356
(17) (29,052) (29,346)

As at 31 March 2021

R=®=—F=B=+-8

Past due
2B
Less than
Current 90 days
B8 DHR0K
Expected credit loss rate FEHEEEER 2.43% 0.03% 66.10% 19.44%
Gross carrying amount IREZE
(HK$'000) (BMFT) 1,525 169,574 71,073 242,172
Expected credit losses FEHEEEE
(HK$'000) (BHFrT) (37) (56) (46,982) (47,075)
BAEREBERAT —T-—FR
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21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

Production, dyeing and sale of knitted fabric, yarn and garments:
As at 31 March 2022, the gross carrying amount of trade

receivables measured at amortised cost for this segment was
HK$714,541,000, of which the expected credit loss was minimal.

As at 31 March 2021

21.

AL EIYSES e )
B BRI ZEHRES

MRZBE-ZZHE=ZA=+—-08 k28N
DHERANERRAEALELBE
714,541,000 - HHAFEHEEEBEZRHTRE
o

R-ZB-Z-H5=A=+—8H

Past due
BEH

Less than
90 days
YIS

Current
=58
Expected credit loss rate BEHEEREEER 0.00%
Gross carrying amount IREZE
(HK$'000) (B#EFT) 537,481
Expected credit losses REEEEE
(HK$°000) (B#EFT) -

0.00% 15.10% 0.62%

137,581 29,119 704,181

- (4,397) (4,397)

22. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

FAFIR

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables

B SEREERD -

Less: non-current portion:

- long-term prepayments —REFERFIE
- long-term rental deposits -RBsEe
Current portion MENER S

Deposits and other receivables mainly represent rental deposits
and deposits with suppliers. In situations where no comparable
companies with credit ratings can be identified, expected credit
losses are estimated by applying a loss rate approach with
reference to the historical loss record. The loss rate is adjusted to
reflect the current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions, as appropriate. The loss rate applied as at 31 March
2022 and 2021 was insignificant.
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22. FAMNFIE - AT REAERIERRK

HEELT SN

2022 2021

— - —E-—F
HK$°000 HK$°000
BETT BT T
400,841 1,010,374
(14,530) (23,752)
(69,518) (93,029)
316,793 893,593

BERHMBYIRRERERERSRAGTH
EEzzE  REELESNABEENRZATL
EBRARZBERT - BSEELBIRCEER
BEREUETAREERE - ZBBRRETH
B BRE ATARR R B AR SRR (AE )
TR - CBREE DBENEREERTY
REEHNIAMNEUIRRERE - R
ER-ZZBZ-F=Z A=+ HNBERBBET
ERMTRE -



23.

24.

Notes to the Financial Sta

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

23.

Forward currency contracts: RHIEEH
Assets EE
Liabilities a&

The Group has entered into various forward currency contracts
to manage its exchange rate exposures which did not meet the
criteria for hedge accounting. Changes in the fair value of non-
hedging currency derivatives amounting to HK$7,353,000 (2021:
HK$489,000) were credited to the statement of profit or loss
during the year.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

24.

Cash and bank balances RERBITER

Time deposits with original maturity RETZA=@EAREEZ
within three months when acquired EHFER

Time deposits with original maturity of RETZA=Z@A U LR
over three months when acquired EHFER

At the end of the reporting period, the above balances include
cash and bank balances denominated in Renminbi (“RMB") of
HK$473,482,000 (2021: HK$453,242,000).

RMB in Mainland China is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised
to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Time and structured deposits are made for periods
less than or equal to one year depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective
short term time and structured deposit rates. The bank balances,
time and structured deposits are placed with creditworthy banks.

tements B 7§ R 3k i

31 March 2022 —E-—#=H=+—H

PTESmTIA
2022 2021
—EB__F —E_—F
HK$'000 HK$°000
BYTFT BHEFT
8,251 1,802
5,395 2,527

AEBCHITZERNFEEHTETERNE
HMESGHNUEBHERRR - RER > B
BEERBMENFEFIESTEBEBENDA
{EE% 5817,353,000T (2= —4F : 8
489,0007T) °

HeREASEEY
2022 2021
— g —E_—F
HK$000 HK$°000
BT BT
631,782 538,295
363,458 1,110,242
1,368,748 51,756
2,363,988 1,700,293

RFERR L EABBREUARBEEZR
2 RIBITIER B UEAT73,482,0000 (=B = —
£ 1 #B#453,242,0007T) °

ARBRPBERETEERLIGREMER
RIEREAENIESEROIREE - EEXR

NEEERE  FAEEEEERAEREETIH
BB ZBITEARBLBRBHMEY -

RITEFRRES BRITERFNRREUTH E=X
ME - ERREBUERZERBA—FHN
T BFALEBEZARREFRME - WEE
EHERRERBEFRFIRREFIL - RITE
RREMRERBUERENEERIFARIT -

EAELEBRART —ZT-_F§
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31 March 2022 —E=-—#=H=4+—H

25. TRADE PAYABLES 25. FESERX
2022 2021
—=E=-= B
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT BT T
Trade payables FEASERR 908,449 858,693
An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the RIEHR - REZ A2 EFARIERR DT
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: M

2022 2021
-~ —E_—F
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Within 90 days 90HA 860,984 769,962
Over 90 days 90B M 47,465 88,731
908,449 858,693
At the end of the reporting period, the trade payables are non- RIBEER > EBAERAIEMER —KREOKX
interest-bearing and are normally settled on 90-day terms. HYBRER -
26. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES 26. HtENRAKRESEE
2022 2021
—E2-— T —F
Notes HK$000 HK$000
Biat BT BT T
Other payables H{th FE{TBRFX 316,360 214,628
Accrued liabilities EEtas 230,301 417,383
Contract liabilities Sy =L (a) 24,924 18,828
Provision for reinstatement costs B8 A% (b) 18,261 18,334
589,846 669,173
Less: non-current portion W EREH D (9,160) (14,853)
Current portion MENE D 580,686 654,320
Other payables and certain accrued liabilities are non-interest- HitENIRMRE TRAEERIENME - BF
bearing and have an average term of three months. HEREA=EA -
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26. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

(continued)
Note:

26.

Details of contract liabilities as at 31 March 2022 and 2021 are as
follows:

(a)

Advances received from customers W EFETH
— Sale of goods —HEED
Customer loyalty programmes FEFEAHGE

Contract liabilities include short-term advances received to deliver
goods and customer loyalty programme reward points. The increase
in contract liabilities in the year ended 31 March 2022 was mainly
due to the increase in customer loyalty programme reward points
and partially offset by the decrease in short-term advances received
from customers in relation to the sale of goods.

(b)

The movements in the provision for reinstatement during the year
are as follows:

(b)

31 March 2022 —E-—#=H=+—H

Hitb B AR K BT RE (@)

R-E-_—FR-_F-_—F=ZH=+—HZ
EXNEEFBWT -
2022 2021
— - —E_—F
HK$'000 HK$°000
BYTFT MEF T
13,074 14,534
11,850 4,294
24,924 18,828

BHNRECEBINE R KR ZEZHAN K
BREFLHA B AR - REEZ
ZoHEZA=F— Eith”EP"\J‘\.ﬂﬁffﬁﬁi
& fgﬁﬁ/\f’t‘gﬁ/ﬁﬁ KA
BB MPTE Efé%ﬁéfu@éﬁ%ﬂ?
Z;’f”@?ﬁﬁr”léﬁﬁiﬁw‘fffﬁ °

EERAREFAZBT -

HK$°000

BT T
At 1 April 2020 Ro-BEZFFNH—H 13,320
Addition during the year FERFIE 6,415
Utilised during the year EREH (1,401)
At 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021 REBZ—F=A=+—HR=-ZF=-—FHA—H 18,334
Addition during the year 55/7‘73‘/?15 1,050
Utilised during the year FEREH (1,252)
Exchange alignment (B 52 % 129
At 31 March 2022 R-EBE-——F=H=+—H 18,261

Pursuant to the terms of the respective tenancy agreements RIFAREEET A9 B+ KEEF

entered into by the Group, the Group is required to return its
leased properties to the conditions as stipulated in the tenancy
agreements at the expiration of the corresponding lease term as
appropriate. The provision for reinstatement costs was estimated
based on certain assumptions and estimates made by the Group’s
management with reference to historical reinstatement costs and/or
other available market information. The estimation basis is reviewed
on an ongoing basis and revised where appropriate.

ARIEGEEER EREFRE R EYEES
EEHRBERRA S EEABRETIRIE
FEEEEESTBECERLIR "HAM
B i B EBHE B9 TIRR R G5 1EA 18
it o AT RESFFER  WHEEEERT
HEITIERT »

RAEKEARRLTE —T--F8
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27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS

Effective
annual
interest rate

) Maturity
BRERR
(%)
Current wE
Bank loans-  SR{TER - 0.64-3.00 Within 1 year
unsecured I or on demand

R—FRFERER

27.

HK$'000

BETFT

1,308,278

1,308,278

As at 31 March 2022 and 2021, all bank borrowings are in Hong

Kong dollars, RMB or United States dollars.

As at 31 March 2022 and 2021, the Group’s banking facilities
were supported by corporate guarantees from the Company and

certain of its subsidiaries.
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M SERITER

Effective
ERTE]
interest rate

(%) Maturity HK$000
BERER=
(%) Z|# R BEFT
0.49-0.53 Within 1 year 855,330
or on demand
N—FRFRER
855,330
N-E-—FR-= B=+—H" Fr
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28. DEFERRED TAX 28. RILEBIIE
Deferred tax liabilities EEHEE S
Withholding tax Depreciation
on the distributable allowance in
profits of the Group's excess of related
PRC subsidiaries depreciation Others
AEENTEREAT BHRRTEERN
T KRRINAENHE RERHA Hth
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
—E--fF "% ZB--F CZE--F C—B--fF —E--% ZB--F CZB--F
HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$:000
B¥frn  BEfr  BEFr BEFr BEFr BEFr BMFr BETx
At beginning of year RETD 90,658 93,833 9,333 (721) 7214 7,164 107,205 100,276
Deferred tax charged/ FRRERRT
(credited) to the B/ (L)t
statement of profitor loss  EERIE(H329)
during the year (note 9) (6,361) (3.175) (1.213) 10,054 63 50 (7,571) 6,929
Exchange realignment EiAE - - 408 - - - 408 -
At end of year RER 84,297 90,658 8,468 9,333 1211 1214 100,042 107,205
Deferred tax assets EERIEEE
Loss available
Unrealised losses for offsetting
on derivative against future Right-of-use assets
Inventory losses financial instruments taxable profits and lease liabilities Total
fiEeBIA ARfEEHERR EREEER
Bk AEREE ERARANESR HERE ait
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
“B-"fF "B--F -B-CF _BE--F CBCCFE EBEC-F CBCCE CBEC-F OCBCCE OCEC-E
HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BTn  BETn  BETn BEFn BETn BRTn BRTn BRI BT BETa
At beginning of year RER) - - 301 63 27,399 13,216 11,561 10,351 39,261 23,630
Deferred tax credited tothe ~ ERMERRFMEN
statement of profitorloss ~ EERE(Hi9)
during the year (note 9) 24,38 - n 238 1,19 14183 298 318 32,505 14,739
Exchange realignment ENA% - - 298 - 759 - 470 892 1,52 892
At end of year RER %438 - 670 301 35952 27,399 12,329 11,561 73293 39,261
BAERERRAT —T--FRH
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31 March 2022 —E-—#=H=+—H

28.

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$582,906,000
(2021: HK$549,481,000) that are available indefinitely for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in
which the losses arose. The Group also has tax losses arising in
Mainland China of HK$1,140,049,000 (2021: HK$766,593,000), in
Taiwan of HK$94,784,000 (2021: HK$95,501,000) and in Indonesia
of HK$355,000 (2021: Nil) that are available for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in which losses
arose for a maximum period of five years, ten years and five
years, respectively. Deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses of
HK$567,336,000 (2021: HK$503,608,000), HK$904,568,000 (2021:
HK$687,273,000), HK$94,784,000 (2021: HK$95,501,000) and
HK$355,000 (2021: Nil) arising in Hong Kong, the PRC, Taiwan and
Indonesia, respectively, have not been recognised as they have
arisen in subsidiaries for which no assessable profits are expected
to be generated in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the
deductible temporary difference totalling HK$323,611,000 (2021:
HK$229,904,000) as it is not considered probable that taxable
profits will be available against which the above items can be
utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established in
Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008
and applies to earnings generated after 31 December 2007. A
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rates are 5% and 10%.
The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in
respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008. At 31 March
2022, the Group did not have unprovided withholding tax (2021:
Nil).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment
of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.
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ERERIE (7)
AEEBREBELEZHEBEABYE
582,906,000 TT(ZZ = —F : 549,481,000
R EEBIEEEN D A EREER
;Zféﬁaﬁwﬁ}fﬁfé BB ZERBGH - XEH
RPEXE - AERHEELEZHEFSES
Bl 578 % 1,140,049,000 T (== —F : &
#766,593,0007T) * #%94,784,0005T (=&
— & : ##95,501,0007T) & 78 % 355,000
T(ZEZ—F &) ZEEERBEEEND
AAEAZEEAEREEZGEEED R
EFE T EREFANERTER - ANE
HZEMB AR RERTEEEERBE
Ao RES - PEKE - RERINBEEZH
HE B D 5 BB %567,336,000t (== —
F : #%503,608,0007T) * 78#904,568,000
(=B —4 : j8%687,273,0007T) 81
94,784,0007T (=& :—¢ : B#95,501, ooo
7)) R E#E355,000T (Z = —F : F\)WIE
RIEEENEEITHER -

ARG E%323,611,000T (ZBE=—45 :
229,904,000 7T ) AT A E I ZRERER
BEERIBEE  AARKRATKIRESAE
A LiliE B (WRERRRUER

RIBFELEMRSEEE  FERENMEDSE
BAREMIFREESRPRERE10%TEN
BE - ZERH-_ZENF—A—BREH
WEANR—ZZLFE+-A=+—HEELEN
AE e SMFREETVRF—EREBIHE
EHRZEBEAEAEEREHE - BAR
REBMHHEAS%R10% o A AEBRZ
ERNPERERLNHBEARE -EENE—
B—BEBHNEFMI RNKREEENHENSE
£ - F—g::$:5:+—ﬁ i g4
RBERIOFBE(ZZE=—F 1 &) -

RATRMERRIKE ZRE - WEGHEME
BMFTEH 2 RR -



29.

30.

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R &E

SHARE CAPITAL

Shares

Authorised: ERE
2,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.05 each
in nominal value 7B%£0.057C
Issued and fully paid: ERITRHE :

1,381,696,104 shares of HK$0.05 each

in nominal value 7B%£0.057C

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements therein for
the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

The Group’s contributed surplus represents the difference
between the nominal value of the issued share capital of the
Company and the then nominal value of the issued share capital
of the subsidiaries acquired at the date of acquisition, as a result
of the reorganisation which occurred before the listing of the
Company'’s shares in 1992.

The Group applied the transitional provisions of HKFRS 3
that permitted goodwill in respect of business combinations
which occurred prior to 2001, to remain eliminated against
consolidated retained profits. The amount of goodwill remaining
in consolidated retained profits, arising from the acquisition of an
associate, was HK$110,648,000 as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March
2021.

The Group's capital reserve represents the difference between the
consideration for the acquisition of a non-controlling interest and
the respective carrying value.

29.

30.

31 March 2022 —E-—#=H=+—H

LU
LR

2022
=

—_—

2021
—E_—F
HK$°000
BHEFT

HK$'000
BT T

2,000,000,000% & I &

100,000 100,000

1,381,696, 1042 R E{E

69,085 69,085

f#E
FEERAFERBEFENRBSERAF
ZEBEINGERERBRA -

HEARRBRBE-—NANZF LEHAIMNER -

FEECBEHRBAR AR ERITRAZEE
ERPTUCIB I B X B A UEE B B 2 EBATIRAE
Bz=%-

AEECSI AEBUHRELEREIFBIEN
R AFR-EE-FARENEBEHE
EHRBEERGSREER M - EWE—
BELRAEENEHE  NEFRGEEREER
hoHSER B F=ZA=+-HAKZE
——F=A=+—B%%%110,648,0007T °

AN E R IR A TE WUR SR IR R R M (U (B
HERHEE 2 BREHE

EAELEBRART —ZT-_F§
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31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 31. ZR&HRE&REBRMEE
CASH FLOWS
(a) Major non-cash transactions (a) EEXBREXH
During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to KER AEERYENEEZREM
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of HK$273,934,000 = OMERAREERHEEGEZHE

(b)

(2021: HK$127,894,000) and HK$273,934,000 (2021:
HK$127,894,000), respectively, in respect of lease

arrangements for premises.

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities (b)

At 1 April 2020
Changes from financing cash flows

Interest paid classified as financing
cash flows

Repayment of interest-bearing bank
borrowings

New leases

Revision of lease terms arising from
changes in the non-cancellable period
of leases

Interest expense

COVID-19-related rent concessions
from lessors

New interest-bearing bank borrowings

Exchange realignment

At 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021

Changes from financing cash flows

Interest paid classified as financing
cash flows

Repayment of interest-bearing bank
borrowings

New leases

Revision of lease terms arising from
changes in the non-cancellable period
of leases

Interest expense

COVID-19-related rent concessions
from lessors

New interest-bearing bank borrowings

Exchange realignment

At 31 March 2022
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REB-ZEFTA—H

BMETHEE2E

ENFESERRE
BER

EIEM BIRITER

S
R TR AEBRED T
B RS

MEXH

HEAREZ2019FEBRES
RN SRR

M ERITER

bE AR

RIEZ—F=A=+—HK
—E--FmA—-H
METDEEZEE
ENNESERRE
BER
BB SIRITER

HEE
E T E SR Z B M
EENEEEET

FMEZH

HEARHRZ 20195 BIRES
HENESRE S

M ERITER

R

R-ZB-_F=B=+—H

&R D Bl A8 ¥ 273,934,000 T (=
T —4F @ B%127,894,000 7T ) KB
#5273,934,000 T (Z = —F : B
127,894,0007T) ©

RETHELEEEED

Interest-

Lease bearing bank
liabilities borrowings
HEEE M S RITER
HK$000 HK$000
BT BETT
629,532 1,229,533
(221,184) -
(22,656) -
- (2,248,637)
127,894 -
(6,214) -
22,656 -
(25,698) -
- 1,875,157
36,657 (723)
540,987 855,330
(237,591) -
(27,088) -
- (3,377,438)
273,934 -
(11,806) -
27,088 -
(4,493) -

- 3,830,193

16,205 193
577,236 1,308,278
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31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 31. 4#ABeHhEaXWE 4w
CASH FLOWS (continued)

(c) Total cash outflow for leases (0 HEBRSRHEHAE
The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement BERRERERTHER SR HALE
of cash flows is as follows: mr

2022 2021
— B —E_—F
HK$'000 HK$°000
BYTFT BT T
Within operating activities KESTEEA 341,011 309,695
Within financing activities RIESEENA 264,679 243,840
605,690 553,535
32. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 32. HBEERE
(@) Atthe end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not (a) RBEHR > UTHEEERATBHHK
provided for in the financial statements were as follows: FhEE

2022 2021
S —E-—F
HK$°000 HK$000
BT T BT T
Bank guarantees given in lieu of REEADEZREZ
property rental deposits RATIER 5,130 4,115

RAEKEARRLTE —T--F8 @
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31 March 2022 —E=-—#=H=4+—H

32. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued) 32. HBEEBE®
(b) In prior years, the Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department (b) RURIEE: BB8ERBRE(HEED @A
(the “IRD") initiated a review on the tax affairs of certain EENNHMBAREREFR -TEZERH
subsidiaries of the Group for the years of assessment from CEEREIE-N/ZE—LRBE
2005/2006 to 2016/2017. ENBSEEETER
Details of protective tax assessments issued by the IRD to 5 B A E B I B A 7 % A REE
certain subsidiaries of the Group: MRS
Protective tax assessments Tax reserve
FREE MBS T certificates
Related to the year of assessment Year and month of issue Tax amount purchased
TERRFE BHEHRAH EaHE CHBERFSESR
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT B F T
2005/2006 March 2012 69,125 4,500
—2TR/=FEX —2--%=A
2006/2007 March 2013 189,000 31,500
S AV —ZET-=%=AH
2007/2008 March 2014 388,878 34,000
e =)\ —ZE-NFE=A
2008/2009 March 2015 376,200 38,000
—EENZETH —Z-RHF=R
2009/2010 March 2016 323,648 38,000
—ETH-E-F —E2-R¥=RA
2010/2011 January 2017 237,600 50,000
—E-F /—E—— —ZT—tH—A8
2011/2012 January 2018 183,745 7,090
—E2—— /-8 —E-NE—A
2012/2013 April 2018 and January 2019 175,049 46,069
—E—— /CF—= —E-\FNAR=ZF-HIE—A
2013/2014 April 2018 and January 2020 502,200 166,320
—E-—=/"%F—N —E-\FNAR=ZE=ZF—HA
2014/2015 April 2018 and November 2020 250,680 82,500
—E— /—E-F —E-N\FNAR-—ZE-ZEF+—A
2015/2016 April 2018 230,400 71,710
—E-F —F—X —Z-)\EHmA
2016/2017 April 2018 129,628 49,808
—E—xE—+ —Z-)\FMmA
3,056,153 619,497

@ TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022
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32. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(b)

(continued)

The IRD has not issued any protective tax assessments to
the Group for the years of assessment from 2017/2018 to
2018/2019, but the tax review of certain subsidiaries of
the Group also covered the aforesaid years of assessment.
Having considered the professional tax advice and the legal
opinion as well as all available information, the Group
genuinely believed that the Group was in a favorable
technical position in dispelling the IRD’s concern through
years of legal trials. However, in order to release the
Group's resources back to the daily business operation and
avoid further protracted argument over the long tax dispute
with the IRD, the Group submitted a settlement proposal
(the “Settlement Proposal”) to the IRD for compromising
the tax affairs during the year ended 31 March 2022. After
the submission, the Group received assessments and a letter
dated 29 July 2021 and 3 August 2021 respectively from the
IRD confirming the acceptance of the Settlement Proposal.

With the Settlement Proposal accepted by the IRD, the
tax affairs have been fully and finally resolved. Based
on the Settlement Proposal, the total net additional tax
and interest payable in regard of the tax affairs was
HK$351,021,000. The Group has already made sufficient
tax provisions in the financial statement for the year ended
31 March 2021, and therefore the Group does not need
to make additional tax provision for the year ended 31
March 2022. After utilization of HK$285,201,000 tax reserve
certificates and HK$65,820,000 provisional tax kept by the
IRD for the additional tax charged, the IRD refunded the
overpaid provisional tax and the unutilized amount of tax
reserve certificates to the Group, totaling HK$368,860,000.

31 March2022 —E—-——#=H=+—H

32. BEE®)

(b)

(#)

BRLIARR -t —B-NEZZ
N ZE-ARBRFERAREBRE
HAEMREER BTG - BAEEED
BB A BB B IORE LR F
E - REREERBRBIEEZRR
BAIASNER  RNEBEHEARE
REEHARNEEER - AEBTH
BRBEBAER ERERA R R
B R BT BEAEENERBRR
AEXBEERBRENRHE TR
BN BETRBRIRAR - REBRE
E-E_HEZA=Z+-ALFERM
BBRERRT —BMER = (ZNES
R UZBEBRBEEE - BRE - &
EEREBRBOBNE-ZE=-_—FtA
ZHABNZEZ-FNAZHEHN

RRMNBER R 2R R R o

BERRBESINEAR  ZHBSER
EREWHELEMR o RIBZMNBHR
BB EENETTEMNEABIERER
B 578 %351,021,0007T « AEBES
EBE-_Z--—F=A=+-—HLEFE
ZEHREMBHRRABERHATNEBEE
A AEEEERZRBEBIEE_Z
=A==+ -ALFERBERES
RIFLRE o 7£ 5 A 78 %5 285,201,000 7T HY
B H AR B EH B E%65,820,0007T
HEHBRRZFREIFEER > BEE
REBZSHNEHBARAERANEB S
SETAEE 5518 % 368,860,000

T °©

EAELEBRART —ZT-_F§
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33. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 33. ERMEE
The commitments for capital expenditure of the Group at the end REBENRERREUTEAE L HAE :

of the reporting period were as follows:

2022 2021
—EC —E—F

— =

HK$°000 HK$000
BEFT BT

In respect of property, plant and equipment, F¥% - BEKRRE @ 25140

contracted but not provided for BRZRE 55,798 22,669
34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 3. BEAEXXRS
(@)  During the year, the Group had the following related party (@) RER > TEEZETUTEEALR
transactions: %

2022 2021
—E—— —EB-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BYFT BT
Rental expenses paid to MEEQ R
related companies HEEA (i) 19,967 19,293

Note: Mt -

(i) Rental expenses were paid to related companies, of which (i) M B HR LT EE R AERHG
certain directors of the Company are also the directors BERPEAEZHE L A EERE
and beneficial shareholders, for the provision of directors’ & BEFIH RIS ZERE]
quarters, retail outlets and a training centre for certain REEREmRRIBALEzZE%
subsidiaries in Hong Kong and Mainland China. The directors EF - EBZRBEAZHLIREH
considered that the monthly rentals were charged based on BELE#FTHZ TS BISET ° 114
the prevailing market rates at the dates of entering into the CPEEFZHLEAE GITRESZH
tenancy agreements. The rental expenses of the directors’ 2 WFIIRUBIRENZLT

quarters were included in the directors’ remuneration as
detailed in note 7 to the financial statements.

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

On 17 January 2020, the Group entered into a lease
agreement with Mountain Rich Limited (“MRL"), a company
wholly owned by Mr. Poon Bun Chak, an executive director
and controlling shareholder of the Company, to lease
Tianjin Bin Jiang Fu Shi Commercial Building at Bin Jiang
Road, He Ping Qu, Tianjin, China from MRL as a retail outlet
for the retail and distribution of apparel and accessories
business of the Group for a term of two years commencing
from 1 April 2020 at the monthly rent of RMB1,329,900
for the period from 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2022. During
the year, the Group paid to MRL operating lease rentals
in respect of the above property of HK$14,360,000 (2021:
HK$13,572,000).

On 17 January 2020, the Group entered into a lease
agreement with Latex (Hong Kong) Limited (“Latex”), a
company wholly owned by Mr. Poon Bun Chak, an executive
director and controlling shareholder of the Company,
to lease a property located at 22 Perkins Road, Jardine’s
Lookout, Hong Kong from Latex as a director’s quarters of
the Group for a term of two years commencing from 1 April
2020 at the monthly rent of HK$400,000. During the year,
the Group paid to Latex operating lease rentals in respect of
the above property of HK$4,800,000 (2021: HK$4,800,000).

On 17 January 2020, the Group entered into a lease
agreement with Winson Link Enterprises Limited (“WLEL"),
a company wholly owned by Mr. Poon Bun Chak, an
executive director and controlling shareholder of the
Company, to lease Room 4207B, 42nd Floor, Metroplaza
Tower Il, 223 Hing Fong Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories,
Hong Kong and a car parking space from WLEL as a training
centre of the Group for a term of two years commencing
from 1 April 2020 at the monthly rent of HK$67,240. During
the year, the Group paid to WLEL operating lease rentals
in respect of the above property and a car parking space of
HK$807,000 (2021: HK$807,000).

31 March2022 —E—-——#=H=+—H

34, BEALRS #®)

(b)

RZZ-ZF—-—HF+tH REBEHEWL
EEBRERLATA(LE D (BAEATMN
BOTESRERRREWELELER
B)ETHERZE > OUEABELRSP
Bl R ET M BB 828255 — 28695 HY
REEIRGEE - EAEEEERK
ﬁ*wz-- ROBEBNSENT A
—E_TFENA-BRRANWE B4
HEH ARH1,329,9007T o RAARE
AEER LLAYERLEZFEERE
£ B8 14,360,000 (== —F :
7##513,572,0007T) °

R-ZZE-ZTF—-A++tH FxEEH
YEBEB)ERAA(ZED (BEA
AHTESERERBRREWERLLESR
EER)STHERS - o ERAN
REBEALAERB22RNYE
EAAEB-—EEBEE2RA AT
—ZFENE-HRANHWE SAH
£ 5B %400,0007T c AARE - REE
Ry EnIELIAFEEHRERS
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EHER)EITHERS - mkiEEARHE
BB ARFEESK22IEHESES
HFEA2124207BE - fEAAREEMNIE
ALk —ENRE B REBFEER
10— 165RBX EX B R KEMNEEL o
H-_Z_ZHFENA—HE BERE
FRAEEHBEGET,2407T c RAFE » &K
SER LMY ER —EFEMEKEE
TS ERSE807,000T (=
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 3. BAEAXTRZ @)

(b)

(0

(continued)

On 17 January 2020, the Group entered into a lease
agreement with Sonway Enterprises Limited (“SWEL"),
a company wholly owned by Mr. Ting Kit Chung and his
spouse, an executive director and controlling shareholder
of the Company, to lease a property located at 3/F, Ernest
Court, 27 Ngan Mok Street, Tin Hou, Hong Kong from SWEL
as a director’s quarters of the Group for a term of one
year commencing from 1 April 2020 at the monthly rent
of HK$38,000. On 1 July 2020, the tenancy agreement was
early terminated. In the prior year, the Group paid to SWEL
operating lease rentals in respect of the above property of
HK$114,000.

Rental expenses paid to related companies also constituted
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. Save as disclosed under the
section of “Details of non-exempt continuing connected
transactions” of the Report of the Directors, the rental
expenses paid to related companies which constitute
continuing connected transactions are exempt from the
reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements set out in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:

Short term employee benefits EHEEET

Post-employment benefits BBz EA

Total compensation paid to FEEEABR
key management personnel Eaiy pk

The key management personnel of the Group refers to the
executive and independent non-executive directors of the
Company.

Further details of directors’ remuneration are included in
note 7 to the financial statements.
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(b)

(@]

(#)

RZZ-ZF—-A++tA REEHEE
REZEEGRAR (NER ] (BAQTH
TESTHIERE2EHAE)STHAE
% 0 EIERABEBREREEH275
KZENE  EALEBNESES -
H-ZE-ZENA—HE A&
S AES HBY38,000T - FHMABLHR
TECEZFLA-HRERBKRLE -RLEE
E - AEER DMy ERIEE X AEE
HERSBH114,0007T ©

AEEARXNNESERTER LD
BRABVATHEERS - BREERE
EERERTERRNBERERS
FHEI -5 BT RAREEARAH
HEERATBRER EHRAE14ATSR
EEHRRFER  DERBIRRAED

TEETFTEERASHH
2022 2021
—=E2_— T —F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BYTFT BHF T
47,457 30,097
18 26
47,475 30,123

REENFTEEEASNEAQRNHT
EENBUIFHITES -

EEMEFRENYBRRMEET -
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 35. RENESINEMIA
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial REEHR FESHIAREENT :

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Financial assets THMEE
2022 =F==F
Financial Financial
assets at fair assets at
value through amortised
profit or loss cost Total
BARERA REBERE
BENERMEE WEMEE &%
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BETT BT BT
Trade receivables FEWERTR - 906,551 906,551
Bills receivable EWEE - 219,877 219,877
Financial assets included in prepayments, BEREARE -FTE2Rk
deposits and other receivables HiEWIRR A Z
SREE - 126,134 126,134
Debt instruments at amortised cost REBERANERIA - 109,111 109,111
Financial assets at fair value through BEARBEFABRN
profit or loss SREE 53,132 - 53,132
Long-term rental deposits Efeke - 69,518 69,518
Derivative financial assets TTHEERERE 8,251 - 8,251
Cash and cash equivalents HERHREZEEY - 2,363,988 2,363,988
Total B|&r 61,383 3,795,179 3,856,562
2021 —E--F
Financial Financial
assets at fair assets at
value through amortised
profit or loss cost Total
BAREGA  REEEEAR
BRNEHEE MemEE &t
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
JBEFT BT JBEFT
Trade receivables FEWERRR - 894,881 894,881
Bills receivable EWER - 262,320 262,320
Financial assets included in prepayments, BENEARE -T2k
deposits and other receivables Hit WA Z
SREE - 692,969 692,969
Debt instruments at amortised cost REBERANESTIA - 105,894 105,894
Financial assets at fair value through BARETABREN
profit or loss SREE 73,029 - 73,029
Long-term rental deposits Rtk e - 93,029 93,029
Derivative financial assets TTHEeREE 1,802 - 1,802
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBASZEEY - 1,700,293 1,700,293
Total =h 74,831 3,749,386 3,824,217

BAEEHERAT —E-—5H @
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued)

Financial liabilities
2022

Trade payables
Bills payable
Financial liabilities included

in other payables and

accrued liabilities
Derivative financial liabilities
Interest-bearing bank borrowings
Lease liabilities

Total

2021

Trade payables

Bills payable

Financial liabilities included
in other payables and
accrued liabilities

Derivative financial liabilities

Interest-bearing bank borrowings
Lease liabilities

Total

FEAHBRSX

NES

BREREMEMRRK
EitEERzERER

TEEmas
ft SERITE R
HEEE

At

FE1BRSR

NES

BEREMMELIRRR
EtaErzEmas

TEEmas
Mt SERITERR
HESE

it
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Al =RE
—E-CF
Financial
liabilities Financial
at fair liabilities at
value through amortised
profit or loss cost
RE B
RAR/BERA RRASHY
Baemas tHas &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000
BT T BT T BT T
- 908,449 908,449
- 10,108 10,108
- 395,211 395,211
5,395 - 5,395
- 1,308,278 1,308,278
- 577,236 577,236
5.395 3,199,282 3,204,677
T —F
Financial Financial
liabilities at fair liabilities at
value through amortised
profit or loss cost
RE#E
FRANHEY
BRNEREE Ea =L ast
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BFT
- 858,693 858,693
- 2,388 2,388
- 391,291 391,291
2,527 - 2,527
- 855,330 855,330
- 540,987 540,987
2,527 2,648,689 2,651,216
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R &E

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that

reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows:

36.

31 March2022 —E—-——#=H=+—H
SRTAEZARBEER
AEESRTACIRAERAAE(REER

HARBEEMEE 2SR T AR &M
Ti

Carrying amounts Fair values
IREE ARE
2022 2021 2022 2021
— 2 —E-_—F —_ - —E_—F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BEFrT BT T
Financial assets SREE
Derivative financial instruments PTHEEMIA 8,251 1,802 8,251 1,802
Financial assets at fair value RARBEFTABEN
through profit or loss SRIEE 53,132 73,029 53,132 73,029
Long term debt instruments at REIREESHRAN
amortised cost BHXIA 30,102 45,241 30,528 45,632
91,485 120,072 91,911 120,463
Financial liabilities SsRas
Derivative financial instruments TESmIE 5,395 2,527 5,395 2,527

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, trade receivables, bills receivable, short-term
debt instruments at amortised cost, financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables, trade payables, bills
payable, interest-bearing bank borrowings, and financial liabilities
included in other payables and accrued liabilities approximate to
their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of
these instruments.

The Group's finance department headed by the financial controller
is responsible for determining the policies and procedures for
the fair value measurement of financial instruments. The finance
department directly reports to the Board. At each reporting date,
the finance department analyses the movements in the values of
financial instruments and determines the major inputs applied
in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the
Board.

EEECHMRERASEEY  BURIRR
BWRE - EHRCHENANEE TR - &

FEREMNFIR » T2 RAMEKERE WZ%H&
BE - BARK - BARE - 2RI

BIENHEMEN RS &F’gﬁrﬁleﬁzémﬂ%fi
MARERARMERS  TEHRLETA
M BIE FHEE -

REBRPBREREHBHEEREEH
TAAREFEZHERMNE - BBIHEERD
EERER - NE-RER - BB TESH
TAEESE  WREGEKEAZEIZEDA
B AERESSESHE -

EAELEBRART —ZT-_F§
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36.

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
as the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in
a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a
forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions
were used to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss and debt instruments at amortised cost are estimated based
on quoted prices.

The fair values of the long-term rental deposits have been
calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows using
rates currently available for instruments with similar terms,
credit risk and remaining maturities. Their carrying amounts
approximately to their fair values. The Group’s own non-
performance risk for interest-bearing bank borrowings as at 31
March 2022 was assessed to be insignificant.

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments with
various counterparties, principally financial institutions. Derivative
financial instruments, including forward currency contracts,
are measured using valuation techniques similar to forward
pricing, using present value calculations. The models incorporate
various market observable inputs including the credit quality of
counterparties, foreign exchange spot and forward rates and
interest rate curves. The carrying amounts of forward currency
contracts are the same as their fair values.
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B (MFREREREE) EARS T2ARS
SEAR « EER A ABBERATHS
RefBRE -

BAREFABENEREERRCEENS
HEH TEN D AETRBREG

REEESERSCERERELURT  FERR
RBTEHHAZTAZATAZAREREA
HARRBRERBUFEE D RE - EMHE
HEERQNAEBERS - AEER-Z--F=A1
=t - BARMERTERNE & TEORERE
FERTEK -
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FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 36.
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement

ERMIBEZDARESRE)

TRIPAAEBENEMTEANDIAEFES

hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

&

BARESBHEE -

Fair value measurement as at 31 March 2022
R-ZB-_—_F=A=1+—HHK
Quoted
prices

in active
markets
(Level 1)
RER
THiZH
WE
(55—4%)
HK$'000
BT T

Significant
observable
inputs
(Level 2)
DN
ATEEN
LIPN: (¢4
(8B=%&)
HK$'000
BT

AREFERA

Significant
unobservable
inputs

(Level 3)

DN
FAIBEN
BAZE
(B=#R%)
HK$000
BT

HK$000
BMFT

Derivative financial assets TEeHEE - 8,251 - 8,251
Financial assets at fair value BRARBEFABEN

through profit or loss THEE - 53,132 - 53,132

- 61,383 - 61,383

Fair value measurement as at 31 March 2021

R=B=—F=A=+—ANAREHERA

Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
RER BR EWN
IZH ATBEN TEERERR
HRE BWABE WABE
(55—#R%) (58=#%) (B=4) F]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$°000
BT BT T BT T BT
Derivative financial assets TEEmERE - 1,802 - 1,802
Financial assets at fair value RAREFABEN
through profit or loss THEE - 73,029 - 73,029
- 74,831 - 74,831
EAERETFRAT —T--FRH
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36. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 36. €BiTEREZAAREBEZEH (%)
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Liabilities measured at fair value: BALEFENERE -

Fair value measurement as at 31 March 2022
R-B-—H=F=+—HNAAENERH
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
RER =N X
ey AJEEN THEEN
HE WABE BWABE
(55—4%) (%8=#R) (B=#%) Fot ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
BETT BETFTT BETT BYTT
Derivative financial liabilities THEEmEE - 5,395 - 5,395

Fair value measurement as at 31 March 2021

RIZB-Z—£=A=+—-HHNAREFERA

Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
AER BEX EX
5 AN TrIEERN
HE A BE BARIE
(E—#) (B=#%) (ZB=H) 1azE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BT BT BT BT T
Derivative financial liabilities TESRERE - 2,527 - 2,527
As at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021, the Group had no R-EB-—_F=F=+—HR=-Z=-—F=A
financial instruments measured at fair value under Level 3. =+—H AEETEZAABEIFEE=RZ
SRTA-
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value FR - eREERSREESREMNA AR
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into BE-REFE R ENER > TERE=R
or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial liabilities BASEH(ZZE=—F 1 &) -
(2021: Nil).
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36. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 36. €RiTEZAAREZER#E)
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Assets for which fair values are disclosed: EFEALENEE -

Fair value measurement as at 31 March 2022
R-B-—H=F=+—HNAAEERH
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

RIER DN DN

THiZHY ATEEN TAERERN

WE WABE BABE
(55—4%) (8B=%&) (B=#) ko]
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT BT BETF T

Long term debt instruments at RERCEHEREN

amortised cost BHITE 30,528 - - 30,528

Fair value measurement as at 31 March 2021

REB-—F£=A=t+-HNAREFEBRA

Quoted

prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

RER EDN EWN

T5HY ABEN TRIEERK

HE BARE N6
(8B—#R) (58=#%) € =) k]
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$000
BT BT BEF T BEF T

Long term debt instruments at REREEHERAN

amortised cost BHIE 45,632 - - 45,632

BRERWEWLT —T-—FH @



©

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R =E

31 March 2022 —E-—#=H=+—H

37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other than
derivatives, comprise interest-bearing bank borrowings, cash and
bank deposits. The main purpose of these financial instruments is
to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various
other financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables, bills
receivable, trade payables and bills payable, which arise directly
from its operations.

The Group also enters into various derivative financial
instruments, including principally forward currency contracts.
The purpose is to manage currency risks arising from the Group's
operations and its sources of finance.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The board reviews and agrees policies for managing each
of these risks and they are summarised below. The Group's
accounting policies in relation to derivative financial instruments
are set out in note 2.4 to the financial statements.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s bank borrowings with
floating interest rates.

The Group's policy is to manage its interest cost using an
appropriate mix of fixed and variable rate debts. To manage
this mix in a cost-effective manner, the Group may enter into
interest rate swap contracts to reduce its exposure to interest rate
fluctuations.

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group's profit before tax and equity (through the
impact on floating rate borrowings).

2022 —E-CF
Hong Kong dollar e
Hong Kong dollar e
2021 2
Hong Kong dollar e
Hong Kong dollar e

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures
arise from sales or purchases by operating units in currencies other
than the units’ functional currencies. Approximately 67% (2021:
52%) of the Group’s sales are denominated in currencies other
than the functional currencies of the operating units making the
sale, whilst nearly 31% (2021: 30%) of costs are denominated in
currencies other than the units’ functional currencies.

37.

31 March 2022 —E-—#=H=+—H

BRRBREEBEERBE#)

MRER(F)
TRERTEEEMEEMEENERT - &
SENBRBIATNEFI R ESH SER A AL R =
2B (GEHIEERNZE) WER -

Increase/
(decrease)
in profit
before tax
and equity
BRBLAD
R R
i, R

Percentage
point of
interest rate
increase/
(decrease)

FEEHE
i, G

% HK$°000

BT T

1 (14,661)
(1) 14,661
1 (12,356)
(1 12,356

SNE R

AEEFEXZEERAR  ZRARRELEE

L GZEE I ThEE B ME LA SN o B AT SR E SRR

BB o REBP6T%(ZZEZ—F 1 52%) ZHE

RUSERDERI 2 AR -

#31% (22— :30%) ZRARTI LUK EE
I3 “Eﬁ*ﬁ%uﬁl\z ML o
EAELEBRART —ZT-_F§
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37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the RMB
exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the
Group's profit before tax and the Group’s equity (due to changes

in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities).

37.

BRRABEEBEEREE @)

SRR ()

TREBRTRRERR - TREMERMEZE
BIERT - AEBE HBRBIATER R AL B R
FHAERTHENARYERSH (HRNEY
MEEMBEAARENEE) B -

Increase/
(decrease)
Increase/ in profit
(decrease) in before tax
HK$/RMB rate and equity
Bl AR BRBLA
B )T E
CR2) 2, (Rd)
% HK$000
BRFE BT T
2022 —F-=
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB B ARERE 1 10
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB {3854 5 A R FHE (1) (10)
2021 —E-—F
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB B EARBERE 1 1,046
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB {384 5 A\ R FHE (1) (1,046)

@

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that only well-established
customers will be considered for open account terms and the
approval of credit terms is subject to stringent credit check
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, bills receivable, financial
assets included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
debt instruments at amortised cost, financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss long term rental deposits and derivative
financial instruments, arises from default of the counterparties,
with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
instruments, which is considered by the directors as not significant
as the counterparties of these other financial assets are mainly
well-recognised corporations.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties, there is no requirement for collateral.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to

credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 21
to the financial statements.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 37. BIEMESEEERBE %)
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued) EERR(#E)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging BARERR FEIER

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum TREYBEBEAEBCSERRZEEEEZRE
exposure to credit risk based on the Group's credit policy, which RXEERBR(FERBAPERMELY - BRIEH
is mainly based on past due information unless other information HERATEBENHABERRRE H2ER
is available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging TES) UR-ZE-_—FK-_ZE-—F=A4
classification as at 31 March 2022 and 2021. The amounts =t+—HZEHERBINT - T2V zeEAS
presented are gross carrying amounts for financial assets. RS EARMEE -

31 March 2022 —E--F=A=+—H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1288
EH
EEEE AR EEREERSE

Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
E—HR FoREER SRR SEX e
HK$'000  HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BiFr EEFrT BTt BTt BEFT

Trade receivables* FEUR BR TR * - - - 935,897 935,897
Bills receivable i 219,877 - - - 219,877
Financial assets included in BRERBEMRE -
prepayments, deposits and AEREMER
other receivables RRAZEMEE 126,134 - - - 126,134
Debt instruments at REBHERAEN
amortised cost B¥ITE 99,313 - 73,886 - 173,199
Long-term rental deposits REHESZRSE 69,518 - - - 69,518
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY 2,363,988 - - - 2,363,988
2,878,830 - 73,886 935,897 3,888,613

BAEEHERAT —E-—5H @



Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R =E

31 March 2022 —E=-—#=H=4+—H

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 37. BI¥EMTSEEERBE %)
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued) EERME)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued) SRR G EAE T ER (FB)
31 March 2021 —EBE--F=H=+—H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 A
FE A
EEEE AfEAFEHEREEEE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F—PEER FoMHEER  E=RER EEES RE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
wFr BT BT BT BEFr
Trade receivables* U BR TR * - - - 946,353 946,353
Bills receivable EWEE 262,320 - - - 262,320
Financial assets included in BRERBARE
prepayments, deposits and A& REAEWER
other receivables FAZERMEE 692,969 - - - 692,969
Debt instruments at amortised cost 2 #ERAHY
B¥ITA 99,750 - 73,052 - 172,802
Long-term rental deposits REEEES 93,029 - - - 93,029
Cash and cash equivalents RERASEEY 1,700,293 - - - 1,700,293
2,848,361 - 73,052 946,353 3,867,766
* For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified * EE WA R E AR BR
approach for impairment, information based on the provision matrix f%/ﬁiﬁ@zﬁ#ﬁﬂﬁxfﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁﬁ 7321 °

is disclosed in note 21 to the financial statements.

@ TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022



37.

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& R R &E

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity
of funding and flexibility through the use of bank overdrafts
and bank loans. As at 31 March 2022, 100% (2021: 100%) of the
Group's total borrowings would mature in less than one year.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual

undiscounted payments, was as follows:

31 March2022 —E—-——#=H=+—H
37. MRKRBREEBEERBER#)

FRED R
AEEEBERFBRITEIRIRTERUGEE
AESHEEMREZIMRSTE K=
“ZHE=ZA=+—H  AEEHLERN100%
(ZBZ—F 1 100%) ER—FREH -

FEERBERRNERNEE  REFRER
AT E ISR BT

2022
—E—_—
3to
On Lessthan less than Over
demand 3 months 12 months 1 year Total
==
RER =Z@BAUR +t=@BER &BB—F a5
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT EBEFr BEFT BETT
Interest-bearing bank borrowings Kt B4R1TE - 1,256,066 53,551 - 1,309,617
Trade payables FETBRFR - 860,984 47,465 - 908,449
Bills payable ENEE - 10,108 - - 10,108
Financial liabilities included BIENHE A ETIRR
in other payables and REFEERZ
accrued liabilities SRIBE 69,131 322,225 3,855 - 395211
Derivative financial liabilities THEeRAns 5,395 - - 5,395
Lease liabilities HEARE - 49,936 143,456 607,216 800,608
69,131 2,504,714 248,327 607,216 3,429,388

2021
—E_—F
3 to
On Lessthan less than Over
demand 3 months 12 months 1 year Total
=
RER Z@AMUR +t=—@AR ®BB—F &%
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BT BT BT BTt BETT
Interest-bearing bank borrowings Kt 2R4TE - 855,890 - - 855,890
Trade payables FEATERRX - 769,962 88,731 - 858,693
Bills payable FEAT I - 2,388 - - 2,388
Financial liabilities included BIENE IR
in other payables and REFEERZ
accrued liabilities SRIBE 86,161 305,130 - - 391,291
Derivative financial liabilities TTEEREaE 2,527 - - 2,527
Lease liabilities HEaRs 60,385 147,872 418,881 627,138
86,161 1,996,282 236,603 418,881 2,737,927
EXkEREAFRAT —ZT-—F#
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37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the Group will be
able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return
to the ordinary equity holders through the optimisation of the
debt and equity balance.

The Group regards total equity as capital and manages its capital
structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in
economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes
were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital during the years ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021.

The Group monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is total
interest-bearing debts, less cash and cash equivalents, divided by
total equity. The Group’s policy is to maintain the gearing ratio at
an appropriate level.

B EER
kR - RERBESEEY

Total interest-bearing debts
Less: Cash and cash equivalents

Total equity BRER

Gearing ratio (times)
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ERE B =)

37.

BRRABEEBEEREE @)

BEREE
FEBEREEENBAAEBEERSFENSK
EEeh  ANBAKRENEREEDES U
FEEBERMEESIRADE -

BAOEERNEEELRR - ARETLUER
AEURRREOBE - ORRPBESRH
THRURSSAABRELER -RBE-F
—CEZRAEFT-HARZE-H=A=1-—
ALLFER  EXAEENEE  BEREFL
mEE -

REBEREFEBELRERER  EXEE
LEREFNBRERRESENRNENEER
BRUVRERSTE - AEENBREHEERFER
BEEERNEEKTF -

2022 2021
—=E2_— T —F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BHF T
1,308,278 855,330
(2,363,988) (1,700,293)
(1,055,710) (844,963)
5,435,519 5,399,753
-0.2 -0.2
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

NON-CURRENT ASSET
Investments in subsidiaries

CURRENT ASSETS
Prepayments and deposits
Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITY
Other payables and accrued liabilities

NET CURRENT ASSETS
Net assets

EQUITY

Issued capital

Reserves (note)
Proposed final dividend

Total equity

FRBEE
RMBARZRE

RBEE
AN RS E e
RERBREEEY

BRBEE

RBAE
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R
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BRI BRI T

RATRBEBR 2P BRRRERNT ¢

2022 2021

—=F—— —E-—F

HK$'000 HK$°000

EBETFT BT T

1,950,136 2,198,444

207 201

362 352

569 553

110 152

459 401

1,950,595 2,198,845

69,085 69,085

1,743,340 1,991,590

138,170 138,170

1,950,595 2,198,845
BAERERRAT —T--FRH
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 38. AR REK#E)
COMPANY (continued)
Note: BiaE -
A summary of the Company'’s reserves is as follows: KA EFEENT -
Share Capital
premium redemption Contributed Retained
account reserve surplus profits Total
&N &N
RER BE#E BAR%G REER B
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
B FT B FT B FT B FT BT T
At 1 April 2020 R-ZE-ZFWMA—H 703,365 1,695 48,708 1,444,568 2,198,336
Total comprehensive REEREBALLEE
income for the year - - - 509 509
2020/2021 interim —E-® /T =—
dividend FEPHRE 10 - - - (69,085) (69,085)
2020/2021 proposed B /B —
final dividend FERRARERE 10 - - - (138,170) (138,170)
At 31 March 2021 and N-ZE——F
1 April 2021 =A=+—-EBR
R-E-—FWmBE—H 703,365 1,695 48,708 1,237,822 1,991,590
Total comprehensive TEEZABRALE
income for the year - - - 456 456
2021/2022 interim —EB-— /-
dividend FEPHRE 10 - - - (110,536)  (110,536)
2021/2022 proposed - /&
final dividend FERRRPRKRE 10 - - - (138,170) (138,170)
At 31 March 2022 N-ZT——F
=ZA=+—H 703,365 1,695 48,708 989,572 1,743,340

39.

The Company’s contributed surplus represents the difference
between the nominal value of the issued share capital of the
Company and the then combined net assets of the subsidiaries
acquired on the date of acquisition, as a result of the
reorganisation which occurred before the listing of the Company’s
shares in 1992. Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), a distribution may be made out of the contributed
surplus under certain circumstances.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the board of directors on 17 June 2022.
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